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ZUARI CEMENT LIMITED 

Regd. Office: Krishna Nagar,  Yerraguntla, Y.S.R. District , 

Andhra Pradesh-516 311  
Phone.  No.  080 -41194408; E-mail  Id:  ar jun.du tta@zcl td .com ; Website :  

www.zuar icements .com  

NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 24 t h  (Twenty Fourth) Annual General Meeting 

of the Members of Zuari Cement Limited  will be held at  03:15 PM on Thursday, 

the 26 September 2024 through Video Conferencing ("VC”) /  Other Audio Visual 

Means (OAVM) to transact the following business:- 

ORDINARY BUSINESS :  

1. To  receive, consider and  adopt  the Audited Standalone Financial Statements

of the Company and in this regard to  consider and if thought fit ,  to pass with

or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the

Company for the Financial year ended 31 March 2024, together with the report

of Directors and Auditors thereon be and are hereby considered, approved and

adopted.”

2. To consider,  approve and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial  Statements

of the Company and in this regard to  consider and if thought fit ,  to pass with

or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that the Audited Consolidated Financial  Statements of the

Company for the Financial year ended 31 March 2024, together with Auditors

Report  thereon be and are hereby considered, approved and adopted.”

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Juan-Francisco Defalque (DIN:

07318811) who retires by rotation and being eligible offers h imself for

reappointment;  and for this purpose, to consider and if thought fit ,  to pass with

or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resol ution:

“RESOLVED that  Mr. Juan-Francisco Defalque (DIN: 07318811) who retires

by rotation and being eligible  has offered himself for reappointment  be and is

hereby reappointed as Director of the Company  subject to retirement by

rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

4. To Appoint Mr. Roberto Call ieri as Non-Executive Director of the Company

and to consider and if thought fit  to pass,  with or without modification(s) the

following as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Roberto Callieri (Holding DIN 05139888) who has

been appointed by the Board of Directors,  as an Additional Director of the

Company with effect from 14 March 2024 in terms of Section 161 of the

Companies Act, 2013, and in respect of whom the Company has received a
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notice in writing under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a member 

proposing his candidature for the office of Director,  be and is h ereby appointed 

as a Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation ”.  

5. To ratify the remuneration payable to M/s. R.J.  Goel & Co.,  Cost Accountants

as Cost Auditors and in this regard if thought fit  to pass, with or without

modification(s) the following as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provision of section 148(3) and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 consent of the Comp any be and is hereby 

accorded for the payment of remuneration to M/s. R.J.  Goel & Co., Cost 

Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000026),  appointed  by the  Board  of 

Directors of the Company to conduct the audit of the Cost Accounting Records 

of the Company for the financial year  ending 31 March 2025 at INR 0.375 

million plus applicable taxes , and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 

incurred by them in connection with the aforesaid audit  be and is hereby 

ratified and confirmed.” 

6. To approve extension of the period of repayment of loan given to Gulbarga

Cement Limited and in this regard, if thought fit  to pass, with or without

modification(s) the following as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY that pursuant to the provision of section 185 of 

the Companies Act, 2013, if any, of the Companies Act,  2013 and the Rules 

made thereunder (including any statutory modification or re -enactment thereof)  

consent of members be and is hereby accorded to  extend the period of 

repayment of loan, along with interest,  given to Gulbarga  Cement Limited for 

the purpose of capital expenditure rel ating to its  project,  by  further period of 

3 years on the same terms and conditions as stipulated in the  loan agreements 

dated 08 September 2011 , 01 June 2012, 15 December 2021 and 09 August 

2023 at a rate of interest  as may be mutually agreed upon between  the Company 

and Gulbarga Cement  Limited, provided however that rate of interest on the 

term loan shall  be 75 basis points over and above 3 year G-sec yield.  

RESOLVED further that any two of Mr. Joydeep Mukherjee, Managing 

Director;  Mr. Vimal Kumar Jain, Director; Mr. Vimal Kumar Choudhary, Chief 

Financial  Officer; Mr. V.K. Sachindranath, Sr.  GM -Finance; Mr. Arjun Dutta, 

Company Secretary; Mr. Anil  Kumar Sharma, Mr. K.K. Acharya and Mr. Amit 

Angra (Authorised persons)  be and are hereby jointly author ized to execute 

necessary documents and to do all such acts,  deeds and things as may  be 

necessary from time to time with respect to extending of period of  

abovementioned term loan to Gulbarga Cement Limited. ”  

By the Order of the Board of Directors  

    Arjun Dutta  

Date:  31 July 2024  Company Secretary  

Place: Gurugram 
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NOTES: 

 

1.  The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its general circular  

dated 25 September 2023 permitted the holding of the Annual General  

Meeting (“AGM”) through VC /  OAVM, without the physical  presence of the 

Members at  a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act,  2013 (“Act”) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company 

is being held through VC /  OAVM.  

2.  Pursuant to the General Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs, the facili ty to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members 

is not available for this AGM. However,  the Body Corporates are entitled to  

appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM 

and participate thereat and cast their votes at  the meeting.  

3.  The facili ty for joining the meeting in the VC/OAVM mode shall  be kept 

open at  least  15 minutes before the scheduled time for  the commencement of 

the Meeting and 15 minutes after the completion of the meeting.  

4.  The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will 

be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Registered Office of the Company will be 

deemed to be venue for the purpose of this meeting.  

5.  The chairman may decide to conduct a vote by show of hands, as the number 

of members are less than 50 unless a demand for poll is made by any member 

in accordance with section 109 of the Act.  

6.  The Members/participants will be allowed to pose questions concurrently or 

may submit questions in advance on the email address of the company.  

7.  The recorded transcript /Video recording of the VC/OAVM shall  be 

maintained in the safe custody by the Company.  

8.  A copy of the notice shall also be prominently displayed on the website of 

the Company.  

9.  In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars Notice of the AGM along 

with the Annual Report  2023-24 is being sent only through electronic mode 

to those Members whose email  addresses is registered with the Company . 

10.  All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory 

Statement can be obtained for inspection by writing to the Comp any at  the 

Email-ID arjun.dutta@zcltd.com  till  the date of AGM. Similarly,  statutory 

registers that  are available for inspection at  the registered office of the 

Company in the normal course of business prior to and during the 

continuance of AGM at the venue of meeting, may also be accessed through 

the above mentioned mode.  

11.  Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the route map, attendance 

slip,  and proxy form are not annexed to this Notice.  
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12.  Following are the instructions regarding access and participation in the  

Annual General Meeting:  

a.  Members will  be sent a link to their registered email IDs sufficiently in 

advance to enable them to participate in the Annual General Meeting, 

which requires an electronic device such as computer or laptop or mobile 

phone with appropriate audio video facilit ies;  

b.  Members shall click on the link and can join the Annual General  Meeting 

to participate;  

c.  Members participating in the Annual General Meeting shall  ensure that  

no person other than the concerned Member is attending or has access to 

the proceedings of the said meeting;  

d.  Every participant shall identify himself/herself before speaking at the 

Annual General Meeting.  

e.  All the proceedings at the said meeting would be recorded and maintained 

in the safe custody of the Company;  

f.  The person to whom Members may contact in this regard is Mr. Arjun 

Dutta,  Company Secretary of the Company at arjun.dutta@zcltd.com. 

 

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 

are given below: 

 

Item No. 3: 

 

Mr. Juan-Francisco Defalque was init ially  appointed on the Board as an 

Additional Director on 26 July 2016 and his appointment was further regularised 

in the Annual General Meeting held on  15 May 2017.  

 

Brief resume of Mr. Juan-Francisco Defalque (Holding DIN: 07318811), who is 

proposed to be reappointed as Director, is  given below:  

 

Mr. Juan-Francisco Defalque, aged 60 years, completed his master’s degree in 

mining engineering from Catholic University of Louvain in Belgium in the year 

1987. He started his professional ca reer in 1989 with CBR, a Belgian 

International Company engaged in the production of cement, ready -mix and 

aggregates in Europe and North America (in 1993 CBR was acquired by 

Heidelberg Materials). From 1989 to 2002 he held several management posit ions 

including director of technical projects for Belgium. In 2002, he joined HM 

Cimbenin located in Benin (West Africa) as its Managing Director. In 2006 he 

joined HM Indocement to set up a completely new Competence Center 

Cement  (CCC), Indonesia organization holding the position of Head of CCC, 

Indonesia. During his time in Indonesia several major projects were executed or 

started including an integrated plant with 10,000 TPD clinker line located in 

South of Jakarta.  

 

In 2015 he joined Heidelberg Materials Asia Pte Ltd, Singapore as Director CCC -

APAC responsible for managing the technical centres in the region, which not 

only provides technical support to all  the cement manufacturing facilities of 

Heidelberg Materials in this region but also takes care of the new projects .  
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Mr. Juan-Francisco Defalque is also a Non-Executive Director in Gulbarga 

Cement Limited (Subsidiary of Zuari Cement Limited).  

 

Except Mr. Juan-Francisco Defalque, none of the other Directors,  Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives are concerned or interested, 

financially or otherwise,  in the proposed resolution.  

 

Item No. 4:   

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 08 March 2024 

appointed Mr. Roberto Callieri (Holding DIN: as an Additional Director of the 

Company pursuant to the provisions of section 161 of the Companies Act,  2013. 

Mr. Roberto Callieri  holds office of the Directorship up to the date of ensuing 

Annual General  Meeting of the Company. The Company has received a notice in 

writ ing under section 160 of the Companies Act,  2013 from a member proposing 

his candidature for the office of Director,  be and is hereby appointed as a Director 

of the Company liable to retire by rotation .  

Brief profile of Mr. Roberto Callieri  is  given below:  

Mr. Roberto Callieri, aged 60 years,  completed his Degree in Electrical  

Engineering from University of Cagliari in 1990 and Financial  Management from 

Bocconi University,  Milan, Italy.  He has also completed Advanced Management 

Program from Harvard Business School, Boston, USA.  

 

Mr. Callieri  joined Italcementi  Group in 1990, where he held several  senior 

management posit ions in Puerto Rico, USA, Canada, Turkey, Thailand, Egypt,  

and Italy.  From 2016 until  the end of 2023, he headed the Italian operations of 

Heidelberg Materials Group. He has been a member of the Managing Board of 

Heidelberg Materials AG since January 2024 and is responsible for Asia within 

the Asia-Pacific Group area.  

 

Traversing his professional career spanning over three decades, Mr. Call ieri has 

gained rich and vast experience in plant operations & maintenance, project  

management, sustainabili ty, business integration, brand leadership, corporate 

management, strategy formulation and cost leadership in international cement 

business.  He has led many successful  operational and mar keting turnarounds 

resulting in re-establishing profitability and competitiveness. He is a highly 

disciplined professional with balanced approach, self -start ing personality and 

abili ty to independently operate under challenging business situations. He is a  

strong believer in nurturing talent, building high performing teams and ability to  

successfully integrate and be accepted in multicultural environments.  

 

Mr. Roberto Callieri  holds the position of Non-Executive Director in  

HeidelbergCement India Limited  and Gulbarga Cement Limited  (Subsidiaries of 

Heidelberg Materials AG). 

Except Mr. Roberto Call ieri ,  none of the other Directors,  Key Managerial  

Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives is concerned or interested, 

financial or otherwise, in the proposed resolutions.   
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Item No. 5 :  

 

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 29 May 2024 

approved the re-appointment of M/s. R.J. Goel & Co.,  Cost Accountants,  to 

conduct the Audit  of the Cost Accounting Records of the Company for the 

financial year ended 31 March 2025. In terms of the provisions of section 148(3) 

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(a)(ii) of the Companies (Audit  and 

Auditors) Rules,  2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is  to be 

approved by the members of the Company . Accordingly, the members are 

requested to ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Au ditors during the 

financial year 2024-25 as set out in the Resolution for the aforesaid services to 

be rendered by them. The Board of Directors has recommended the resolution set  

out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for approval of the members at the ensuing AG M. 

 

None of the Directors,  Key Managerial  Personnel of the Company and/or their 

relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed 

resolution. 

 

The brief profiles as required under Secretarial Standard -2 on General Meetings 

is set out at Annexure to this notice.  

Item No. 6 :  

The Company has received a request  from GCL seeking extension of the period  

of repayment of loan by further period of 3 years, on account of delay in  

commissioning of the project  and nil cash flow. As on 30 June 2024, the aggregate 

loan amount outstanding from GCL is INR 1553 mill ion (Principal amount INR 

845 million and accrued interest  of INR 708 milli on net of TDS).  Based on request 

received from GCL the Company has in September 2021 already extended the 

period of repayment of loan along with interest accrued by  three years.  

 

Pursuant to Section 185 of the Companies Act,  2013 approval of shareholders i s  

hereby sought by way of a special  resolution for extending the period of  

repayment of loan given to GCL by 3 years. The Board of Directors of the  

Company at its meeting held on 31 January 2024 considered the same and has  

recommended the special  resolution set  out at  Item No. 6 for approval of the 

members at the ensuing AGM.  

 

Except Mr.  Vimal Kumar Jain, all  the other directors and both the key  Managerial  

Personnel of the Company hold directorship and KMP position in  GCL as well 

and as such they may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the  aforesaid 

resolution to that extent.  

 

By the Order of the Board of Directors  

 

 

 

Date:  31 July 2024                                                  Arjun Dutta 

Place:  Gurugram                                                 Company Secretary  
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Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting (Pursuant to Secretarial Standard 2 on General 

Meetings).  

 

Name of 

Director  

Mr. Juan-Francisco 

Defalque 

Mr. Roberto Callieri  

DIN 07318811 05139888 

Brief Resume Mr. Juan-Francisco Defalque,  

aged 60 years, completed his 

master’s degree in mining 

engineering from Catholic 

University of Louvain in 

Belgium in the year 1987. He 

started his professional career 

in 1989 with CBR, a Belgian 

International Company 

engaged in  the production of 

cement,  ready-mix and 

aggregates in Europe and 

North America (in 1993 CBR 

was acquired by Heidelberg 

Materials). From 1989 to 2002 

he held several management 

positions including director of 

technical projects for 

Belgium. In 2002, he joined 

HM Cimbenin located in Benin 

(West Africa) as i ts Managing 

Director.  In 2006 he joined 

HM Indocement to set up a 

completely new Competence 

Center Cement (CCC), 

Indonesia organization 

holding the position of Head of 

CCC, Indonesia. During his 

time in Indonesia several  

major projects were executed 

or started including an 

integrated plant with 10,000 

TPD clinker line located in  

South of Jakarta.  

 

In 2015 he joined Heidelberg 

Materials Asia Pte Ltd,  

Singapore as Director CCC-

APAC responsible for  

managing the technical centres 

in the region, which not only 

provides technical support to 

all the cement manufacturing 

Mr. Roberto Call ieri , aged 60 

years,  completed his Degree in 

Electrical  Engineering from 

University of Cagliari in 1990 

and Financial Management  

from Bocconi University,  

Milan, Italy. He has also 

completed Advanced 

Management Program from 

Harvard Business School,  

Boston, USA. 

 

Mr. Callieri joined Italcementi  

Group in 1990, where he held 

several senior management  

positions in Puerto Rico, USA, 

Canada, Turkey, Thailand,  

Egypt, and Italy.  From 2016 

until  the end of 2023, he 

headed the Italian operations 

of Heidelberg Materials 

Group. He has been a member 

of the Managing Board of  

Heidelberg Materials AG since 

January 2024 and is 

responsible for Asia within the 

Asia-Pacific Group area.  

 

Traversing his professional 

career spanning over three 

decades,  Mr. Call ieri has  

gained rich and vast  

experience in plant operations 

& maintenance, project  

management, sustainabil ity,  

business integration, brand 

leadership, corporate 

management,  strategy 

formulation and cost  

leadership in international 

cement business.  He has led 

many successful operational 

and marketing turnarounds 
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facili ties of Heidelberg 

Materials in this region but 

also takes care of the new 

projects .  

resulting in re-establishing 

profitabil ity and 

competitiveness. He is a 

highly disciplined 

professional with balanced 

approach, self-starting 

personality and ability to 

independently operate under 

challenging business 

situations. He is a strong 

believer in nurturing talent,  

building high performing 

teams and ability to 

successfully integrate and be 

accepted in multicultural  

environments.  

Date of Birth  23 August 1963 14 October 1963 

Date of First  

Appointment 

on the Board 

26 July 2016 14 March 2024 

Expertise in 

specific 

functional 

area(s)  

He has a rich experience of 

over 35 years in executing 

several major projects  

pertaining to technical support  

in cement manufacturing .  

He has a rich experience of 

over 35 years rich and vast  

experience in plant operations 

& maintenance, project  

management, sustainabil ity,  

business integration, brand 

leadership, corporate 

management,  strategy 

formulation and cost 

leadership in international 

cement business.  

Qualifications  Master’s Degree in Mining 

Engineering from Catholic 

University of Louvain in 

Belgium in the year 1987.  

 

 

 

Degree in Electrical  

Engineering from University 

of Cagliari in 1990 and 

Financial Management from 

Bocconi University, Milan, 

Italy.  He has also completed 

Advanced Management 

Program from Harvard 

Business School,  Boston, 

USA. 
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Shareholding 

in the 

Company 

(including 

shareholding 

as a beneficial  

owner) 

Nil  Nil  

Terms and 

Conditions of 

Appointment  

Appointed as Non-Executive 

Director liable to retire by 

rotation. 

Appointed as Chairman & 

Non-Executive Director liable 

to retire by rotation. 

Remuneration 

last  drawn 

Not Applicable  Not Applicable 

Remuneration 

proposed to 

be paid 

Not Applicable  Not Applicable  

Relationship 

with other 

Directors,  

Manager and 

other Key 

Managerial 

Personnel of 

the Company 

Not related to any Director or 

Key Managerial Personnel of 

the Company. 

Not related to any Director or 

Key Managerial Personnel of 

the Company. 

No. of Board 

meetings 

attended 

during FY24 

Attended all  f ive meetings 

held during FY24. 

Not Applicable.  

Directorships 

held in other 

Indian public 

limited 

companies  

Gulbarga Cement Limited .  HeidelbergCement India 

Limited and Gulbarga Cement 

Limited.  

Position of 

Chairperson /  

Member in the 

Committees 

of Directors 

of other 

public limited 

companies in 

which he/she 

is a Director  

Nil.  Committee positions held in 

HeidelbergCement India 

Limited: -  

• Member of Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee.  
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BOARD’S REPORT 
 

 

To the Members,  
 

The Directors are pleased to present the 24 t h  Annual Report  together with the 

audited financial statements of Zuari Cement Limited (‘the Company’) for the 

financial year ended 31 March 2024 (FY24).  

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS / REVIEW OF OPERATIONS  

 

Production and Sales figures for the financial year  ended 31 March 2024 were as 

under:  

 

 FY24 FY23 

 Clinker Production (KMTs)  3,628 3,265 

 Cement Production (KMTs)   4,482 4,224 

 Cement Sales (KMTs)  4,492 4,245 

 Clinker Sales (KMTs)  442 445 

 

A snapshot of the Company’s financial  performance for FY2 4 vis-à-vis 

performance for FY23 is as under:  

          INR in million 

Particulars   

 

Financial year 

ended 

31 March 2024 

Financial year 

ended 

31 March 2023 
   

Revenue from Operations (Gross)                     23,910                    22,963  

Other Income                         213                         264  

Total Revenue                   24,123                    23,226  

Earnings before Interest, Tax, 

Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA)  
                     1,814                         643  

Depreciation and Amortization*                      2,354                      1,226  

Finance Costs                          416                         260  

Loss before Tax                        (956)                     (843) 

Tax expense                       (455)                     (283) 

Net Loss                       (501)                     (560) 

*   Depreciation includes loss of INR 7,803.33 lakhs represented the write -down 

value of property, plant and equipment in Sitapuram Power Limited ('SPL') 

being impaired and loss of INR 2 ,300 lakhs recognized against goodwill  

allocated to SPL in the statement of profit and loss during the year ended March 

31, 2024.  
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DIVIDEND :  

 

In view of the loss suffered by the Company  during FY24, the Board of Directors 

expresses its  inability to recommend any dividend for the financial  year ended 

31 March 2024. 

 

DEBT SERVICING :  

 

Your Company has met all  obligations towards repayment of principal and 

interest on all  loans availed from time to time.  

 

DIRECTORS :  

 

Appointment of Managing Director 

 

Mr. Joydeep Mukherjee (holding DIN-06648469) was appointed as Managing 

Director of the Company for a term of three years from 01 April 2023 to 31 

March 2026. His appointment was also approved by Shareholders in the Annual 

General Meeting held on 28 September 2023.  

 

Change in Chairman and Non-Executive Director 

 

Mr. Kevin Gerard Gluskie resigned from the position of Chairman and Non-

Executive Director of the Company with effect from close of business hours on 

13 March 2024. The Board places on record its appreciation for the valuable 

contributions and support  provided by Mr. Gluskie during his tenure as 

Chairman and Non-Executive Director of the Company.  

 

The Board of Directors appoin ted Mr. Roberto Callieri  (DIN: 05139888) as 

Chairman and an Additional Director from 14 March 2024. The Board hereby 

recommends a resolution to be passed by the shareholders for appointment of 

Mr. Roberto Callieri  as Chairman and Non-Executive Director of the Company, 

which shall be placed before the ensuing Annual General  Meeting of the 

Company.  

Retirement by rotation 

 

Mr. Juan Francisco Defalque, Director retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM 

and being eligible has offered himself  for reappointment. His brief profile is  

given in the Notice of AGM. The Board hereby recommends h is reappointment.  

BOARD MEETINGS :  

 

During the financial year ended 31 March 2024, the Board of Directors of the 

Company met 5 t imes on 29 May 2023, 18 July 2023, 06 November 2023, 31 

January 2024 and 08 March 2024. Mr. Joydeep Mukherjee,  Mr. Juan-Francisco 

Defalque and Mr. Vimal Kumar Jain attended all the meetings. Mr. Kevin Gerard 

Gluskie and Ms. Soek Peng Sim attended Three Board Meetings. The maximum 

time gap between two sequential meetings was less than 120 days.  The Company 

does not pay sitt ing fee to any of its Directors.  
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PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 , a 

performance evaluation Policy has been formulated containing the criteria and 

methodology for facilitating performance evaluation  of the Board as a whole 

and directors individually.  The Board has carried out an annual evaluation of 

its own performance and, also of its individual directors.  Its  own performance 

was carried out on the basis of Board composition and quality, B oard meeting 

and procedure and, on Board strategy and risk management.  For the evaluation 

of the performance of individual directors’ cri teria for evaluation included 

attendance, contribution at  the meetings, decision making abili ty and their 

preparedness for the meetings.  The Directors expressed their satisfaction on the 

outcome of the performance evaluation.  

 

AUDITORS :  

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 

the members at the 21 s t  Annual General  Meeting of the Company held on 13 

September 2021 had appointed S.N. Dhawan & Co. LLP., Chartered 

Accountants, as statutory auditors of the Co mpany to hold office up to the 

conclusion of the 26 t h  Annual General  Meeting for conducting statutory audits 

commencing from FY2021-22 unti l FY2025-26.  

 

The observations of the Auditors in their report  on Financial Statements read 

with the relevant notes are self -explanatory. The Independent Auditors'  Report 

does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks.  

 

COST AUDIT :  

 

The Company is maintaining cost  accounting records in accordance with 

provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made 

thereunder.  The Cost Audit  for the financial  year  ended 31 March 2023 was 

conducted by M/s R. J.  Goel & Co.,  Cost Accountants, Delhi and as required 

Cost Audit Report  was duly filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 

Government of India. The Audit of the cost accounts of the Company for the 

financial year  ended 31 March 2024 is also being conducted by the said firm 

and the Report  will be filed within the stipulated time.  

 

In accordance with Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 

(Cost Records and Audit) Rules,  2014 the Board of Directors has appointed M /s. 

R.J. Goel & Co., Cost Accountants as Cost Auditor of the Company for the 

financial year ending 31 March 2025 on a remuneration of INR 3,75,000/- 

million. Pursuant to Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a resolution 

seeking member’s ratification for the remuneration payable to M/s.  R. J . Goel 

& Co., Cost Accountants for the financial year ending 31 March 202 5 is included 

in the Notice convening the AGM. The Board recommends the aforesaid 

resolution for approval of the members.  
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT :  

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act,  2013 

the Board had appointed M/s.  K. Narayana Swamy & Co.,  Company Secretaries,  

Bangalore to conduct the secretarial  audit  of the Company for  the financial year 

ended 31 March 2024. The Report  of the Secretarial  Auditor is  annexed herewith 

as Annexure ‘A’.  The Secretarial  Audit Report  does not contain any 

qualification, reservation or adverse remark.  

 

ANNUAL RETURN :   

 

A copy of the annual return for the financial year ended 31  March 2023 filed 

with Registrar of Companies is posted on website of the Company. The draft 

Annual Return for FY24 is also posted on website of the Company. After filing 

of Annual Return for FY24 with MCA, the draft will  be replaced with the final 

version. Weblink to access abovementioned Annual Returns is  as under:  

 
http:/ /www.zuaricements.com/index.php/our -company.  

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE :  

 

The Corporate Social  Responsibility Committee as on 31 March 202 4 comprised 

three members namely, Mr. Joydeep Mukherjee  (Chairman of the Committee);  

Ms. Soek Peng Sim and Mr. Vimal Kumar Jain.    

 

During the financial year ended 31 March 2024, the Committee met twice on 29 

May 2023 and 31 January 2024. Mr. Joydeep Mukherjee and Mr. Vimal Kumar 

Jain attended both the meetings of the Committee.  Ms. Soek Peng Sim attended 

the meeting held on 29 May 2023. 

 

The Terms of reference of the Corporate Social  Responsibility Committee are 

in conformity with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.  

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION 

COMMITTEE :  

 

Amended Sub-rule (2) of Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Qualification of Directors) Rules,  inter al ia exempts unlisted public companies 

which are wholly owned subsidiaries from the requirement of appoint ing 

Independent Directors  on their Board. Similarly, amended Rule 6 of the 

Companies (Meeting of the Board and its Powers) Rules, exempts  such unlisted 

Public Companies from the constitution of Audit Committee and Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee.  

 

Your Company is an unlisted public company and is a wholly owned subsidiary 

of Heidelberg Materials Italia Cementi  SPA (Formerly known as Italcementi  

S.P.A) .  The Company received an intimation from Italcementi  S .PA. stating that 

the name of the Company has been changed to Heidelberg Materials Ital ia 

Cementi  SPA, Italy with effect from 10 October 2023.   
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In view of the aforesaid provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 

made thereunder,  the Company is exempted from the requirement of appointing 

Independent Directors and constitution of Audit Committee and Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee.  

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS :  

 

Details of investments and loans covered under section 186 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 are given in notes to the financial statements at Note No. 5 and 6 

respectively.  No guarantee or security in connection with a loan to any other 

body corporate or person is given by the company.   

 

General :  The Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in 

respect of the following i tems as there were no transactions with respect to these 

items during FY24: 

 

• Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act,  

2013.  

• Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or 

otherwise.  

• Issue of stock options or sweat equity shares.  

• No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts 

or Tribunals  which impact the going concern status and the Company’s 

operations in future.  

 

PUBLIC DEPOSITS :  

 

Your Company has not invited any Fixed Deposits from the shareholders / public 

during the period under review.  

 

LISTING OF SHARES :  

 

Your Company is not a listed Company.  

 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO :  

 

Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during the year stood at  INR 4.53 million 

and INR 4,166 million respectively.  

 

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS :  

 

The Company has also ensured compliance with applicable Secretarial Standards 

issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India pursuant to Section 

118(10) of the Companies Act,  2013.  

 

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:    

 

The particulars relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and 

Research & Development as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 forming 

part of this report  are annexed as ‘Annexure B’.  
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ENVIRONMENT :  

 

Your Company aims to achieve progress in harmony with the environment.  We 

continuously seek environment friendly approaches in our operations viz. 

conserving energy, exploring alternative source of energy, reducing air 

pollution, conserving water, enhancing the carbon sink by increasing green 

cover, promoting circular economy etc.  

 

During FY24 following measures were implemented towards protection of 

environment,  controlling and reduction of pollution levels.  

 

•  Plantation of 2300 Nos. saplings covering an area of 1.1 Ha in the year 2023 -

24 is developed.  

•  Ground water recharge pits were constructed at mines office and rest  shelter 

area for recharging the water table of the area.  

•  Installation of Volatile Organic Compounds meter at  solid waste and liquid 

storage area.  

• Sewage treatment plant wastewater is  us ed for green belt development.  

• Development of habitat  gardens for Animals and Humans, Birds, and 

greenery together with the Abiotic Environment as organic Fruits Garden 

Like Mango, Orange, Cashew, Badam, Coconut, Jackfruits, Chikoo, Amla, 

and Mahogany fruits.  

• Creating Awareness amongst  al l employees on the Environment by 

Celebrating Environmental related Programmes World Water Day, World 

Environment Day, Earth Day, Mines MEMC Week, Several  Mass Plantation 

drives 

 

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY 

 

Your Company follows a comprehensive Health and safety policy with a final 

goal to achieve ‘Safe Work, Healthy Life’ & “Zero Harm” at workplace and 

believes that  all  accidents can be prevented and undertakes to apply the best 

safety standards at the workplaces.  

Following safety measures were implemented in all the plants:  

• All the plants ensured highest  safety standards by implementing the 

following Health and Safety Action Plans during FY24. 

➢  No Guard No Start -Safety interlock system for machine guarding.  

➢  Process equipment &structures healthiness/stability audit .  

➢  Sub-station & Motor Control  Center  (MCC) Room audit.  

• Twenty-four most cri tical  safety hazards relevant to the cement industry ha ve 

been compiled. Safety themes are announced every month and key aspects 

relating to the theme are dwelt  upon throughout the month so as to firmly 

instil the safety culture in the organization.  
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• Truck Drivers were also imparted training on defensive driving  techniques. 

Monitoring of the workplace for noise, particulate matter,  free silica,  and 

illumination level is being done as per the regulatory norms. All plants are 

certified for ISO 45001- Occupational Health and Safety Management 

System are being strict ly adhered to at  all  the plants.  

• Use of Personal Protective equipment (PPE) for all the employees were 

mandatory.  

• Safety talks for all  the work activities carried out at  plant along with suitable 

work permit (Safe Work Permit , Work at Height, Confined space Entry, 

Lock-out Tag-out Try-out (LOTOTO) etc. 

• National Safety week were celebrated in 4 t h-11 t h  March 2024 across  all plants 

to improve the safety awareness.  

 

AWARDS AND ACCOLADES 

 

The Company continues to pursue excellence in all areas of its operations as 

evident from the recognition in the form of awards and honours :  

 

• Yerraguntla Plant received Certificate of Appreciation from Bureau of Indian 

Standards for its  following cement products– 

➢  PPC - Specification Part  I Fly Ash Based as per IS 1489:PART 1:2015 for 

having Zero failures of samples in last three years and their continuous 

efforts to maintain the quality of products.  

➢  OPC - as per IS 269:2015 for having Zero failure of Samples in last  three 

years and their continuous efforts to maintain the quality of products.  

• Received First  Prize for Afforestation on occasion of Mines Environment & 

Mineral Conservation Week 2023-24. 

•  Chennai Grinding Unit (CGU) was awarded with Silver Trophy by Society 

of Energy Engineers and Managers.  

•  Solapur Grinding Unit (SGU) was awarded with National Sustainability 

Excellence in the Third Edition of Quality Circle Forum of India .  

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:  

The Company is committed to the three pillars of ecology, economy and social 

responsibility. We are working for the benefit of the communities around our 

plants and mines with the spirit  of "partners in progress". We encourage 

community participation at al l levels from planning and implementation to 

monitoring and maintenance of assets created under CSR projects. While 

discharging our responsibilities as a good corporate citizen, we are looking at  

all aspects of development. Our CSR initiatives have wide co verage ranging 

from education, skill  development, health care, infrastructure development and 

sports. During FY 2023-24 the Company has spent INR 21.24 million on various 

CSR projects /programmes exceeding the obligations pursuant to Section 135 of 

the Companies Act, 2013.  
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The Company has undertaken projects in the areas of promotion of education, 

healthcare,  skil l development and rural development as part of its commitment 

to Corporate Social  responsibility (CSR). These projects are in accordance with 

the scope outlined under schedule VII of the Companies Act,  2013. The CSR 

policy of the Company is posted on the Company’s website. The web -link to 

access the said policy is as follows:  

 

http://www.zuaricements.com/images/ZCL_CSR_Policy.pdf  

 

The plant’s health centres provide free consultation, medicines, treatments and 

ambulance service are being provided for patients of nearby villages. The 

Company provided supported school infrastructures namely through 

rehabilitation of schools,  Scholarships to students and distribution of 

educational kits ,  construction of classrooms, school boundary walls, desks, and 

benches etc.  

 

At all locations of the plants, support was extended towards  rural  infrastructure 

development works for construction of roads, community hall ,  overhead water 

tanks, installation of solar streetlights , enhancing drinking water facility  etc.,  

and supported special target group .  

 

The Report  on CSR activities in the format prescribed by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs is  annexed herewith as ‘Annexure C’.  

 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:   

 

Details of Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are given below:  

▪ Mr. Joydeep Mukherjee, Managing Director (with effect from 01 April  

2023).  

▪ Mr. Vimal Kumar Chaudhary , Chief Financial Officer .  

▪ Mr. Arjun Dutta, Company Secretary .  

 

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY  

 

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blow er Policy to deal with 

instances of fraud, non-ethical behaviour,  irregularities,  and mismanagement, if 

any, and to ensure effective,  timely and transparent process of such violations.  

During FY24 no compliant was received under the Vigil  Mechanism. The Vigi l 

Mechanism /  Whistle Blower Policy is posted on the Company’s website.  The  

web-link to access the said policy is as follows:  

 

https:/ /www.zuaricements.com/images/policy/ZCL_Vigil_Mechanism.pdf                              

  

RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM  

 

The Company has a sound Risk Management System and a structured Risk 

Management Policy in place. The business risks have been classified under the 

broad heads - strategic, operational, financial,  and legal and compliance risks. 

The Company’s Risk Management Policy lays down a bottom-up process 

comprising risk identification, analysis and evaluation, treatment and 

controlling. Risk owners identify and analyse all risks in their area of 
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operations.  The business risks are reviewed by the Senior Management and 

cri tical risks are placed before the Risk Management Committee/Board of 

Directors for review. The Risk Management Policy is posted on the Company’s 

website.  The web-link to access the said policy is as follows:  

 
http:/ /www.zuaricements.com/images/Company/2.ZCLRiskManagementPolicy.pdf  

 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (RPT) :  

 

All the transactions entered into between the Company and its related parties 

for the year ended 31 March 2024 were in the ordinary course of business and 

on an arms’ length basis.  

 

Details of transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are 

given in the notes to the accounts under Item No.  31 t itled Related Party 

disclosure and Related Party Transactions.  

 

The Company has in place a Policy on Related Party Transactions and a 

Framework for the purpose of assessing the basis of determining the arm’s 

length price of relevant transactions.  The Related Party Transactions Policy is 

posted on the Company’s website. The web -link to access the said policy is as 

follows: 

 

https://www.zuaricements.com/images/Company/1.ZCLRelatedPartyTransactionsPolicy.pdf  

 

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT THE 

WORKPLACE :  

 

The Company continues to remain compliant with the provisions of the Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 

Act, 2013, which aims to protect  women at  workplace against  any form of sexual 

harassment and prompt redressal of any complaint. During the year ended 31 

March 2024, no complaint was received by the Company in this regard.  The 

web-link to access the said policy is as follows:  

 
http: / /www.zuaricements.com/images/Proh ibi t ion -Agains t -Sexual-Harassment.pdf  

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS :  

 

The Company has in place relevant internal controls,  policies, and procedures 

to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of its business. Standard Operating 

Procedures (SOPs) and Risk Control  Matrix (RCM) have been designed for 

cri tical processes across all operations. The inte rnal financial controls are tested 

for operating effectiveness through management’s ongoing monitoring and 

review processes, and independently by the internal auditors.  In our view the 

internal financial  controls  are adequate and are operating effectively.   

 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS :  

 

There are no material  changes and commitments that affect the financial position 

of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date of signing 

of the Boards’ Report. Further, there is no change in the nature of business of 

the Company.  
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DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT :  

 

To the best  of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and 

explanations obtained by them and based on the assessment of the management,  

the Board of Directors makes the following statements in terms of Section 134 

of the Companies Act, 2013:  

 

i)  that  in the preparation of the accounts for the year ended 31 March 

2024 the applicable accounting standards have been followed along 

with proper explanation relating to material departures,  if any;  

 

ii)  that  such accounting policies have been selected and app lied 

consistently and judgements and estimates have been made that are 

reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of 

affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024 and of the profit  or loss of 

the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2024; 

 

iii)  that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act,  2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 

for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregulari ties;  

 

iv)  that  the financial statements for the financial  year ended 31 March 2024 

have been prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis;  

 

v)  that  proper internal financial controls were in place and that  such 

internal financial  controls were adequate and were operating 

effectively;  and 

 

vi)  that  systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of al l applicable 

laws are in place and that such systems were adequate and operating 

effectively.  

 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES :  

 

The Company has a subsidiary company  namely, Gulbarga Cement Limited 

(GCL).  

 

GCL is in the process of setting up a Greenfield cement plant of 3 M TPA.  The 

Company received an Order from Karnataka Industrial  Area Development Board 

(KIADB) granting extension of 3 years i .e., up to 06 January 2025 to complete 

the project .  The Ministry of Environment awarded the Terms of Reference  

pursuant to Expert Appraisal  Committee meeting held on 25 Janu ary 2024.  

 

Subsequently,  the Environment Impact Analysis report  was finalized and 

submitted to the State Pollution Control Board on 16 May 2024 for conducting 

a Public Hearing. Clearance Committee (SHLCC) for a period of 3 years with 

effect from 29 March 2023.  Against  this backdrop, an application was made for 

Public Hearing with relevant Authorit ies.  On completion of the Public Hearing 

successfully the Environment Clearance will be issued . 
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A separate statement containing the salient features of the financial statements 

of the Company’s subsidiaries are attached under Form AOC -1 to the financial 

statements.  

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES :   

 

Industrial relations remained cordial  and peaceful throughout the year.  

 

Particulars of the employees as required, to be furnished under Rule 5(2) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial  Personnel) Rules, 

2014 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in 

the ‘Annexure D’ of this Report .  

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS :  

 

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of the assistance and 

support  received from the customers, dealers, suppliers,  bankers,  government,  

and all other business associates. Your Directors also wish to place on  record 

their sincere appreciation for dedicated efforts put in by the employees at all 

levels.  

                                               For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  

 

 

 

Date:   31  July 2024                Joydeep Mukherjee          Vimal Kumar Jain    

Place:  Gurugram            Managing Director                   Director  
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ANNEXURE - A 

FORM NO. MR 3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 s t  MARCH 2024 
 

[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of 

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules,  2014]  

 

To,  

 

The Members,  
Zuari Cement Limited.  

 

We have conducted the Secretarial  Audit of the compliance of applicable 

statutory provisions and adherence to good corporate practices by Zuari 

Cement Limited  (hereinafter called ‘the Company  or ZCL’ - 

CIN:U26942AP2000PLC050415).    The Secretarial Audit was conducted in 

a manner that provided us reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.  

 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, 

forms and returns fi led and other records maintained by the Company and 

also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 

authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit,   we 

hereby report that, in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period 

covering the financial year ended on 31 s t  March, 2024 complied with the 

statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that  the Company has proper 

board-processes and compliance-mechanisms in place to the extent,  in the 

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.  

 

We have examined the books, papers,  minute books, forms and returns filed 

and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended 

on 31 s t  March 2024 according to the provisions of :  

 

I.   The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder .  

II.   The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the Rules made 

thereunder (Not Applicable) .  

III.   The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Rules made thereunder .  

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct  

Investment and External Commercial  Borrowings; and  

V.  The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’), viz.,  
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1.  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,  2015.  (Not Applicable)  

2.  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital  and 

Disclosure Requirements)  Regulations,  2018.  (Not Applicable)  

3.  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition 

of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.  (Not Applicable)  

4.  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 

Regulations, 2018.   (Not Applicable)  

5.  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee 

Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations,  2021.   (Not Applicable)  

6.  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non -

Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021.  (Not Applicable) 

7.  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 

Trading) Regulations, 2015.  (Not Applicable)  

8.  The Securit ies and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue 

and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993   regarding the 

Companies Act and dealing with client s.  

9.  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Investor Protection and 

Education Fund) Regulations, 2009 .  (Not Applicable)  

10.  The Securit ies and Exchange Board of India (Delist ing of Equity 

Shares) Regulations,  2021. (Not Applicable)   

 

We have also examined the following Industry Specific Laws / General  

Laws  as applicable to the Company based on the information received and 

records maintained by the Company on test -check basis:  

 

VI.  Industry-specific Laws, importantly - 

1.  Cement Control  Order, 1967. 

2.  Legal Metrology Act, 2009. 

3.  Mines Act, 1952. 

4.  Boilers Act,  1993. 

5.  Explosives Act,  1884, Explosive Substances Act, 1908 read with 

Explosive Rules, 2008. 

6.  Bureau of Indian Standards (BIS) Act, 2016 .  

7.  Other allied applicable Industry -specific Laws, Rules & 

Regulations thereof.  

 

VII.  General  Laws - 

 

1.  Factory/Environmental Laws , importantly - 

a. Factories Act, 1948. 

b. Environmental Protection Act, 1986.  

c. Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974.  

d. Air (Prevention and Con trol of Pollution) Act, 1981.  
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e. Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management and Transboundary 

Movement) Rules, 2016.  

f.  Electricity Act, 2003. 

  g. Other  allied  applicable  Factory Laws, Rules & Regulations  

thereof.  

 

2. Labour Laws, importantly - 

a.  Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 . 

b. Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 

1952. 

c.  Payment of Wages Act,  1936. 

d.  Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 . 

e.  Industrial  Disputes Act,  1947.  

f.  Employees Compensation Act, 1923 . 

g.  Contract  Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 . 

h. Sexual  Harassment  of  Women  at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act,  2013. 

i.  Other allied applicable Labour Laws, Rules & Regulations 

thereof.  

 

The Management has also represented and confirmed that all the Laws, 

Rules,  Regulations,  Orders,  Standard and Guidelines as are specifically 

applicable to the Company relating to Industry /  Factory /  Labour,  etc.,  

have been complied with.   

 

Apart  from the above, we have also examined the complia nce of applicable 

Secretarial Standards/ Guidelines issued by Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India (ICSI) with specific reference to meetings of the Board 

of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2).  

 

Accordingly, we state that during the year und er review there were 

adequate systems and processes in place to monitor and ensure compliance 

with various applicable laws and that the Company has complied with the 

provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Orders, Standards, Guidelines,  

etc.,  mentioned above.  

 

We have not examined compliance by the Company of the applicable 

financial laws, like direct and indirect  tax laws, maintenance of financial 

records,  etc., since the same are subject  to review by statutory auditors,  tax 

auditors and other designated professionals.  

 

We report that:  

 

The Board of the Company is duly constituted which includes a Woman 

Director.  
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Adequate notices were given to all  Directors to schedule the Board 

Meetings and the Agenda and detailed notes on Agenda were sent in 

advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information 

and clarifications on the Agenda items before the meeting and for 

meaningful participation at the Meeting.  

 

As per the minutes of the Board Meetings duly recorded and signed by the 

Chairman, the decisions at the Meetings were unanimous inasmuch as 

minutes of the Meetings are self -explanatory.  

 

We also report  that  based  on the information provided and representation 

made by the Company and upon review of compliance mechanism s 

established by the Company which include compliance cert ificates issued 

by the Company Secretary and other Executives of the Company and taken 

on record by the Board /  Committee,  we are of the opinion that  there were 

adequate systems and processes in the Company commensur ate with the 

size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with 

all applicable Laws.  

 

We further report that:  

 

1.  There were no instances of following during the audit period:  

➢  Public/ Rights/ Preferential issue of shares/ Debentures/ Sweat equity.  

➢  Merger/  Amalgamation/ Reconstruction.  

➢  Foreign Technical Collaborations.  

➢  Major decision by Members in pursuance to Section 180 of Act.  

 

2.  There were no other specific events / actions in pursuance of the above 

referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc., having a major bearing on 

the affairs of the Company.  

 

For  K. Narayana Swamy & Co.,  

   Company Secretaries  

 

 

 

  (K. Narayana Swamy)  

           FCS 1838 / CP 9878 

           Peer Review Cert.  No.1744/2022  

                 UDIN NO F001838F000862687  

 

Place :  Bengaluru                                                                                    

Date :   31 July 2024 

 

Note: This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is 

annexed as  ‘Annexure - A’   and forms an integral part of this Report.  
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‘Annexure - A’ 

 

To,  

 
 

The Members,  
Zuari Cement Limited.  

 
 
Our Report of even date is  to be read along with this letter.  

 

1.  Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the 

Management of the Company.   Our responsibility is to express an opinion 

on these secretarial records based on our audit.  

 

2.  We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate 

to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of  

secretarial records.   The verification was done on test -check basis to 

ensure that  correct facts were reflected in the secretarial  records.     We 

believe that the processes and practices we followed provide a re asonable 

basis for our opinion.  

 

3.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial  

records and Books of Accounts of the Company like, Income Tax, GST, 

Customs, etc.,  as the same were dealt  with under separate audit/s .  

 

4.  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representations 

about the compliance of applicable Laws, Rules and Regulations and 

happening of events.  

 

5.  The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable 

Laws, Rules,  Regulations, Standards and Guideline s is the responsibi lity of 

the Management in terms of Section 134 (5) (f) of the Companies Act,  

2013.   Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on 

test-check basis.  

 

6.  The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the futur e 

viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which 

the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  

 

For  K. Narayana Swamy & Co.,  

   Company Secretaries  

 

 

 

  (K. Narayana Swamy)  

           FCS 1838 / CP 9878 

           Peer Review Cert.  No.1744/2022  

                 UDIN NO F001838F000862687  

Place :  Bengaluru                                                                                    

Date :   31 July 2024 
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Annexure – B to the Board’s Report 

Particulars of Energy Conservation Technology Absorption and Research & 

Development as required under the Companies (Accounts) Rules,  2014  

A. Conservation of Energy  

(i)  The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: 

•  Installation of Grid Resistance Regulator in place of Liquid Resistance 

Controller for to obtain lower speed range and achieved power saving 

of 250KWh. 

•  Installation of 10 KVA solar system for indoor l ighting. Cost of 

installation is KINR 700.  

•  Installation of screw conveyor for mill vent bag fi lter.  Cost of 

installation is KINR 4300.  

•  Utilized wind energy from 84.1% (FY 2022-23) to 86.7% (FY 2023 -

24) instead of conventional energy during the year.  

•  Improved AFR Thermal substitute ratio to conserve energy from fossil 

fuel.  

•  Installation of LED light fittings in place of conventional light 

fittings.  

(ii)  The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy  

•  Variable Frequency Drive (VFD) installed for PA fan & CT fan which 

has resulted in an energy saving of 52.1 Kw/hr.  and accumulated 

savings of 144712 kWh for the period of Aug ’23 to March’24.  

B.  TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION :  

(i)     Efforts made towards technology absorption  –  

•  Installation of Gypsum belt conveyor.  

•  Installation of Auto Blaine’s Apparatus.  

•  Optimized Grinding aid dosage in PPC Grinding.  

(ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost  reduction, product 

development or import substitution  –  

•  All prime locations in the plant are under continuous surveil lance with 

adequate back-up.  

•  Reduction in Deep Pan Conveyor yearly maintenance cost.  

•  Battery being charged with respect to current requirement, periodical  

maintenance along with battery water top -up is sufficient and 

eliminat ion of  heating issue and increased battery life.  

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years 

reckoned from the beginning of the financial year) - Nil  

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development  -  Nil.  
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Annexure - C to the Board’s Report 
 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED  

31 MARCH 2024  

 

1.  A br ief  ou tl ine of  the Company’s  

CSR policy,  includ ing overview of  

projec ts  or  programs proposed  to  

be undertaken and a re ference to  

the web-l ink to  the CSR policy and 

projec ts  or  programs.  

 Pursuant  to  the  provisions of  Sect ion 135  of  the  

Companies Act,  2013  read wi th  Companies (Corporate 

Social  Responsibi l i ty  Policy)  Rules,  2014,  as amended 

from time to  t ime,  the Board of  Directors of  the Company  

on recommendat ion of  the CSR Committee approved a 

CSR Policy.  

Brief  ou tl ine of  the sa id  Pol icy i s  given be low:  

•  The overa ll  ob jec tive  of  the CSR Pol icy of  the 

Company  is  to  promote sustainab le  development of  the  

loca l  communit ies wi th  se t  targe ts  and t imeframes.  

The Policy focuses  on mitigat ing the adversi t ies faced  

by the communit ies and guiding them towards he lping 

themselves.  

•  The Company  takes  up CSR ac tiv i t ies in  key  sectors  

includ ing but  not  l imited to ,  hea lthcare,  education,  

rural  development and  skil l  development,  g iving 

maximum freedom to  the loca l  communi t ies and  

employees  to  evolve  meaningful  in i t ia t ives.  

•  The Company be l ieves  tha t  suppor t ing  the  

development  effor ts  of  local  community ,  addresses  the  

fel t  needs o f  the community  and in  re turn leads to  

greater  ownership and involvement in  maintain ing the 

asse ts  created .  

•  CSR ini t iat ives are  implemented through the 

Company’s own employees .  However ,  i f  required,  the  

Company  may also deploy appropriate  agencies  based  

on thei r  proven credentia ls  in  the area  of  rural  

development to  supplement i t s  effor ts .  

•  The CSR pro jects  are implemented through 

Commit tees compris ing loca l  Company O ff icials  at  a l l  

Plants.  The Committees are chaired by  the  Plan t  Heads  

and have  key  off ic ia ls  representing  Human Resources,  

Welfare and Adminis trat ion Functions a t  the  local  

leve l  as members.  

•  Proposals  sent  by the Implementa t ion  Committees  are  

vetted by  a  Committee  at  the  Corpora te  Off ice together  

with  the f inancia l  a l location and thereaf ter  the  same 

are placed before the CSR Commit tee and the Board of  

Directors for  considerat ion and approval .  

The Policy  i s  p laced on  the Company’s website  and the  

web l ink to  access the same is :  

h t tp : / /www.zu a r i cemen t s . com/ imag es /ZCL_ CSR_ Po l i cy .p d f   
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2.  The Composi t ion of  the CSR Committee as on  31 March  202 4:  

SN Name of Director Designation/Nature 

of Directorship 

Number of 

Meetings of CSR 

Committee held 

during FY24 

Number of meetings 

of CSR Committee 

attended during 

FY24 

1 Mr. Joydeep Mukherjee Chairman 2 2 

2 Ms. Soek Peng Sim Member 1 1 

3 Mr. Vimal Kumar Jain Member 2 2 

3.  Provide the web-l ink where  

Composi t ion of  CSR Commit tee ,  

CSR Policy and  CSR projec ts  

approved by the Board are  

disclosed on the websi te  of  the  

Company .  

The web- l ink to  access  composit ion of  CSR Commit tee ,  

CSR Policy and CSR projec ts  are approved by the Board  

are as under:  

Composi t ion of  CSR Commit tee :  

ht tp: / /www.zuaricements.com/index.php/our -company 

CSR Policy:  

ht tp : / /www.zuaricemen ts . com/images/ZCL_CSR_Policy .pdf  

CSR Pro jects:  

h t tp: / /www.zuaricements.com/index.php/our -company 

4.  Provide the de ta i l s  o f  Impact  

assessment of  CSR projects  

carr ied out  in  pursuance of  sub -

rule (3)  of  ru le  8  of  the  

Companies (Corporate  Social  

Responsib il i ty  Po licy)  Rules,  

2014,  i f  app licab le.  

Not Appl icab le  

5 .  Detai ls  of  the  amount avai lable  

for  set  off  in  pursuance of  sub -

rule (3)  of  ru le  7  of  the  

Companies (Corporate  Social  

Responsib il i ty  Po licy)  Rules,  

2014 and amount  requ ired for  set  

off  for  the f inancial  y ear ,  i f  any.  

2 .5 Mi ll ions 

6 .  Average ne t  prof i t  of  the  

Company  as  per  sec tion 135(5)  

i .e ,  for  las t  three  f inancia l  years  

(FY2021,  FY2022 and  FY2023).  

INR 822.2  Mil l ions  

7 .  (a) Two percen t  o f  average  net

prof i t  of  the  Company as per

sec tion  135(5) .

(b) Surplus ar i sing ou t  o f  the CSR

projec ts  or  p rogrammes or

act ivi t ies of  the previous

f inancia l  years.

(c) Amount required to  be se t  off

for  the f inancia l  year ,  i f  any.

(d) Tota l  CSR obligat ion for  the

f inancia l  year  (7a+7b -7c) .

INR 16.4 Mil l ions  

Not Appl icab le  

Not Appl icab le  

INR 16.4  Mil l ions  
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8.  (a)   CSR amount spent  o r  unspent for  the f inancial  year :  

Tota l  Amount 

Spent for  the 

Financial  Year  

( In  INR Lakh)  

Amount Unspent  (Rs .  In  Mill ions)  

Tota l  Amount transferred to  

Unspent CSR Account as 

per  sect ion 135(6)  

Amount transferred to  any fund 

spec if ied under  Schedule VII  as  per  

second  proviso to  sec tion 135(5)  

Amount  
Date of  

Transfer  

Name of  

Fund  
Amount  

Date of  

Transfer  

  N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 
 

 (b)   Deta i l s  of  CSR amount spent  aga ins t  ongoing projec ts during  FY2 4: NIL  

 
SN Name 

of the 

Project 

Item 

from the 

list of 

activities 
in 

Schedule 

VII to the 
Act 

Local 

Area 

(Yes/ 

No) 

Location of the 

Project 

Project 

duration 

Amount 

allocated 

for the 

Project 
(In 

Millions) 

Amoun

t spent 

in the 

current 
financia

l Year 

(In 
Million

s) 

Amount 

transferred 

to Unspent 

CSR 
Account for 

the project 

as per 
Section 

135(6) (In 

Millions) 

Mode of 

Implemen

-tation 

Direct 
(Yes/No) 

Mode of 

Implementation 

through 

Implementing 
Agency 

State District Name 

CSR 

Regis-
tration 

Number 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12) 

N.A 

  Total                     
 

 

(c)   Deta i l s  of  CSR amount spen t  aga ins t  other  than ongoing pro jec ts for  the f inancia l  year :  

 

S .  

N o .  

N a m e  o f  t h e  P ro j e c t  I t e m  f r o m  

t h e  l i s t  o f  

a c t i v i t i e s  

i n  

S c h e d u l e  

V I I  t o  th e  

A c t  

L o c a l  

a r e a  

( Y e s /  

N o )  

L o c a t io n  o f  p r o j e c t  A m o un t  

s p e n t  fo r  

t h e  p r o j e c t  

( i n  M I N R )  

M o d e  o f  

i m p l e m e n -

t a t i on  

D i r e c t  

( Y e s / No )  

M o d e  o f  

i m p l e m e nt a t io n  –  

T h r ou g h  

i m p l e m e nt i ng  

a g e n c y  

S t a t e  D i s t r i c t    N a m e  

C S R  

R e g i s t r a

t i o n  

N u m b e r  

( 1 )  ( 2 )  ( 3 )  ( 4 )  ( 5 )  ( 6 )  ( 7 )  ( 8 )  

 0 1 .  E x p en d i t u r e  to w a rd s  

s t u d en t s  i n  ou r  S c h o o l s  

c o m i ng  f r o m  n e a r b y  

V i l l ag e s .  

I I  Y e s   A n dh r a  P r a d e s h  Y e r r a g u n t l a  5 . 3 1  D i r e c t  -  -  

0 2 .  S c h o l a r s h i p  t o  s t ud e n t s  
a n d  D is t r ib u t i o n  o f  

e d u c a t io n a l  k i t s  

I I  Y e s  M a h a r a s h t r a  So lap u r  

0 . 7 3  D i r e c t  -  
-  

    K e r a l a  C o c h i n  

0 3 .  Pro v id in g  sup p o r t  to  
o th e r  Sch o o l s  

i n f ra s t ru c tu re  su ch  a s  

Desk s  an d  Ben ch es  e tc .  
an d  p ro v id ing  

i n f ra s t ru c tu re  su p p o r t  t o  

Sch o o l s  su ch  a s  
reh ab i l i t a t io n  o f  Sch oo l s ,  

co n s t ru c t i o n  o f  

c l a s s ro o ms  an d  bo u nd a ry  

wa l l .  

I I  Y e s   A n dh r a  P r a d e s h  Y e r r a g u n t l a  

0 . 8 9  D i r e c t  -  -  
   T e l a ng a n a  S i t a p u r a m 

M a h a r a s h t r a  S o l a p u r  

T a m i l  N a d u  T h i r uv a l lu r   
 

  

29



0 4 .  Dev e lo p men t  o f

i n f ra s t ru c tu re  fo r

An g an wad i  cen t re s  a t

n ea rb y  v i l lag es  and

Co mp u te r  t each e r .  

I I  Y e s  A n dh r a  P r a d e s h  S i t a p u r a m 

1 . 3 5  D i r e c t  -  -  
T e l a n g an a  S i t a p u r a m 

M a h a r a s h t r a  S o l a p u r  

0 5 .  Org an iz in g  Hea l t h  Ch eck  

-u p  Camp s  i n c lu d ing  

d ep loy men t  o f  mo b i l e  v an  
an d  p ro v i s ion  o f  

med ic in es .  

I I  Y e s   A n dh r a  P r a d e s h  Y e r r a g u n t l a  

0 . 2 1  D i r e c t  -  -  
M a h a r a s h t r a S o l a p u r  

0 6 .  Free  Med ic in es  

Di s t r i b u t i o n  t h ro u gh 

Hea l t h  Cen t re s  and  
su p p o r t  fo r  v i l l age  

amb u lan ce .  

I  Y e s  A n dh r a  P r a d e s h  Y e r r a g u n t l a  

1 . 7 1  D i r e c t  -  -  
T e l a n g an a  S i t a p u r a m 

M a h a r a s h t r a  S o l a p u r  

K e r a l a  C o c h i n  

0 7 .  Op era t i o n a l  Co s t  o f  Sk i l l  

Dev e lo p men t  Tra in ing  

Cen t re .  

 I Y e s   A n dh r a  P r a d e s h  Y e r r a g u n t l a  

1 . 0 9  D i r e c t  -  -  T e l a n g an a  S i t a p u r a m 

M a h a r a s h t r a  S o l a p u r  

0 8 .  Pro v id in g  i n f ra s t ru c tu re  

l i k e  co n s t ru c t io n  o f

Co mmu n i ty  Ha l l ,  Wa te r  

Tan k ,  Ro ad s ,  Pu b l i c  

To i l e t  and  Bu s  S t an d  e t c .  

X Y e s   A n dh r a  P r a d e s h  Y e r r a g u n t l a  

8 . 0 1  D i r e c t  -  -  

T e l a n g an a  S i t a p u r a m 

M a h a r a s h t r a  S o l a p u r  

T a m i l  N a d u  T h i r uv a l lu r  

0 9 .  Pro v id in g  d r ink in g  wa te r  

fac i l i t i e s .  

X Y e s  A n dh r a  P r a d e s h  Y e r r a g u n t l a  0 . 2 4  D i r e c t  -  -  

1 0 .  Pro mo t io n  o f  Sp o r t s  i n  

Sch o o l  and  fo r  y o u th  in  

n ea rb y  v i l l ag es .  

VII Y e s  M a h a r a s h t r a  S o l a p u r  0 . 1 5  D i r e c t  -  -  

1 1 .  Co mmu n i ty  co n t in g ency  

fu n d .  

X Y e s  A n dh r a  P r a d e s h  Y e r r a g u n t l a  

1 . 5 6  D i r e c t  -  -  M a h a r a s h t r a  S o l a p u r  

T a m i l  N a d u  T h i r uv a l lu r  

T o t a l  2 1 . 24  

(d) Amount spen t  in  Administrat ive Overheads

(e) Amount spen t  on Impact  Assessment ,  i f  applicable

 ( f )   To tal  amount  spent  for  the Financial  Year  (8 b+8c+8d+8e)  

Nil  

Not Appl icab le  

MINR 21.24  

(g) Excess amount for  se t  off ,  i f  any :

Sl. 

No, 

Particulars Amount 

(In Millions) 

( i)  Two percent  of  average net  prof i t  of  the  Company as per  sec tion  135(5) 16.4  

( i i )  Tota l  Amount spen t  for  the Financial  Year  21.2  

( i i i )  Excess  amount spent  for  the f inancia l  year  [ ( i i ) - ( i) ]  4 .8  

( iv)  
Surplus ar i sing  out  of  the CSR pro jec ts or  Programmes or  Act ivi t ies of  

the prev ious f inancial  years,  i f  any  

Not 

Appl icab le  

(v)  Amount avai lab le for  se t  off  in  succeeding f inancia l  years [ ( i i i ) - ( iv)]  4 .8* 

*In  addi t ion  to  the excess spending of  MINR 4.80,  The  Company  has a lso carr ied fo rward  amount of 
excess spending of  INR 20.71  lakhs in  respec t  o f  FY22 and  INR 4.4  Lakhs  in  respec t  of  FY23.  

Thus ,  the aggregate amount avai lable for  se t  off  during FY24 is  INR 73.11 Lakhs .
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9.  (a)  Detai ls  of  Unspent CSR amount  for  the preceding  three f inancia l  years:  Ni l  

 

Sl. 

No. 

Preceding 

Financial 

Year 

Amount 

Transferred 

to Unspent 

CSR Account  

under section 

135(6)  

 

(In Millions) 

Amount spent 

in the 

reporting 

Financial Year 

 

 

 

(In Millions) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 

under Schedule VII as per section 135(6), 

in any 

Amount 

remaining to be 

spent in 

succeeding 

financial years  

 

 

 

(In Millions) 

Name of 

the Fund 
Amount 

Date of 

transfer 

N.A 

 Total       
 

    (b)  Deta i l s  of  CSR amount spen t  in  the f inancia l  year  for  ongoing projec ts preced ing f inancia l  

year(s) :  Ni l  

Sl. 

No. 

Project 

ID 

Name of 

the Project 

Financial 

Year in 

which the 

project was 

commenced 

Project 

duration 

Total 

amount 

allocated 

for the 

project  

 

 

(In 

Millions) 

Amount 

spent on 

the project 

in the 

reporting 

financial 

Year  

(In 

Millions) 

Cumulative 

amount spent 

at the end of 

reporting 

Financial 

Year 

 

(In Millions) 

Status of the 

project - 

Completed/ 

Ongoing 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

N.A 
 

10.  In  case of  crea tion  or  acqui s i t ion of  capi ta l  asse t ,  furnish the detai ls  

rela t ing to  the asse t  so  c reated or  acquired through CSR spent  in  the 

f inancia l  year .  

(Asse t-wise deta i l s) :  

(a)  Date o f  creat ion or  acqui si t ion of  the cap ita l  asse t( s) .  

(b)  Amount of  CSR spen t  f or  crea tion or  acquis i t ion of  capi tal  asset .  

(c)  Deta i l s  of  the ent i ty  or  public  au thori ty  or  benefic iary under  whose 

name such capi ta l  asse t  is  regis tered,  the ir  address e tc .  

(d)  Prov ide de ta i l s  of  the cap ita l  asse t( s)  created or  acquired ( inc luding  

comple te address and locat ion of  the capi tal  asset) .  

Nil  

 

 

Not Appl icab le  

 

11 .  Specify the reason(s) ,  i f  the Company has fa i led  to  spend two per  cent  o f  

the average  net  prof i t  as  per  sec tion 135(5) .  

Not Appl icab le  

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                              

Place :  Gurugram                                  Joydeep Mukherjee                                 

Date:   31  Ju ly 2024                         Managing Director  &  Chairman -  CSR Committee          
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ANNEXURE ‘D’ TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT  

 

Information pursuant  to  Rule  5 (2)  o f  Companies  (Appointment  and Remunerat ion of  Manageria l  Personnel )  Rules ,  2014   

 

  S l .  

No .  
Na me  

Des ig na t io n  /  na t ure  

o f  du t i e s  
Qua l i f i ca t io n  

Ag e /  

y ea rs  

Ex per i ence    

(No .  o f   

y ea rs )  

Da te  o f  

co mmencement  o f  

emplo y ment  

Na me  o f  l a s t  emplo y er ,  po s t  he ld  

a nd per io d  

(1 )  (2 )  (3 )  (4 )  (5 )  (6 )  (7 )  (9 )  

(A)    EMPLOYED THROUGHOUT THE YEAR  

01 .  Joydeep  Mukher jee  Ch ie f  Execu t ive  

Of f ice r  & Manag ing  

Di rec to r  

Mas te r ’ s  degree  in  In te rna t iona l  

Bus iness  & Marke t ing ,  

Bache lo r ’ s  Degree  (Honors )  and  

Top  Mgmt .  Leve l  Execu t ive  

Educa t ion  Programs  in  IMB 

Lausanne ,  CH & ISB 

Hyderabad .  

57  34  01 /11 /2022 RR Kabe l  Limi ted ,  Mumbai    

Ch ie f  Opera t ing  Of f ice r   

3  Years   

02 .  V.V. L.  Naras imha  Rao  Pres iden t  (Sa les  & 

Marke t ing )  

MBA -  Marke t ing  PGPMax  58  36  18 /03 /2010  Andhra  Cements  

Sen io r  Genera l  Manager  

7  Months  

03 .  Vimal  Kumar  Choudhary  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Of f ice r  

& Head -Log is t i c s  

Char te red  Accoun tan t  51  

 

28  01 /12 /2018  He ide lbe rgCement  Ind ia  Ltd .  

VP -  Commerc ia l  

8  Years  

04 .  G.  Gopa la  Kr i shna  Mur thy  

 

Head  Works  (SPM)  B.Tech .  (Mech) ,  PGDMM  59  37  16 /03 /2015  Bhara th i  Cement  Corpora t ion  

Limi ted   

S r .  Genera l  Manager   

6 .9  Years  

05 .  P .  Jaga theesan  

 

Head  -  Sa fe ty   

(HC Ind ia )  

B.Tech .  -  Civ i l  & M.Tech .  -  

( Indus t r i a l  Sa fe ty )  

56  28  19 /02 /2014  Da lmia  Cement   

DGM & Corpora te  Head  (Safe ty )  

1  Year  
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 (1 )  (2 )  (3 )  (4 )  (5 )  (6 )  (7 )  (9 )  

06 .  T r iv ik ram Dasu  

 

Head  -  Lega l   

(HC Ind ia ) )  

B.Com. ,  LLB,  ACS  59  39  06 /07 /2015  Mythra  Energy  Ind ia  Limi ted   

Ass t .  Vice  Pres iden t  

3  Years  

07 .  Gan ta  Nag  Bhushan  Rao  Head  Works  

(Yer ragun t la  Plan t )  

M.Sc . ,  eMBA  56  36  01 /03 /2021  He ide lbe rgCement  Ind ia  Ltd .  

Un i t  Head -Jhans i  

3 .9  Years  

08 .  Raghuna th  L Sh i rke  Head  -  Main tenance  

(S i t apuram Plan t )  

Dip .  In  Mech .  Engg . ,  MBA 

( Indus t r i a l  Sa fe ty )  

61  41  16 /01 /2014  Ul t ra tech  Cement  Limi ted   

Ass t .  Vice  Pres iden t   

19  Years  

09 .  K.V.  S ubrahmanyam 

Sarma  

Sr .  Genera l  Manager  -  

Mines  
BE (Mines ) ,   

MBA ( HR)  

57  33  14 /03 /2012 Parasak th i  Cement  Indus t r i e s  Ltd .  

Genera l  Manager -Mines  

7  Years  

10 .  R.K.  Nagesh  S r .  Genera l  Manager  -  

Techn ica l  Suppor t  
B.Tech .  53  28  10 /05 /2004  Guja ra t  Ambuja  Cement  Ltd .  

Ass t .  Manager  

9  Years  

(B)    EMPLOYED PART OF THE YEAR  

11 .  Y.  Nagendra  Prasad  Plan t  Head  (CGU)  B.Tech .  (EEE)  59  36  01 /09 /1987  No  pas t  exper ience  a s  he  s ta r t ed  

h i s  employment  wi th  ZCL.  

12 .  C.V.  Ra jesh  Reg iona l  Manager  

(Kera la )  

B.A ( B.L) ,  MBA  

 

54  28  02 /02 /2015  Che t t inad  Cement  Corpora t ion  

Limi ted   

Ass t .  Vice  Pres iden t  

5  Years  

 

Notes:    1 .  Remunerat ion  has  b een  ca lcu lat ed  in  accordance wi th  the  appl i cab le  prov is ion s  of  th e  Co mpanies  Ac t ,  2013 .  

             2 .  None of  th e  employees  i s  a  r e la t ive  of  any  Director  o f  the  C omp an y.  

  3 .  None of  the  employees  s t a t ed  above,  ho ld  more  than  two percen t  o f  th e  equi ty  shares  e i ther  by  h imsel f  o r  a long  wi th  h is  spo use and  dep endent  

ch i ld ren .  
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the Members of Zuari Cement Limited 
 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Zuari Cement Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss 
including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of material accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed 
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at 31 March 2024, and its loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for 
the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”) 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  
 
Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon 
 
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Company’s board report but does not include the 
standalone financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.  
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect 
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
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presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone 
financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.   
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system with reference to 
standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by the management.   
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.   

 
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including 

the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.   

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 
 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable that:  
 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  
 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as 
it appears from our examination of those books.  
 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.  
 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.  
 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.  
 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in Annexure B.  
 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to 
its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 
 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us:  

 
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone 

financial statements – Refer Note 33 to the standalone financial statements.  
 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses. 

 
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the Company. 
 
iv.    (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds have 

been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign 
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 
(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds have 
been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding 
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
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(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material misstatement. 

 
v.   The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.  
 
vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software 

for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 31 March 2024, which has a feature 
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across 
any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.  

 
        As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended is applicable for the 

Company only with effect from 01 April 2023, therefore, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory 
requirements for record retention is not applicable for financial year ended 31 March 2024.  

 
 
For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 000050N/N500045  
 
 
 
Rajeev Kumar Saxena 
Partner  
Membership No.: 077974 
UDIN: 24077974BKEZVX8130 
 
Place: Gurugram 
Date: 31 July 2024 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report   
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of the 
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Zuari Cement Limited on the standalone 
financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 2024) 
 

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets. 
 
(a) (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 
 
(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment under 
which property, plant and equipment and right of use assets are verified in a phased manner over a period 
of three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature 
of its assets. In accordance with this program, certain property, plant and equipment were verified during 
the year and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification. 
 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based 
on the examination of the registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to us, we report 
that, the title deeds of all the immovable properties (which are included under the head ‘property, plant and 
equipment’) (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly 
executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company except for the immovable properties 
in earlier years as mentioned in Note 3 of the standalone financial statements for which registration of title 
deeds is in progress. 
  
(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of use assets) and 
intangible assets during the year, being under cost model. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(d) of 
the Order are not applicable. 
  
(e)There are no proceedings which have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding 
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) (as amended in 2016) 
and Rules made thereunder.      
                          

(ii) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the 
year, except for goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties. For stocks lying with third parties at the 
year-end, written confirmations have been obtained by the management and in respect of goods-in-transit, 
the goods have been received subsequent to year end. According to the information and explanations 
given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, we are of the opinion that the coverage 
and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate and no material discrepancies of 10% 
or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on physical verification as compared to 
the book records. 
 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has not been 
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ₹ 5 crores, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions 
on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) (b) of the Order are not 
applicable. 

 
(iii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted loans to 

companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties, the details of which are as 
follows. The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or advances in the nature of loans, 
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties. 

 
Particulars Loans (Rs. in lakhs) 
Aggregate amount granted/provided during the year  
- Subsidiary 
- Joint Ventures 
- Associates 
- Others 

1,100.00 
- 
- 
- 

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect 
of above cases 
- Subsidiary 
- Joint Ventures 
- Associates 

 
 

15,492.50 
- 
- 
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Particulars Loans (Rs. in lakhs) 
- Others - 

 
(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the investments made, 
and the terms and conditions of grant of all loans are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the Company’s interest. 
 
(c) In respect of loans granted, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been 
stipulated and the principal amount including interest is not due for repayment currently. 

 
(d)There is no overdue amount in respect of loan granted to such companies, firms, LLPs or any other 
parties. 

 
(e)According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans or advances in the nature 
of loans granted which has fallen due during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(e) of the 
Order are not applicable.  

 
(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans which are either repayable 
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. 
 

(iv)  According to the to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any 
transaction covered under Sections 185 of the Act. However, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of Sections 186 of the Act in respect of investments and loans. Further, the Company has not 
given, guarantees and security. 
 

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted any deposits 
nor the amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year and further the Company had no 
unclaimed deposits at the beginning of the year within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) 
of the Order are not applicable. 
 

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Company’s products. We have broadly reviewed the books of 
account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, 
as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section 
(1) of Section 148 of the Act in respect of Company’s products and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the 
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained by the Company. However, we have 
not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or 
complete. 
 

(vii)     (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular in 
depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employee state 
insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, to the 
appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the 
year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable.  

 
      (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-

clause (a) that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except 
for the following cases: 
 

Name of 
statue 

Nature of 
dues 

Amount (INR 
in lakhs)* 

Period to which the amount 
relates 

Forum where dispute is 
pending 

Andhra 
Pradesh 
General 
Sales Tax 
Act, 1957 

Cenvat credit 26.07 April 2011- March 2015 Tribunal 
Sales tax 124.44 2012-13 Tribunal 

Andhra 
Pradesh 
Value Added 
Tax Act, 2005 

Entry tax 7.21 2015-17 Appellate Authorities 
Entry tax 58.73 2012-2017 Tribunal 

Entry tax 178.33 2009-2011 Hon’ble High Court, Andhra 
Pradesh 

Sales tax 2.37 2016-2017 Appellate Authorities 
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Name of 
statue 

Nature of 
dues 

Amount (INR 
in lakhs)* 

Period to which the amount 
relates 

Forum where dispute is 
pending 

Sales tax 7.92 2014-15 Tribunal 

Central 
Excise Act, 
1944 

Cenvat credit 14.13 2007-08 Appellate Authorities 
Cenvat credit 608.62 2015-2017 Tribunal 

Cenvat credit 3,468.44 January 2005 to June 2018 Tribunal 

Excise duty 12.42 September 2016 to June 2017 Appellate Authorities 

Excise duty 569.23 2005-08 and January 2012 to 
March 2015 

Tribunal 

Central Sales 
Tax Act, 1956 

Central sales 
tax 

3,061.79 2002-2005 Tribunal 

Centrals sales 
tax 

1,275.07 1997-1999 Hon’ble High Court, Andhra 
Pradesh 

Central sales 
tax 

150.10 1994-95 Hon'ble High Court, 
Telangana 

Odisha Entry 
Tax, 1999 

Entry tax 28.98 2005-06, 2011-2013 Tribunal 

Odisha Sales 
Tax act, 1947 

Sales tax 1.43 1991-92 and 2004-05 Tribunal 

Sales tax 16.73 1992-93 Hon’ble High Court, Odisha 

Tamil Nadu 
General 
Sales Tax 
act, 1959 

Sales tax 1.55 July 2012 to June 2013 Appellate Authorities 

Sales tax 26.44 2011-12 Tribunal 

The Customs 
Act, 1962 

Customs duty 1,631.30 January 2012 to December 2012 Hon’ble Supreme Court 

Customs duty 616.04 February 2012 to February 2013 Tribunal 

The Finance 
Act, 1994 

Service tax 981.59 2011 to 2016 Tribunal 

The Income 
Tax Act, 1961 

Income tax 2,479.63 2009-10 and 2013-14 Appellate Authorities 

Income tax 51.24 2017-18 Tribunal 

  3,723.87 2015-16 and 2016-17 Assessing Officer 

  5,093.28 2008-09, 2010-11 and 2012-13 Hon’ble High Court 

 
*Net off of amount paid under protest 

 
(viii)     According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions relating to previously 

unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).  
 

(ix)    (a)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.  
   
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has not been 
declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority. 

                                            
(c)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans were applied 
for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.  
 
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial 
statements of the Company, we report that the Company has used funds raised on short-term basis 
aggregating to INR 11,953.81 lakhs for long-term purposes.  

 
(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial 
statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person 
on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary. Further, the Company does not have any 
associates or joint ventures. 
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(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report 
that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary. 
Further, the Company does not have any associates or joint ventures. 
 

 (x)     (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise moneys by way of 
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the Order are not applicable. 
  
(b)  During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally). Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(x)(b) of the Order 
are not applicable.  
 

(xi)   (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by 
the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.  
 

         (b) No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed 
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) with the Central Government, 
during the year and upto the date of this report. 
 
(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the 
Company during the year. 
 

(xii)     According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xii)(a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable. 
 

(xiii)     In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the 
related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have 
been disclosed in the standalone financial statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting 
standards. Since, the Company is unlisted public company and is a wholly-owned subsidiary, therefore, 
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 
 

(xiv)   (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an internal 
audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 
 
(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period under 
audit. 
 

(xv)   In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with them covered 
under Section 192 of the Act.  
 

(xvi)   (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xvi) (a) of the Order are not applicable. 
 
(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial or housing finance activities during the year.  
 
(g) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (“CIC”) as defined in the regulations made by the 
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable. 
 
(d) The Group has no CIC which are part of the Group.  

 
(xvii)    The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately 

preceding financial year.  
 
(xviii)   There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.  
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(xix)     According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing 
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has 
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the 
audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as 
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this 
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on 
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the 
Company as and when they fall due. 

 
 (xx)    The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)and there 

are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the 
Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the 
said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year. 

 
(xxi)   The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial 

statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report. 
 
 

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 000050N/N500045  

 
 
 

Rajeev Kumar Saxena 
Partner  
Membership No.:  077974 
UDIN: 24077974BKEZVX8130 

 
Place: Gurugram 
Date: 31 July 2024 
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report   
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of the 
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Zuari Cement Limited on the standalone 
financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 2024) 
 
Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 
under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Zuari Cement 
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the company’s 
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and deemed to be prescribed under 
Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable 
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit 
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 
 

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 
 

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system with 
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone 
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financial control 
with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 
 
For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 000050N/N500045  
 
 
 
Rajeev Kumar Saxena 
Partner  
Membership No.: 077974 
UDIN: 24077974BKEZVX8130 

 
Place: Gurugram 
Date: 31 July 2024 
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Zuari Cement Limited
Standalone Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)

Particulars Notes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 165,168.36                     175,221.13                 
Capital work-in-progress 3 4,893.60                         9,378.75                     
Right-of-use-asset 44 4,949.28                         5,471.60                     
Goodwill 4 -                                  2,300.00                     
Intangible assets 4 158.94                            114.08                        
Investment in subsidiaries 5 10,541.93                       10,541.93                   
Financial assets

Investments 5 23.62                              23.62                          
Loans 6 15,492.50                       13,193.23                   
Other financial assets 7 12,289.40                       9,225.20                     

Other non-current assets 8 13,753.55                       12,812.36                   
227,271.18                     238,281.90                 

Current assets
Inventories 9 30,252.23                       26,257.58                   
Financial assets

Trade receivables 10 11,833.27                       8,180.48                     
Cash and cash equivalents 11 1,825.84                         4,009.53                     
Other financial assets 7 664.28                            632.05                        

Other current assets 8 12,538.42                       9,547.26                     
57,114.04                       48,626.90                   

Total assets 284,385.22                     286,908.80                 

Equity and liabilities
Equity 
Equity share capital 12 27,496.14                       27,496.14                   
Other equity 13 120,044.27                     125,033.61                 

147,540.41                     152,529.75                 
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 14 3,104.51                         4,498.49                     
Lease liabilities 44 1,474.80                         1,622.42                     
Other financial liabilities 15 100.09                            103.37                        

Provisions 16 9,172.00                         8,431.45                     
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 17 11,443.16                       13,942.97                   
Other non-current liabilities 18 487.15                            520.18                        

25,781.71                       29,118.88                   
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 14 41,995.25                       38,286.67                   
Lease liabilities 44 535.92                            701.16                        
Trade payables 19
-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises                              333.05                         424.69 

                        45,918.26                    41,878.39 

Other financial liabilities 20 15,043.02                       16,438.25                   
Provisions 16 481.14                            530.13                        
Other liabilities 21 6,756.46                         7,000.88                     

111,063.10                     105,260.17                 
Total liabilities 136,844.81                     134,379.05                 
Total equity and liabilities 284,385.22                     286,908.80                 

Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Zuari Cement Limited
Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045 CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

Rajeev Kumar Saxena Joydeep Mukherjee Vimal Kumar Jain
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 077974 DIN: 06648469

Place: Gurugram
Date:  July 31, 2024 Vimal Kumar Choudhary Arjun Dutta

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

DIN: 09561918
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Zuari Cement Limited
Standalone Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)

Particulars Notes For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Income
Revenue from operations 22 239,100.04                   229,626.30                   
Other income 23 2,134.49                       2,636.42                       
Total Income (I) 241,234.53                   232,262.72                   

Expenses
Cost of raw material and packing material consumed 24 38,078.73                     36,473.01                     
Change in inventories of  finished goods and work-in-progress 25 425.48                          (730.26)                         
Employee benefits expense 26 9,777.18                       8,658.32                       
Finance costs 27 4,159.58                       2,603.56                       
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 23,538.66                     12,263.55                     
Other expenses 29 174,814.31                   181,427.44                   
Total Expense (II) 250,793.94                   240,695.62                   

Loss before tax (I) - (II) (9,559.41)                      (8,432.90)                      
Tax expense
   Current tax -                               -                               

Income tax expense/(income) relating to earlier years (2,036.40)                      -                               
   Deferred tax charge/(credit) (2,511.64)                      (2,833.69)                      
Total tax expense 17 (4,548.04)                      (2,833.69)                      
Loss after tax for the year (III) (5,011.37)                      (5,599.21)                      

Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or 
loss in subsequent periods:

Remeasurement gain/(losses) of net defined benefit plans 33.86                            56.65                            
Income tax effect (11.83)                          (19.79)                          

22.03                            36.86                            

(4,989.34)                      (5,562.35)                      

30
Basic (1.82)                            (2.04)                            
Diluted (1.82)                            (2.04)                            

Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Zuari Cement Limited
Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045 CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

Rajeev Kumar Saxena Joydeep Mukherjee Vimal Kumar Jain
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 077974 DIN: 06648469 DIN: 09561918

Place: Gurugram
Date:  July 31, 2024 Vimal Kumar Choudhary Arjun Dutta

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Earnings per share [nominal value of share INR 10 (March 31, 2023: INR 10)]

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (III) + (IV)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (IV)
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Zuari Cement Limited
Standalone Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)

a. Equity Share Capital:

Number Amount

At April 1, 2022 274,961,400            27,496.14 
Increase/(decrease) during the year -                     -                    
At March 31, 2023 274,961,400            27,496.14 
Increase/(decrease) during the year -                     -                    
At March 31, 2024 274,961,400            27,496.14 

b. Other equity:
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Securities premium 
account

Retained earnings Items of OCI Total

At April 1, 2023 37,201.93                      87,851.76                  (20.08)                125,033.61        
Loss for the year -                                 (5,011.37)                  -                     (5,011.37)           
Other comprehensive income (refer note 13) -                                 -                            22.03                  22.03                 
At March 31, 2024 37,201.93                      82,840.39                  1.95                    120,044.27        

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Securities premium 
account

Retained earnings Items of OCI Total

At April 1, 2022 37,201.93                      93,450.97                  (56.94)                130,595.96        
Loss for the year -                                 (5,599.21)                  -                     (5,599.21)           
Other comprehensive income (refer note 13) -                                 -                            36.86                  36.86                 
At March 31, 2023 37,201.93                      87,851.76                  (20.08)                125,033.61        

Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Zuari Cement Limited
Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045 CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

Rajeev Kumar Saxena Joydeep Mukherjee Vimal Kumar Jain
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 077974 DIN: 06648469 DIN: 09561918

Place: Gurugram
Date:  July 31, 2024 Vimal Kumar Choudhary Arjun Dutta

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Equity shares of INR 10 each  issued, subscribed and fully paid

Attributable to the equity holders

Attributable to the equity holders
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Zuari Cement Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)

Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax (9,559.41)                   (8,432.90)                      
Adjustment to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23,538.66                   12,263.55                     
Interest income (1,532.47)                   (2,310.22)                      
Interest expense 4,096.39                     2,532.94                       
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment net (146.70)                      16.47                            
Sundry balances written off -                              12.72                            
Unrealised foreign exchange differences (gain)/loss 132.43                        250.77                          
Provision no longer required written back (235.80)                      (129.79)                         
Operating profit before working capital changes 16,293.10                   4,203.54                       
Movements in working capital:
   Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 4,048.32                     (9,218.73)                      
   Increase / (decrease) in long-term provisions 774.41                        135.00                          
   Increase / (decrease) in short-term provisions (48.99)                        (5.96)                             
   Increase / (decrease) in other long-term liabilities (33.03)                        (33.03)                           
   Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities (1,195.49)                   (568.11)                         
   Increase / (decrease) in other short term liabilities (244.42)                      (1,560.23)                      
   Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables (3,652.79)                   1,270.51                       
   Decrease / (increase) in inventories (3,994.65)                   6,837.15                       
   Decrease / (increase) in long-term loans (1,100.00)                   (1,000.00)                      
   Decrease / (increase) in other financial assets (3,049.47)                   (1,351.71)                      
   Decrease / (increase) in other non-current assets (72.56)                        (148.58)                         
   Decrease / (increase) in other current assets (2,991.16)                   2,268.36                       
Cash generated from operations 4,733.27                     828.21                          
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) 1,994.52                     (418.66)                         
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 6,727.79                     409.55                          

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment including capital work-in-progress and capital advances (6,632.36)                   (9,289.26)                      
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment 340.93                        -                                
Redemption/ maturity of bank deposits -                              217.38                          
Interest received (47.35)                        139.25                          
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (6,338.78)                   (8,932.63)                      

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long-term borrowings (16,286.67)                 (16,980.77)                    
Proceeds from short-term borrowings (net) 18,035.59                   31,720.31                     

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (refer note 44) (982.23)                      (939.27)                         
Interest paid (3,339.39)                   (1,653.99)                      
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities (C) (2,572.70)                   12,146.28                     

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (2,183.69)                   3,623.20                       
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,009.53                     386.33                          
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,825.84                     4,009.53                       

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

<< This space is intentionally left blank >>
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Zuari Cement Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS) For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cheque on hand 1,608.82                     1,654.02                       
Balance with banks:
   - On current accounts 217.02                        2,355.51                       
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 11) 1,825.84                     4,009.53                       

Explanatory notes to statement of cash flows
1. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

As at 1 April 2023 2,323.58                     42,785.16                     
Additions 486.15                        18,035.59                     
Deletion for the year -                              -                                
Accretion of interest 183.22                        565.68                          
Payments (982.23)                      (16,286.67)                    
At 31 March 2024 2,010.72                     45,099.76                     

As at 1 April 2022 2,650.22                     27,356.13                     
Additions 551.89                        31,720.31                     
Deletion for the year (128.72)                      -                                
Accretion of interest 189.46                        689.49                          
Payments (939.27)                      (16,980.77)                    
At 31 March 2023 2,323.58                     42,785.16                     

Summary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Zuari Cement Limited
Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045 CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

Rajeev Kumar Saxena Joydeep Mukherjee Vimal Kumar Jain
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 077974 DIN: 06648469 DIN: 09561918

Place: Gurugram
Date:  July 31, 2024 Vimal Kumar Choudhary Arjun Dutta

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Non-Current Borrowing 
(including current 

maturities)

Liability arising from financing activities

Lease Liabilities (refer 
note 44)
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Zuari Cement Limited 
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS) 
 ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

1. Corporate Information 
 
Zuari Cement Limited (hereinafter referred to as “ZCL” or “the Company”) is domiciled in India. The 
Company is engaged in the manufacturing of cement and trading of other construction materials. The 
Company was a joint venture between Zuari Global Limited (‘ZGL’) and Ciments Français S.A. (‘CF’, part of 
the Italcementi Group) up to May 31, 2006. Pursuant to CF’s acquisition of 50% stake held by ZGL, the 
Company became a wholly owned subsidiary of CF (‘the Holding Company’), effective May 31, 2006. The 
Ultimate Holding Company upto June 30, 2016 was Heidelberg Materials Italia Cementi S.P.A (erstwhile 
Italcementi S.p.A) the ultimate holding company. 
 
Heidelberg Materials AG (Erstwhile HeidelbergCement AG) has completed the acquisition of Italcementi 
S.p.A from Italmobiliare and become the ultimate holding Company w.e.f. July 1, 2016. 
 
Ciments Français S.A which was 100% subsidiary of HM Italia cementi S.P.A, merged with HM Italia cementi 
S.P.A w.e.f  30th November 2022 as per Merger plan approved by merger resolution. Subsequent to Merger, 
HM Italia cementi pursaunt to law and by way of universal succession acquired all the assets and liabilities of 
Ciments Français S.A. 
 
The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 31 July 
2024. 

 
2. Material accounting policies 
 

The material accounting policies applied by the Company in preparation of its financial statements are listed 
below: 
  

2.1 Basis of preparation 
 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 
(“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
- certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding 
financial instruments), and 
'- defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value 

 
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies  
 
a. Business combination of entities under common control  

 
Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the company or ultimately controlled by the 
same party or parties both before and after the business combination, and that control is not transitory, are 
accounted for using the pooling of interests method as follows:  

 
I. The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.  
II. No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. 

Adjustments are only made to harmonise accounting policies.  
III. The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if the 

business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial 
statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination, however, where the business 
combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated only from that 
date. 
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Zuari Cement Limited 
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS) 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

IV. The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is 
aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the transferee 
or is adjusted against general reserve.  

V. The identity of the reserves is preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of 
the transferee. The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus 
any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of 
the transferor is transferred to goodwill in accordance with Ind AS Transition Facilitation Group 
(ITFG) clarification Bulletin 9. 

As provided in the Scheme, the assets and liabilities including reserves of Transferor Companies as on the 
Appointed Date were recorded by the Company at their existing carrying values and the amalgamation was 
accounted for in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard ( Ind AS) 103, 'Business Combinations of 
entities under Common Control - Appendix C' under Pooling of Interest method for the year 2019 as notified 
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per ITFG-9. 
 

b. Current versus non-current classification 
 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. 
An asset is treated as current when it is: 
 
 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
 Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period  
 
All other assets are classified as non-current.  
 
A liability is current when: 
 
 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or  
 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 

reporting period 
 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 
 
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and 
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 
 

c. Foreign currencies 
 
The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency.  
 
Transaction and balances 
 
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at their respective functional currency spot rates at the 
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. 
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Zuari Cement Limited 
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS) 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot 
rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary 
items are recognized in profit or loss. 

 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss 
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the 
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or 
loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively). 
 

d. Fair Value Measurement 
 
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. 
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
 
 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 
 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 
 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant 
that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. 
 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
 
 Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities  

 
 Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
 

 Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable 

 
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period. 
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Zuari Cement Limited 
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS) 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above. 
 
 

e. Revenue Recognition 
 

Revenue is recognized on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services to a 
customer for an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for 
those goods or services.  

 
Sale of goods  
Revenue from the sale of the Company’s core products Cement is recognized when delivery has taken place and 
control of the goods has been transferred to the customer, and when there are no longer any unfulfilled 
obligations.  

 
The customer obtains control of the goods when the significant risks and rewards of products sold are 
transferred to the customer, being at the point the goods are delivered to and accepted by the customer, 
according to the specific delivery terms that have been agreed with the customer.  

 
Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any discounts, 
price concessions, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government such as goods 
and services tax, etc. Accumulated experience is used to estimate the provision for such discounts, price 
concessions and rebates. Revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable a significant reversal 
will not occur.  

 
No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with credit terms largely ranging between 30 
days and 60 days depending on the specific terms agreed to with the customer concerned, which is consistent 
with market practice.  
 
Contract Balances  
 
Trade receivables  
 
A trade receivable is recognized when the products are delivered to a customer as this is the point in time that 
the consideration becomes unconditional because only a passage of time is required before the payment is due.  

 
Contract assets, which is a company’s right to consideration that is conditional on something other than the 
passage of time. Currently there are no contract assets.  

 
Contract liabilities  
Contract liabilities, which is a company’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the 
entity has already received consideration, relate mainly to advance payments from customers which are     
disclosed in note no.21. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the  
contract.  

 
Rendering of services Income from services rendered is recognized based on agreements/arrangements with 
the customers as the service is performed and there are no unfulfilled obligations. 

 
f. Taxes 

 
Current income tax 
 
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to 
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
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substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable 
income. 
 
Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either 
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax 
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes 
provisions where appropriate. 
 
Deferred tax 
 
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.  
 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to 
be utilised. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the 
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
 
Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in 
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 
 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same 
taxation authority. 
 
Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, 
which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax 
liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be 
measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.  

 
g. Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’) 

 
Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Property, plant and 
equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such 
cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term 
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are 
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful 
lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the 
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance 
costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. 
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The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/part of the asset separately, if the 
component/part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining asset. These identified components are depreciated over their useful lives; 
the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.  
 
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the asset as follows: 

 
Asset category Useful lives estimated by the management (years) 
Buildings  10-60 
Plant and machinery 3-25 
Railway sidings 15 
Furniture and fittings 10 
Motor vehicles 8 
Office equipment 3 – 25 
Computer hardware 5 – 6 

 
Further, the management has estimated the useful lives of asset individually costing INR 5,000 or less to be 
less than one year, which is lower than those indicated in schedule II. The management believes that these 
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the asset are likely to 
be used. 

 
Cost of mineral reserve embedded in the cost of freehold mining land is depreciated in proportion of actual 
quantity of minerals extracted to the estimated quantity of extractable mineral reserves. Freehold non mining 
land is not depreciated. 
 
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized. 
 
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at 
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
 
Cost of assets not ready for their intended use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work-in-
progress. 
 

h. Intangible Assets 
 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if 
any.  
 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. 
 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment 
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the 
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each 
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic 
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and 
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another 
asset. 
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Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss 
when the asset is derecognized. 
 
Costs incurred on acquisition of intangible assets are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over 
useful lives, as mentioned below:- 
 
 

Asset category Useful lives estimated by the management (years) 
Computer Software  5 

 
i. Borrowing Cost 

 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the 
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of 
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also 
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

 
j. Government grants and subsidies 

 
Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all 
attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income 
on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are 
expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected 
useful life of the related asset. 
 
When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value 
amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of 
the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistance are provided by 
governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of 
this favourable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognized and 
measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value 
of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy 
applicable to financial liabilities. 

 
Government grants in the nature of Sale tax incentive are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the 
year in which they become receivable. 

 
k. Inventories 

 
Raw materials, packing materials, coal and fuel, stores and spares are valued at the lower of cost and net 
realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written 
down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above 
cost. Cost of raw materials, packing materials, coal and fuel, stores and spares is determined on a weighted 
average basis and includes cost incurred in bringing the material to its present location and condition. Stores and 
spares which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are accounted as inventories. 

 
Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct 
materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost of 
finished goods includes excise duty. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis. 
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Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a weighted 
average basis. 
 
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

 
l. Leases 

 
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the 
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the 
asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. 
 
Company as a lessee  
 
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases 
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 

 
i) Right-of-use assets 

 
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying 
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets 
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or 
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a 
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:  
 

Asset Category Useful lives estimated by the management (years) 
Land & Building                                 0-24 
Furniture and Fixtures                                 1 -4 
Motor vehicles and other equipment                                            2 

 
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the 
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. 
 
The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (k) 
Impairment of non-financial assets.  
 

ii)    Lease Liabilities 
 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present 
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments 
(including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that 
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease 
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the 
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company 
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are 
recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or 
condition that triggers the payment occurs. 
 
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the 
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the 
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commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced 
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a 
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments 
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the 
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 
 
The Company’s lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (refer note 44). 
 

iii)      Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 
 
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and 
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do 
not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of 
office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 
Company as a lessor 
 
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership 
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis 
over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to 
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. 

 
m. Impairment of non-financial assets 

 
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the 
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s 
(CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual 
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or 
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is 
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 
 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no 
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated 
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value 
indicators. 
 
Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss. 
 
For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an 
indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication 
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment 
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable 
amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the 
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, 
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the 
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. 
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Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be 
impaired. 
 

n. Provisions 
 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of the 
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  
 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.  
 
Provision for mine reclamation expenses 
 
The Company provides for the estimated expenses to reclaim the quarries used for mining. The total estimate of 
restoration expenses is apportioned over the estimate of mineral reserves and a provision is made based on the 
minerals extracted during the year. 
 
Site restoration expenses are incurred on an ongoing basis and until the closure of the mine. The actual expenses 
may vary based on the nature of reclamation and the estimate of reclamation expenses. 
 

o. Retirement and other employee benefits 
 
Superannuation Fund (being administered by Trusts) and Employees’ State Insurance Corporation (ESIC) are 
defined contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period 
when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the 
contribution payable to the respective funds. 
 
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no 
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. If the contribution payable to the scheme 
for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to 
the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already 
paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized 
as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash 
refund. 
 
The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a 
separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using 
the projected unit credit method. 
 
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet 
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.  
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 
 
Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of: 
 
 The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and  
 The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs 
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company 
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit 
and loss: 
 
 Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-

routine settlements; and  
 Net interest expense or income 

 
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term 
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it 
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company 
treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit 
for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial 
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken 
to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the entire leave as a current 
liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months 
after the reporting date. 

 
p. Financial instruments 

 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity. 
 
Financial Assets 
 
Initial recognition and measurement 
 
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by 
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date 
that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 
 
Subsequent measurement 
 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 
 
 Debt instruments at amortised cost 
 Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
 Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
 Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

 
Debt instruments at amortised cost 
 
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 
 

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual 
cash flows, and 

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

 
This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 
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part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising 
from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other 
receivables. 
 
Debt instrument at FVTOCI 
 
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 
 

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
the financial assets, and 

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 
 
Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date 
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the 
Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the 
P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from 
the equity to P&L Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using 
the EIR method. 
 
Debt instrument at FVTPL 
 
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for 
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 
 
In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or 
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a 
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not 
designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL. 
 
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized 
in the P&L. 
 
Equity investments 
 
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held 
for trading and contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 
103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an 
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The 
Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 
recognition and is irrevocable. 
 
If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the 
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to 
P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within 
equity. 
 
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized 
in the P&L.  
 
Derecognition 
 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) 
is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when: 
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 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to 
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ 
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, 
or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, 
but has transferred control of the asset. 

 
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor 
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the 
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The 
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that 
the Company has retained. 
 
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower 
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could 
be required to repay. 
 
Impairment of financial assets 
 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement 
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 
 
a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, 
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance  
The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on: 
 

 Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and 

The application of simplified approach does not require the group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it 
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial 
recognition. 
 
For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines 
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has 
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk 
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument 
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the 
entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. 
 
Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life 
of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default 
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 
 
ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the 
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the 
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider: 
 

 All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar 
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the 
expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to 
use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument 
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 Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the 
contractual terms 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ 
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ 
in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below: 
 

 Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease 
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those 
assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets 
write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying 
amount. 

 Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the 
balance sheet, i.e. as a liability. Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments 
measured at FVOCI, the expected credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance 
sheet, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if 
the asset was measured at amortised cost is recognized in other comprehensive income as the 
‘accumulated impairment amount”  

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments 
on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is 
designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis. 

 
The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., 
financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.               

 
   Financial Liabilities 

 
Initial recognition and measurement 
 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, 
as appropriate. 
 
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
 
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade other payables loans and borrowings. 
 
Subsequent measurement 
 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are 
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.  
 
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss. 
 
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as 
such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities 
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designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. 
These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the 
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through 
profit and loss. 
 
Loans and borrowings 
 
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 
recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortisation 
process.  
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit 
and loss. 

 
This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer note 14. 
 
Derecognition 
 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The 
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
 
Offsetting of financial instruments 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is 
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net 
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
 

q. Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with 
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 
For the purpose of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined 
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash 
management. Deposits with initial maturity greater than 3 months are considered as cash and cash equivalents 
if the deposits can be converted to cash without significant penalty on principle. 
 

r. Segment reporting 
 
The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacturing of cement and hence entire operation represents a 
single primary segment. The company operates within India only and hence geographical segment is not 
applicable to the company. 
 
 

s. Contingent liabilities 
 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or 
a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
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required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a 
liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not recognize a 
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. 

 
t. Dividend Distributions  

 
The Company recognizes a liability to make payment of dividend to owners of equity when the distribution is 
authorized and is no longer at the discretion of the Company and is declared by the shareholders. A 
corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity. 

 
u. Earnings per share 

 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the period.  

 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for 
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
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3. Property, plant and equipment
Freehold

non-mining
land**

Freehold
mining
land#

Buildings
Plant and 
machinery

Railway 
sidings##

Furniture 
and fittings

Motor vehicles
Office 

equipment
Computer 
hardware

Total
Capital work in 

progress***

Cost or valuation
At April 1, 2022 6,840.17         6,773.25         58,987.77    136,897.51     23,654.58     627.49         412.61            628.20        460.71      235,282.29       24,767.99           
Additions for the year -                  -                  156.09         25,791.21       236.74          40.72           264.00            69.87          -            26,558.63         11,169.39           
Disposals -                  -                  (0.07)            (9.39)               -                (3.92)            (4.27)               (69.67)        (21.10)       (108.42)             (26,558.63)          
At March 31, 2023 6,840.17         6,773.25         59,143.79    162,679.33     23,891.32     664.29         672.34            628.40        439.61      261,732.50       9,378.75             
Additions -                  -                  1,523.29      8,681.24         -                77.68           -                  -              227.11      10,509.32         6,024.17             
Disposals -                  (175.47)           -               (32.64)             -                -               -                  -             -            (208.11)             (10,509.32)          
At March 31, 2024 6,840.17         6,597.78         60,667.08    171,327.93     23,891.32     741.97         672.34            628.40        666.72      272,033.71       4,893.60             

Depreciation and Impairment
At April 1, 2022 -                  292.96            14,696.77    48,247.62       10,262.70     511.14         310.16            380.45        429.98      75,131.78         -                      
Charge for the year -                  22.37              2,222.23      7,351.73         1,731.97       30.17           32.64              79.92          0.50          11,471.53         -                      
Disposals -                  -                  -               (7.32)               -                (3.61)            (3.94)               (58.02)        (19.05)       (91.94)               -                      
At March 31, 2023 -                  315.33            16,919.00    55,592.03       11,994.67     537.70         338.86            402.35        411.43      86,511.37         -                      
Charge for the year -                  20.98              2,217.35      8,459.72         1,727.41       21.94           33.53              83.57          0.02          12,564.52         -                      
Impairment during the year@ -                  -                  1,634.14      6,169.19         -                -               -                  -             7,803.33           
Disposals -                  -                  (13.87)             -                -               -                  -             -            (13.87)               -                      
At March 31, 2024 -                  336.31            20,770.49    70,207.07       13,722.08     559.64         372.39            485.92        411.45      106,865.35       -                      

Net Block
At March 31, 2023 6,840.17         6,457.92         42,224.79    107,087.30     11,896.65     126.59         333.48            226.05        28.18        175,221.13       9,378.75             
At March 31, 2024 6,840.17         6,261.47         39,896.59    101,120.86     10,169.24     182.33         299.95            142.48        255.27      165,168.36       4,893.60             

@ During the year ended on 31 March 2024, the impairment loss of INR 7,803.33 lakhs represented the write-down value of certain property, plant and equipment in Sitapuram Power Limited to the recoverable amount as a result of
technological obsolescence. This was recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The recoverable amount of INR 899.05 lakhs as at 31 March 2024 was based on fair value less cost of disposal.

## The Company has leased out railway sidings under non-cancellable lease. Refer note 33(b).

# Cost of mineral reserve embedded in the cost of freehold mining land has been depreciated in proportion of actual quantity of minerals extracted to the estimated quantity of mineral reserve.

** Awarded land admeasuring Acres 1284.31 situated in Yerraguntla Mandal includes value of INR 516.21 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 516.21 lakhs) forming part of conveyance deed dated 23 March 1998 that was presented to the
jurisdictional Registering Authority for registration. The registering authorities have kept the conveyance deed pending for want of payment of the additional stamp duty levied by them. Since then the matter was under litigation. The
additional stamp duty was paid by the Company and the document was registered vide Registration No. 7927/2021 by District Registrar, Kadapa covering Ac.1278.75 and leaving aside Acres 5.56 vide refusal order No.1/2021, dated 20 Oct
2021.This order was appealed before District Registrar, Kadapa, being the Appellate Authority. The appeal is pending before the Appellate Authority. Pursuant to the scheme of arrangement between Zuari Industries Limited and the
Company (ZCL), sanctioned by the Honorable High Court of Bombay having bench at Panaji, Goa, on January 12, 2001, the cement undertaking of Zuari Industries Limited stood vested in the Company with effect from April 1, 2000.

*** Capital work-in-progress includes amount paid for the purchase of land at Chennai of INR 671.43 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 671.43 Lakhs). The application for land swapping was submitted on 29/11/2019 as per the Government
order vide no. 5349/LD3(1)/2011-27 dated 04/01/2018 which states that the value of the land proposed to be swapped with leaseland should be of equivalent market value. Accordingly, the land was identified, registered in the name of
Company and the land swapping proposal was submitted to the Government of Tamil Nādu (GoTN). Meanwhile, GoTN changed the regulations for land swapping and the land swapping application was sent to Tahsildar, Ponneri. While
sending the recommendation to the land swapping, the revenue authorities have stipulated to (i) pay differential value of land (ii) payment of lease rent arrears and (iii) obtaining the NOC from the Athipattu village Panchayath. While, the
Company has paid the lease rent arrears, represented that NOC is not required as per the new regulations. The matter is now in the office of District Collector, Thiruvallur for necessary action at his end.
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4. Intangible assets
Goodwill* Computer 

software
Total Capital 

work in 
progress

Cost or valuation
At April 1, 2022 2,300.00         517.31           2,817.31         -             
Additions for the year -                 108.13           108.13            108.13       
Disposals -                 -                 -                 (108.13)      
At March 31, 2023 2,300.00         625.44           2,925.44         -             
Additions for the year -                 74.20             74.20              74.20         
Disposals -                 -                 -                 (74.20)        
At March 31, 2024 2,300.00         699.64           2,999.64         -             

Amortisation/ Impairment
At April 1, 2022 -                 497.40           497.40            -             
Charge for the year -                 13.96             13.96              -             
Disposals -                 -                 -                 -             
At March 31, 2023 -                 511.36           511.36            -             
Charge for the year -                 29.34             29.34              -             
Impairment* 2,300.00         -                 2,300.00         
Disposals -                 -                 -             
At March 31, 2024 2,300.00         540.70           2,840.70         -             

Net Block
At March 31, 2023 2,300.00         114.08           2,414.08         -             
At March 31, 2024 -                 158.94           158.94            -             

INR in Lakhs

Projects in progress Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Total

As at 31 March 2024 2,932.55         992.88           695.11            273.06       4,893.60          
As at 31 March 2023 6,468.38         1,006.07        961.77            942.53       9,378.75          

Project execution plans are modulated as per requirement on  annual basis and all the projects are executed as per rolling annual plan.

Capital work in progress ('CWIP') Ageing Schedule

Amount of CWIP for a period of

<< This space is intentionally left blank >>

*Consequent to the merger of Sitapuram Power Limited (SPL) with the Company in the earlier year, the assets, liabilities and reserves
pertaining to SPL, as appearing in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, immediately before the merger, are recognized at
their carrying values. Accordingly, Goodwill of INR 2,300 Lakhs appearing in the consolidated financial statement of the Company is
recognized at it’s carrying value. During the current year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has carried out the Impairment testing of
Goodwill allocated to SPL. Based on the impairment testing, the recoverable amount of the SPL doesn't exceeds its carrying amount
including goodwill. Therefore, impairment loss of INR 2300 lakhs was recognized against goodwill in the statement of profit and loss
during the year ended March 31, 2024.
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5. Non-current investments 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Investments in Equity Instruments (fully paid)
Subsidiaries
Unquoted equity instruments

                     10,541.93                   10,541.93 

                     10,541.93                   10,541.93 

Others

Unquoted equity instruments

                              2.32                            2.32 

                              6.42                            6.42 

                              8.74                            8.74 

Unquoted preference shares 

                            14.88                          14.88 

                            14.88                          14.88 
                            23.62                          23.62 

(i). Investments in Gulbarga Cement Limited

(ii). Investments in Vena Energy Power Resources Private Limited (formerly known as Energon Power Resources Private Limited)

(iii). Investment in Echanda Urja Private Limited

6. Loans  

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Loan to related parties

Unsecured, considered good

   Inter-corporate loan to Gulbarga Cement Limited*                      15,492.50                   13,193.23 

                     15,492.50                   13,193.23 

* For disclosure required under section 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013, refer note 5(i) and note 32.

The Company during the year ended March 31, 2017 had executed a Shareholders Agreement (SHA) dated April 26, 2016 with Echanda Urja Private Limited (“EUPL”) and
NuPower Renewables Private Limited for the procurement of wind energy upto 10 MKWh. The Company made a further investment of INR 1.10 lakhs during the year ended
March 31, 2018 and INR 1.92 lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2022 in EUPL for the supply of wind energy upto 18.4 MKWh.

The Company during the year ended March 31, 2015 had executed a Share Subscription and Shareholders Agreement (SSHA) dated June 2, 2014 with Energon Power
Resources Private Limited (“EPRPL”) and Energon Renewables Private Limited. Pursuant to the terms of SSHA, the Company has invested a sum of INR 2.32 Lakhs to
acquire 2.89% equity stake and INR 14.88 Lakhs to acquire 2.89% cumulative compulsorily convertible non-participative preference shares in ERPL in the year 2014. This
provide an entitlement of 6 MW dedicated wind energy capacity in EPRPL for the Company.

Non-current

A. 22,496,691 (March 31, 2023: 22,496,691) equity shares of INR 10/- each fully paid up in Gulbarga Cement
Limited ("GCL").[refer note (i)]

A. 22,460 (March 31, 2023: 22,460) equity shares of INR. 10/- each fully paid up of Vena Energy Power
Resources Private Limited [refer note (ii)]

B. 64,182 (March 31, 2023: 64,182) equity shares of INR. 10/- each fully paid up of Echanda Urja Private
Limited. [refer note (iii)]

A. 14,419 (March 31, 2023: 14,419) Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Non-Participative Preference shares of
INR. 100/- each fully paid up in Vena Energy Power Resources Private Limited [refer note (ii)]

The Company during earlier years, has given long term loan of INR 6,848.69 lakhs to Gulbarga Cement Limited which carries an interest at SBI base rate plus 1% per annum.
The loan is repayable in 12 quarterly instalments along with interest accrued after expiry of 10 years from the date of loan. To comply with requirements of Ind AS 109, the
Company has disclosed the loan given at amortised cost. On the date of transition to Ind AS, the difference between the loan given and fair value of the loan amounting to INR
2,067.61 lakhs is accounted as investment in GCL.
  
Owing to delay in execution and commissioning of GCL project, repayment of the loan together with accrued interest was further extended for a period of three years falling
due for repayment from September 2024. GCL during the year ended 31 March 2024 again made a representation to the Company seeking extension of time for repayment of
the loan together with accrued interest for a further period of 3 years on the same terms and conditions as stipulated in the existing said agreements. The Company has
accorded its consent for further extension of 3 years for the repayment of loan. The interest rate on outstanding loan amount amended from 50 bps over and above the 3-year
G-Sec yield to 75 bps over and above the 3-year G-Sec yield with effect from 1 April 2023 and rate of interest will be reset on 1st day of April each year.
 
The Company has given additional term loan of INR 1,100 Lakhs, INR 1,000 Lakhs and INR 400 Lakhs to GCL during the year 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023 and 31
March 2022 respectively for a period of 3 years. As on 31 March 2024, the aggregate loan amount receivable from GCL is INR 16,297.08 lakhs (Comprising principal amount 
of INR 9,348.69 million and accrued interest of INR 6,948.39 lakhs net of TDS).
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7. Other financial assets

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest accrued on other deposits                                  -                                 -   177.15                                                 130.19 

Security deposit (unsecured, considered good) 3,452.95                                           2,843.89                           452.33                        501.86 

VAT/GST Incentive receivables                        8,836.45                     6,381.31                                  -                                 -   

Derivative assets                                  -                                 -                               34.80                               -   

12,289.40                     9,225.20                    664.28                          632.05                       

8. Other assets
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Capital advances 
Unsecured, considered good                           387.85                          61.68 -                               -                            

                          387.85                          61.68 -                               -                            

Other- unsecured, considered good

   Advance income tax, net of provision for tax 2,586.96                                           2,211.49                                  -                                 -   

   Balance with government authorities                             39.50                          39.50                        3,201.22                     1,243.95 

   Amount paid under protest 10,213.86                                         9,845.05                                  -                                 -   

   Employee advances                                  -                                 -                               29.11                          27.60 

   Advance to suppliers

- Considered good                                  -                                 -                          7,179.03                     6,377.31 

- Doubtful                                  -                                 -                             118.85                        118.85 

   Prepaid expenses                           525.38                        654.64                        2,126.91                     1,896.25 

Other receivables                             30.00                          30.00                               2.15                            2.15 

Less: Provision for doubtful receivable                           (30.00)                        (30.00)                                  -                                 -   

                     13,365.70                   12,750.68                      12,657.27                     9,666.11 
Allowances for doubtful advance and deposits                                  -                                 -                            (118.85)                       (118.85)

                     13,753.55                   12,812.36                      12,538.42                     9,547.26 

9. Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Raw materials (includes in transit INR 145.70 lakhs) (March 31, 2023: INR 69.15 lakhs) 2,333.21                       2,426.81                    

Work-in-progress 5,134.40                       5,199.45                    

Finished goods 2,983.32                       3,343.75                    

Consumable stores and spares (includes in transit INR 54.83 lakhs) (March 31, 2023: INR 28.79 lakhs) 19,801.30                     15,287.57                  

30,252.23                     26,257.58                  

Current

Non-current Current

Current

Non-current
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10. Trade receivables

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade receivables             11,799.51               8,136.19 

Receivables from other related parties*                    33.76                    44.29 

            11,833.27               8,180.48 

Break-up for trade receivable:

   Secured, considered good               3,385.71               3,306.05 

   Unsecured, considered good               8,447.56               4,874.43 

   Trade receivables - credit impaired                  544.09                  544.64 

            12,377.36               8,725.12 

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)

   Trade receivables - credit impaired                (544.09)                (544.64)

            11,833.27               8,180.48 

Trade receivables ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2024 INR in Lakhs

 Current but 
not due 

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 
1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables – considered good        8,801.80        2,864.89           47.00          119.58                 -                           -               11,833.27 

Disputed Trade receivables – credit impaired                   -                    -                   -                    -           105.88                  438.21                  544.09 

       8,801.80        2,864.89           47.00          119.58         105.88                  438.21             12,377.36 

As at 31 March 2023  INR in Lakhs 

 Current but 
not due 

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 
1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables – considered good        6,699.22        1,427.45           50.69              3.12                 -                           -                 8,180.48 

Disputed Trade receivables – credit impaired                   -                    -                   -            106.43         178.86                  259.35                  544.64 

       6,699.22        1,427.45           50.69          109.55         178.86                  259.35               8,725.12 

*Includes dues from companies where directors are interested (refer note 32).

11. Cash and cash equivalents

########## ########## March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cheque on hand 1,608.82             1,654.02             

Balance with banks:

   - On current accounts -              -             217.02                2,355.51             

                 -                   -                 1,825.84               4,009.53 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cheque on hand 1,608.82             1,654.02             

Balance with banks:

 - On current accounts 217.02                2,355.51             
              1,825.84               4,009.53 

Current

More than 3 years

More than 3 years

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Non-current Current

Current

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term deposits made for varying periods of upto 3 months, depending on the
immediate cash requirement of the Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.
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12. Share capital 
Number Amount Number Amount

Authorized share capital
At April 1, 2022 348,000,000 34,800.00        140,000,000        14,000.00                      
Increase/(decrease) during the year -                      -                   -                      -                                
At March 31, 2023 348,000,000 34,800.00        140,000,000        14,000.00                      
Increase/(decrease) during the year -                      -                   -                      -                                
At March 31, 2024 348,000,000 34,800.00        140,000,000        14,000.00                      

Issued equity capital

Number Amount
At April 1, 2022          274,961,400 27,496.14                      
Increase/(decrease) during the year -                      -                                
At March 31, 2023          274,961,400 27,496.14                      
Increase/(decrease) during the year -                      -                                
At March 31, 2024          274,961,400 27,496.14                      

(a) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding Company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates is given below

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Heidelberg Materials Italia Cementi S.P.A (formerly 
Italcementi S.P.A) ,the Holding Company

266,461,350        266,461,350                  

Compagine Pour I'Investment Financier En Inde 8,500,000            8,500,000                      
Investcim S.A.S 10                        10                                  
Sax S.A.S 10                        10                                  
Cafipar S.A.S 10                        10                                  
Tercim S.A.S 10                        10                                  
Menaf S.A.S 10                        10                                  

(b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Equity shares of INR 10/- each fully paid

Number Amount Number Amount
Name of the shareholder
Heidelberg Materials Italia Cementi S.P.A          266,461,350 96.91% 266,461,350        96.91%

(c) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares

Heidelberg Materials Italia Cementi S.P.A              266,461,350 96.91%      266,461,350 96.91% -                                

Total 266,461,350             96.91% 266,461,350    96.91% -                                

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2023 is as follows:

No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares

Ciments Français S.A (merged with Italcementi S.P.A*) 266,461,350             96.91% 266,461,350    96.91% -                                

Total 266,461,350             96.91% 266,461,350    96.91% -                                

* Ciments Français S.A which was 100% subsidiary of Heidelberg Materials Italia Cementi S.P.A (formerly Italcementi S.P.A), merged with Heidelberg Materials Italia
Cementi S.P.A w.e.f 30th November 2022 as per Merger plan approved by merger resolution. Subsequent to Merger, Heidelberg Materials Italia Cementi S.P.A pursaunt to
law and by way of universal succession acquired all the assets and liabilities of Ciments Français S.A.

 In the period of five years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date, the Company has not issued any bonus shares or has bought back any shares.

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2024 is as follows:

Promoter name As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 % Change during the 
Year

As at 31 March 2024

Equity Shares Preference Shares

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Out of the equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding Company, ultimate holding Company and their subsidiaries/ associates are as below:

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

As at 31 March 2023 % Change during the 
Year

The Company has not reserved any shares for issue under options and contracts/commitments for sale of shares/disinvestment.

Promoter name
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13. Other equity
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

A) Retained earnings
At the commencement of the year 87,851.76                  93,450.97                  
Add: Profit/(loss) for the year (5,011.37)                   (5,599.21)                   

Closing balance (A) 82,840.39                  87,851.76                  

B) Remeasurement gain/ (losses) of net defined benefit plans, net of tax
At the commencement of the year (20.08)                        (56.94)                        
Additions during the year 22.03                         36.86                         
Closing balance (B) 1.95                           (20.08)                        

Securities premium account 37,201.93                  37,201.93                  
Closing balance (C) 37,201.93                  37,201.93                  

Total  (A+B+C) 120,044.27                125,033.61                

Nature and purpose of reserves:

a) Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited 
purposes in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013. No movement during the 
year.
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14. Borrowings

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

 - BNP Paribas Bank -                                               -   26,800.00           27,300.00           
 - Standard Chartered Bank -                                               -   10,000.00           9,700.00             

-                      -                      36,800.00           37,000.00           
Other loans and advances
Loan repayable on demand (from bank)

-Bank overdraft (unsecured) (refer note (ii))                          -                            -   3,237.87             -                      
Deferred payment liability

              3,104.51               4,498.49 1,957.38             1,286.67             
3,104.51             4,498.49             5,195.25             1,286.67             

The above amount includes
Secured borrowings               3,104.51               4,498.49               1,957.38               1,286.67 
Unsecured borrowings                          -                            -               40,037.87             37,000.00 

              3,104.51               4,498.49             41,995.25             38,286.67 

15. Other financial liabilities March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade Payables                  100.09                  103.37 
100.09                103.37                

16. Provisions

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 34) 559.78                482.20                -                      -                      
Compensated absences -                      -                      481.14                530.13                

559.78                482.20                481.14                530.13                
Others
Provision for litigation (refer note 33(d)) 7,520.84             6,857.87             -                      -                      

1,091.38             1,091.38             -                      -                      
8,612.22             7,949.25             -                      -                      
9,172.00             8,431.45             481.14                530.13                

Non-current

Non-current Current

Provision for site restoration expense (refer note 33(e))

(iii) To promote the industries in backward area (i.e. at Yerraguntla, Andhra Pradesh), Government of Andhra Pradesh, announced an interest free sales tax
loan facility. To avail the facility, the Company has entered into an agreement with the Government of Andhra Pradesh for deferring payment of sales tax
collected during the period February 15, 1999, to February 14, 2013 (fourteen (14) years). The deferred amount will be repaid by the year ended March 31,
2027. The amount repayable within a period of one year from the reporting date, i.e. INR 1,957.38 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 1,286.67 Lakhs) is included
in current maturities of long-term borrowings. It is secured by way of movable and immovable properties of the Company.

As per Ind AS 109, Sales Tax Deferment loan results into an interest-free loan from the government. Accordingly, the Company has retrospectively
measured the sales tax deferral loan as on transition date by arriving at the present value, which is the discounted amount of the loan computed using the
market rate of interest for a similar loan for the period for which the entity is not required to deposit the sales tax amount with the government.

Details of repayment terms, interest and maturity

CurrentNon-current

- Sales tax deferral loan (secured) (refer note (iii))

(ii) The Company has availed unsecured overdraft facilities from Bank, repayable on demand to meet short term working capital requirement. 

Indian rupee short term loan from banks (unsecured) (refer note (i))

(i) The Company has availed unsecured short term loan from Banks to meet working capital requirement at the interest rate in the range of 7.90% to 8.10%.
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17. Income tax & Deferred tax liability

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are:

Statement of Profit or loss : March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge                          -                            -   
Income tax expense/(income) relating to earlier years             (2,036.40)                          -   
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences             (2,511.64)             (2,833.69)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss (4,548.04)            (2,833.69)            

Other comprehensive income:
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the period:
Net (gains)/losses on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 11.83                  19.79                  
Income tax charged to OCI 11.83                  19.79                  

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Accounting profit/(Loss) before income tax (9,559.41)            (8,432.90)            

Total tax charge/(Income) computed on the basis of the applicable rates (3,340.44)            (2,946.79)            

Income tax expense/(income) relating to earlier years (refer note iii below) (2,036.40)            -                      

Deductible expenses for tax purposes (57.82)                 -                      

Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes 812.41                7.81                    

Corporate social responsibility expenditure 74.21                  105.29                

At the effective income tax rate of 47.58% (March 31, 2023: 33.60%) (4,548.04)            (2,833.69)            

Income tax expense/(income) reported in the statement of profit and loss (4,548.04)            (2,833.69)            

Deferred tax liabilities (net)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Deferred tax liability
17,170.25           18,749.69           

Gross deferred tax liability 17,170.25           18,749.69           

Deferred tax asset

Unused tax credits (MAT credit entitlement) - (refer note (i) below) 599.77                599.77                
Unutilised carried forward loss 3,530.43             2,404.42             

1,032.85             1,038.76             

Provision for doubtful debts and advances 180.14                180.33                
Provision for employee related liabilities 383.90                583.44                
Gross deferred tax asset 5,727.09             4,806.72             
Net deferred tax liability 11,443.16           13,942.97           

18. Other non-current liabilities

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income received in advance 487.15                520.18                

487.15                520.18                

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year but allowed for tax purposes
on payment basis

Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization charged for the
financial reporting 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate for March 31, 2024 
and March 31, 2023:

(i) The Company is entitled to avail exemption under section 80IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 from income tax on profits of business.

(i) MAT credits are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of MAT credit to be
utilised during this specified period, i.e. the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward.

The Company reviews MAT credit entitlement at each reporting date and in the current year the Company based on future profit and tax projections believes
that sufficient taxable profits will be generated to utilize the full MAT credit.

(ii) The Government of India on 20 September, 2019 vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019, inserted a new Section 115BAA in the Income
Tax Act, 1961, which provides an option to the Company for paying Income Tax at reduced rates as per the provisions/conditions defined in the said section.
The Company is continuing to provide for income tax at the old rates, based on the available outstanding MAT credit entitlement and various exemptions
and deductions available to the Company under the Income Tax Act, 1961. However, the Company has applied the lower income tax rates on the deferred
tax assets / liabilities to the extent these are expected to be realised or settled in the future period when the Company may be subjected to lower tax rate and
accordingly reversed the net deferred tax liability aggregating INR 4,543.00 lakhs up to 31 March 2023 including INR 1,675.00 lakhs reversed during the
year ended 31 March 2022. 

(iii) During the current year ,the Company has accrued and received pending tax claim of INR 2,036.40 lakhs related to Financial year 2006-07 and 2007-08 
as per final assessment order passed by assessing officer post order of Income tax Appeallate tribunal ('ITAT').
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19. Trade payables
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 41) 333.05              424.69              
Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 45,918.26         41,878.39         

46,251.31         42,303.08         
Trade Payables
 - To related parties (refer note 32) 14,397.03         11,765.38         
 - To others 31,854.28         30,537.70         

46,251.31         42,303.08         
Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2024 INR in Lakhs

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 333.05               -                       -          -                    333.05              
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises 38,248.77           3,640.57              1,347.82 2,681.10           45,918.26         

38,581.82           3,640.57              1,347.82 2,681.10           46,251.31         

As at 31 March 2023 INR in Lakhs

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 424.69               -                       -          -                    424.69              
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises

37,887.40           2,205.15              489.33    1,296.51           41,878.39         

38,312.09           2,205.15              489.33    1,296.51           42,303.08         

20. Other financial liabilities
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

8.10                  -                   
Trade and other deposits 12,858.16         14,046.89         
Payable against purchase of property, plant and equipment 2,176.76           2,384.60           

Derivative liability -                    6.76                  
15,043.02         16,438.25         

21. Other liabilities
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Contract liabilities
Advance from customers 2,213.18           2,091.12           

Income received in advance 33.03                33.03                
Statutory liabilities 4,510.25           4,876.73           

6,756.46           7,000.88           

<< This space is intentionally left blank >>

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

More than 3 years
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
More than 3 years
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22. Revenue from operations
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Sale of products
   Cement 217,517.13             210,805.70                        
   Clinker 17,461.01               15,440.36                          

234,978.14             226,246.06                        

Sales of Services 45.33                      41.81                                 

Other operating revenue
   Scrap sales 363.72                    441.64                               
   Revenue from disposal of hazardous waste 119.52                    131.69                               
   Government grant- SGST incentive (refer note 35) 3,593.33                 2,765.10                            

4,076.57                 3,338.43                            
239,100.04             229,626.30                        

22.1 Disaggregated Revenue Information

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

India 239,054.71             229,584.49                        
Outside India 45.33                      41.81                                 
Total Revenue from contract with customers 239,100.04             229,626.30                        

22.2 Contract Balances
Trade receivables (refer note 10) 11,833.27               8,180.48                            
Contract liabilities (refer note 21) 2,213.18                 2,091.12                            

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 60 days

23. Other income
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Interest income
   On bank deposits 59.81                      1.72                                   
   On inter-corporate loan@ 1,267.79                 703.53                               

   On income tax refund -                          1,469.79                            

   Others 204.87                    135.18                               
Provision no longer required written back 235.80                    129.79                               
Rental income 45.92                      45.92                                 
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment net 165.47                    -                                    
Miscellaneous income 154.83                    150.49                               

2,134.49                 2,636.42                            

<< This space is intentionally left blank >>

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contract with 
customers:

(@ Interest income on inter-corporate loan include interest income of INR 582.61 lakhs (31 March 2023: Interest income of INR 295.21
Lakhs) as per Ind AS 109).

22.3 The performance obligation is satisfied upon supply of goods as and when delivered and accordingly, there is no outstanding
performance obligation as on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

22.4 Sales of product is net of INR 21,345.84 Lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 19,901.66 Lakhs) on account of cash discount, rebates and
incentives given to customers.
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24. Cost of raw material and packing material consumed
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year 2,426.81                 2,306.15                            
Add: Purchases during the year 37,985.13               36,593.67                          
Less: Inventory of materials at the end of the year 2,333.21                 2,426.81                            

38,078.73               36,473.01                          

25. Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Opening stock
   Finished goods 3,343.75                 2,666.51                            
   Work-in-progress 5,199.45                 5,146.43                            

8,543.20                 7,812.94                            
Less: closing stock
   Finished goods 2,983.32                 3,343.75                            
   Work-in-progress 5,134.40                 5,199.45                            

8,117.72                 8,543.20                            
425.48                    (730.26)                             

26. Employee benefits expense*
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023

Salaries, wages and bonus 8,954.34                 7,838.14                            
Gratuity expense (refer note 34) 161.44                    154.99                               
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 501.76                    473.71                               
Staff welfare expenses 159.64                    191.48                               

9,777.18                 8,658.32                            

27. Finance costs*
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023

Interest expense
On term loans and cash credit from banks 3,022.93                 1,209.51                            
On long term borrowings from related party (refer note 32) -                          124.75                               
On lease liabilities (refer note 44) 183.22                    189.46                               
On others# 890.24                    1,009.22                            

Bank charges 63.19                      70.62                                 
4,159.58                 2,603.56                            

28. Depreciation and amortisation
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 20,367.85               11,471.53                          
Depreciation on Right-of-use-asset (refer note 44) 841.47                    778.06                               
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4) 2,329.34                 13.96                                 

23,538.66               12,263.55                          

*Directly attributable expenses in relation to project under construction have been transferred to capital work in progress. (refer note 45

(# Interest on others for the year ended March 31, 2024 include INR 565.68 lakhs (March 31 2023: INR 689.49 Lakhs) represents interest
expenses on sales tax deferral loan as per Ind AS 109)

77



Zuari Cement Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)

29. Other expenses*
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Power and fuel 92,227.38                        101,209.79                      

45,362.57                        43,318.29                        
Consumption of stores, loose tools and spare parts 7,865.32                          9,371.96                          
Rent 534.96                             468.27                             
Rates and taxes 6,698.41                          5,448.73                          
Legal and professional 460.70                             549.04                             
Payment to auditor [Refer note (i) below] 56.88                               57.60                               
Repairs and maintenance:
 - plant and machinery 5,582.53                          4,953.89                          
 - buildings 164.03                             435.76                             
 - others 115.27                             111.02                             
License fee (refer note 32) 2,744.39                          2,590.19                          
Sundry balances written off (gross) -                                  12.72                               
Selling and distribution expenses 3,543.90                          3,622.50                          
Sales commission 1,200.31                          1,063.96                          
Advertisement and sales promotion 1,821.92                          1,575.45                          
Corporate social responsibility (refer note 36) 212.36                             301.30                             
Property, plant and equipment written off 18.77                               16.47                               
Insurance 1,064.44                          1,025.67                          
Traveling and conveyance 662.95                             743.99                             
IT and business support charges 1,474.71                          1,250.95                          
Communication 112.97                             107.80                             
Foreign exchange loss, net 239.01                             623.46                             
Miscellaneous expenses 2,650.53                          2,568.63                          

174,814.31                      181,427.44                      

(i) Payment to auditor For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

As statutory auditor (excluding goods and services tax) 56.00                               56.00                               
Reimbursement of expenses (excluding goods and services tax 0.88                                 1.60                                 

56.88                               57.60                               

*Directly attributable expenses in relation to project under construction have been transferred to capital work in progress. (refer note 45

30. Earnings per share (EPS)

The following reflects the loss and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Loss after tax available to equity shareholders (5,011.37)                        (5,599.21)                        

Net profit for calculation of basic/Diluted EPS (5,011.37)                        (5,599.21)                        

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Basic/Diluted EPS (in lakhs) 2,749.61                          2,749.61                          

Basic and diluted EPS (in INR) (1.82)                               (2.04)                               

Freight outward
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31. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Judgements 

Contingent liabilities 

Estimates and assumptions

(i) Useful lives of property, plant & equipment:

(ii)  Defined benefit plans 

(iii) Fair value measurement of financial instrument

(iv) Mines reclamation expenses:

(v) Taxes

(vi) Impairment of Financial assets

(vii) Provision for inventories

(viii) Leases - estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal, land access and other
claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates regarding the
outcome of future events.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimating uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company has based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market change or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the economic life of an asset/component of an asset.
The useful lives are reviewed by management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged
over the remaining useful life of the assets.

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment defined benefits are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 34.

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments. Refer note 37 of the financials.

In determining the fair value of the Mines Restoration Obligation, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount rates, the expected cost of 
mines restoration and the expected timing of those costs. 

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income.
Given the nature of business, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could
necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The
amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the
taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions
prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Management reviews the aged inventory on a periodic basis. This review involves comparison of the carrying value of the aged inventory item with the
respective net realisable value. The purpose is to ascertain whether an allowance is required to be made in the financial statements for any obsolete and
slow-moving items. Management believes that adequate allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories has been made in the financial statements.

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease
liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
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32. Related party disclosures

a. Names of related parties and related party relationship
Names of related parties where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have occurred or not:
Ultimate holding Company Heidelberg Materials AG (erstwhile HeidelbergCement AG)

Holding Company Heidelberg Materials Italia Cementi S.P.A (erstwhile Italcementi S.P.A)

Subsidiary Companies Gulbarga Cement Limited

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
Entities under common control HeidelbergCement India Limited ("HCIL")

HC Trading Asia and Pacific Pte Ltd.
Heidelberg Materials Asia Pte. Ltd. ( erstwhile HC Asia Pte Ltd)

Additional related parties as per the Companies Act, 2013:

Chief Financial Officer Mr. Vimal Kumar Choudhary

Company Secretary Mr. Arjun Dutta w.e.f July 20, 2022 
Mr. Shrinivas Harapanahalli w.e.f April 01, 2021 (till April 04, 2022)

Key Management Personnel Mr. Joydeep Mukherjee, Managing Director  w.e.f  April 01, 2023
Mr. Joydeep Mukherjee, Chief Executive Officer (from November 01, 2022 to March 31, 2023)
Mr. Jamshed Naval Cooper, Managing Director (till March 31, 2023)
Mr. Roberto Callieri, Non-Executive Director (w.e.f 14 March 2024)
Mr. Kevin Gluskie, Non-Executive Director (till March 13, 2024)
Mr. Juan-Francisco Defalque, Non-Executive Director
Ms. Soek Peng Sim, Non-Executive Director
Mr. Sushil Kumar Tiwari, Non-Executive Director (till June 09, 2022)
Mr. Vimal Kumar Jain, Non-Executive Director (w.e.f June 10, 2022)

b. Related party transactions
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered in to with related parties for the relevant years:

i. Transactions during the year#:
Name of related party For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Gulbarga Cement Limited 1,267.79                   703.53                           

Loan Given 1,100.00                   1,000.00                        

HC Trading Asia and Pacific Pte Ltd. Purchase of Consumables (Petcoke) 25,964.21                 17,163.46                      

Heidelberg Materials AG IT and other Business support charges* 1,474.71                   1,273.45                        
Licence fee (refer note 29) 2,744.39                   2,590.19                        
Service income 45.33                        41.81                             

HeidelbergCement India Limited Sale of Clinker 1,789.56                   2,102.01                        
Purchase of Scrap 19.40                        -                                 
Loan repaid to HCIL -                            15,000.00                      
Interest expenses on Loan@ -                            1,073.60                        
Business support charges** 940.97                      935.73                           

Heidelberg Materials Asia Pte. Ltd. Reimbursement of Expense -                            68.00                             

* Out of total amount of INR 1273.45 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2023, an amount of INR 22.50 Lakhs capitalised in the books.
@ Out of total amount of INR 1073.60 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2023, an amount of INR 948.85 Lakhs capitalised in the books.

ii. Balance outstanding at the year end

Nature of transaction March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade receivables HeidelbergCement India Limited 33.76                        44.29                             

Trade payables HC Trading Asia and Pacific Pte Ltd. 10,385.05                 7,958.05                        
HeidelbergCement India Limited 235.60                      211.09                           
Heidelberg Materials Asia Pte. Ltd. -                            67.83                             
Heidelberg Materials AG 3,776.38                   3,528.41                        

Inter-corporate loan (refer note 6) Gulbarga Cement Limited 15,492.50                 13,193.23                      

iii. Transactions with key management personnel^
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Short-term employee benefits                        625.90                             259.07 
Post-employment benefits                          22.14                               12.19 
Total compensation paid to key management personne                        648.04 271.26                           

# All the transactions are inclusive of  tax and duty, wherever applicable.

Nature of transaction

Name of related party

^As the liabilities for gratuity and leave encashment are provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amounts pertaining to the key management
personnel are not included above.

Interest income on loan (including Ind AS 
adjustment) (refer note 23)

** Out of total amount of INR 940.97 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 935.73 lakhs), an amount (excluding GST) of INR 13.82 Lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 52.05 
Lakhs) capitalised in the books.
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33. Commitments and Contingencies

a) Capital Commitments

b) Other commitments (Leases)

Operating lease: Company as lessor

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Not later than one year 12.89                          12.89                           
Later than one year but not later than five years 51.57                          51.57                           
Later than five years 138.59                        151.48                         

c) Contingent Liability
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Sales Tax/Trade Tax/Entry Tax 8,770.82                     8,770.82                      
Excise Duty/Service Tax/CENVAT Credit 5,430.05                     5,901.99                      
Customs duty 942.07                        942.07                         
Income tax matters 15,307.38                   15,307.38                    
Electricity charges 744.29                        1,407.29                      
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt 4,580.15                     4,580.14                      

35,774.76                   36,909.69                    

d) Provision for litigations
Balance as at
Apr 1, 2023

Additions during the 
year charged to 

respective expenses 
head

Amounts 
reversed/utilised 
during the year

Balance as at
Mar 31, 2024

Electricity duty and Charges 899.86                        662.97                      -                              1,562.83                      
(899.86)                      -                           -                             (899.86)                       

Sales tax matters 1,942.77                     -                            -                              1,942.77                      
(1,942.77)                   -                           -                             (1,942.77)                    

Custom duty 1,377.89                     -                            -                              1,377.89                      
(1,377.89)                   -                           -                             (1,377.89)                    

Road Tax 94.86                          -                            -                              94.86                           
(94.86)                        -                           -                             (94.86)                         

Income tax matters 2,542.49                     -                            -                              2,542.49                      
(2,542.49)                   -                           -                             (2,542.49)                    

Total 6,857.87                     662.97                      -                              7,520.84                      
(6,857.87)                   -                            -                              (6,857.87)                     

Note: Figures in brackets are for the previous year

The Company has leased out railway sidings under non-cancellable lease. Total rental income under such leases during the year amounted to INR 12.89 lakhs
(March 31, 2023: INR 12.89 lakhs). Future minimum lease payments expected to receive under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Above provisions have been made against demands raised by various authorities. All these cases are under litigation and are pending with various
authorities; expected timing of resulting outflow of economic benefits cannot be specified. Amount deposited under protest against these provisions are
shown under other assets (refer note 8)

i. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) INR 2,355.98 lakhs (March 31, 2023:
INR 785.16 lakhs).
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e) Movement of provision for site restoration expenses during the year as required by Ind AS 37

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening provision (refer note 16) 1,091.38                           1,091.38                            
Add: Provision made during the year -                                   -                                    
Less: Provision utilised during the year -                                   -                                    
Closing provision 1,091.38                           1,091.38                            

34. A) Gratuity

The Company has two post-employment funded plans, namely Gratuity and Superannuation.

Statement of profit and loss
(i) Net employee benefit expense (recognized in employee cost)

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Current service cost 139.49                              139.12                               
Interest cost on benefit obligation 132.76                              122.56                               
Expected return on plan assets (110.81)                            (106.69)                             
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit & Loss 161.44                              154.99                               

Remeasurement  recognised in other comprehensive income
- changes in demographic assumptions -                                   -                                    
- changes in financial assumptions 8.35                                  (72.74)                               
- change in experience adjustments (50.44)                              16.53                                 
- return on plan asset (excluding interest income) 8.23                                  (0.44)                                 
Amount recognised in OCI (33.86)                              (56.65)                               

Balance Sheet

(ii) Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset)/ liability

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation                       
Particulars
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,000.20                           2,045.20                            
Current service cost 139.49                              139.12                               
Interest cost on benefit obligation 132.76                              122.56                               
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in other comprehensive income
- changes in demographic assumptions -                                   -                                    
- changes in financial assumptions 8.35                                  (72.74)                               
- experience adjustments (50.44)                              16.53                                 
Benefit paid (321.21)                            (250.47)                             
Balance at the end of the year 1,909.15                           2,000.20                            

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,518.00                           1,641.35                            
Interest income 110.82                              106.69                               
Contribution by employer 50.00                                20.00                                 
Return on plan assets recognised in other comprehensive income (8.24)                                0.43                                   
Benefits paid (321.21)                            (250.47)                             
Balance at the end of the year 1,349.37                           1,518.00                            

Details of provision for gratuity
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation                       1,909.15                           2,000.20                            
Present value of plan assets (1,349.37)                         (1,518.00)                          
Net defined benefit liability/(assets) 559.78                              482.20                               

Site restoration expense is incurred on an ongoing basis and until the closure of mines. The actual expenses may vary based on the nature of restoration and the estimate
of restoration expenses.

Reconciliation of the present value of plan assets

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet
for the Gratuity:

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (Act). Under the Act, an employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific
benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. Gratuity being administered by a Trust is computed as 15
days salary, for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of 6 months and is payable on retirement/termination/resignation. The Gratuity plan for the
Company is a defined benefit scheme where annual contributions as demanded by the insurer are deposited to a Gratuity Trust Fund established to provide gratuity
benefits. The Trust Fund has taken a Scheme of Insurance, whereby these contributions are transferred to the insurer. The Company makes provision of such gratuity
asset/liability in the books of accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation as per the projected unit credit method.

The following table shows reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components.

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023
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(iii)  Defined benefit obligation
- Actuarial assumptions
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown below:

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Discount rate 7.20% 7.30%
Salary increase rate 7.50% 7.50%
Mortality table Indian Assured Lives 

Mortality (IALM) (2006-
2008) (modified) Ult.

Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (IALM) (2006-

2008) (modified) Ult.
Withdrawal 8.00% 8.00%
Retirement age Up to DGM- 58 years 

GM and above 60 years
Up to DGM- 58 years 

GM and above 60 years
Note

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables.

- Sensitivity analysis

Gratuity Plan For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Assumptions
Discount rate -0.50% -0.50% 42.87                                44.83                                 

0.50% 0.50% (41.01)                              (42.88)                               
Salary increase rate -0.50% -0.50% (36.73)                              (38.43)                               

0.50% 0.50% 38.02                                39.79                                 

  (iv) Plan assets

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 309.47                              363.04                               
Between 2 and 5 years 1,361.09                           1,372.00                            
Beyond 5 years 1,166.94                           1,178.35                            

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

92.91                                89.84                                 
408.85                              383.87                               

                              501.76                                473.71 
35. Sales tax incentive

36. Corporate social responsibility (CSR):
Details of CSR spent during the financial year:   

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year                               164.44                                296.87 

(b) Amount spent during the year ended March 31, 2024 In cash Yet to be paid Total 
(i) Construction/ acquisition of any assets                             -   -                                   -                                    
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above                       212.36 -                                   212.36                               
Total 212.36                    -                                   212.36                               

(c) Amount spent during the year ended March 31, 2023 In cash Yet to be paid Total 
(i) Construction/ acquisition of any assets                             -   -                                   -                                    
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above                       301.30 -                                   301.30                               
Total 301.30                    -                                   301.30                               

The Company is entitled to benefits under Package Scheme of Incentives - 2007 as notified by Government of Maharashtra for the Manufacturing set up for cement
production facility at Solapur, Maharashtra w.e.f. September 1, 2015. Under the said policy, the Company is entitled for refund of Value Added Tax ( which is now
subsumed on GST), exemption from electricity duty and waiver of stamp duty for a period of seven (7) years which was further extended for two (2) years. Accordingly,
for the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has recognised INR 3,593.33lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 2,765.10 lakhs) as income and disclosed under "Other
operating revenue". 

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5 years (March 31, 2023: 5 years).

The principal plan assets consists of a scheme of insurance taken by the Trust, which is a qualifying insurance policy. As at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, 100%
of the plan assets were vested in investment with insurance company.

Particulars

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumptions shown. 

Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund (being administered by Trust) and Provident fund (contribution to government administered fund) are funded
defined contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due.
There are no other obligations other than the contribution made. The amount recognized as an expense for the Defined Contribution Plans are as under:

B) Superannuation and Provident Fund

Superannuation Fund
Provident Fund

Impact on DBOSensitivity level

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and
demand in the employment market.

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined 
benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:
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37. Fair Value

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Financial assets
Investment 23.62                       23.62                                           23.62                          23.62 
Loans and advances 15,492.50                13,193.23                             15,492.50                   13,193.23 
Trade receivables 11,833.27                8,180.48                               11,833.27                     8,180.48 
Cash and cash equivalents 1,825.84                  4,009.53                                 1,825.84                     4,009.53 
Other financial assets 12,953.68                9,857.25                               12,953.68                     9,857.25 

Financial liabilities
Borrowings 45,099.76                42,785.16                             45,099.76                   42,785.16 
Trade payables 46,251.31                42,303.08                             46,251.31                   42,303.08 
Other financial liability 15,143.11                16,541.62                             15,143.11                   16,541.62 
Lease liabilities 2,010.72                  2,323.58                                 2,010.72                     2,323.58 

38. Fair Value Hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023:

Assets measured at fair value:

FVTPL financial investments

Unquoted instruments March 31, 2024 23.62         -                     -                            23.62                        
March 31, 2023 23.62         -                     -                            23.62                        

39. Financial risk management objectives and policies

A. Market risk

Foreign currency risk

Derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure
a. Derivatives outstanding as at the reporting date

Currency in foreign 
currency 
(in lakhs)

Amount in INR 
(in lakhs)

in foreign currency 
(in lakhs)

Amount in INR (in 
lakhs)

USD 124.68       10,384.60           165.00                      13,620.27                 

124.68       10,384.60           165.00                      13,620.27                 

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts
that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Fair Value

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivable, trade and other payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the
short-term maturities of these instruments.
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Fair value measurement using

Date of Valuation Total
Significant 

observable inputs 
(Level 2)

Significant
unobservable inputs

(Level 3)

Quoted prices in 
active markets 

(Level 1)

Carrying value

The fair value of unquoted instruments is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities.

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise of trade payables, other payables and borrowings. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include security deposits, receivables and cash and cash
equivalents which are part of the Company's operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, liquidity risk, and credit risk. The policies and procedures considered by Company’s senior management to oversee
the management of these risks has been summarised below.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The Company is
exposed to three types of market risk: foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and and other price risk, such as commodity risk.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is
denominated in a foreign currency). As on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, the Company has following  foreign currency exposures:

Forward exchanged contracts (to hedge trade 
payables)
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b. Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date

Currency in foreign 
currency 
(in lakhs)

Amount in INR 
(in lakhs)

in foreign currency 
(in lakhs)

Amount in INR (in 
lakhs)

Trade payables EUR 0.04           3.48                    1.16                          103.52                      
CHF 0.12           10.99                  -                            -                            

14.47                  103.52                      

Advance to supplier EUR 0.03           2.89                    0.15                          13.58                        
2.89                    13.58                        

Due to related parties EUR 35.16         3,159.57             32.05                        2,867.87                   
USD 0.01           0.75                    0.82                          67.83                        

3,160.32             2,935.70                   
*USD – US Dollar, EUR – Euro, CHF - Swiss Franc

Foreign currency sensitivity

5% increase in foreign exchange rates will have the following impact on profit before tax: 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
EUR                      (158.60)                      (147.96)

USD                          (0.12)                          (3.25)

CHF                          (0.65)                               -   

Interest rate risk

Commodity price risk

B. Liquidity risk

As at March 31, 2024 <1 year 1-5 years >5 years Total
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings*    41,995.25               4,117.48                               -                     46,112.73 
Trade payables**    46,251.31                         -                                 -                     46,251.31 
Other financial liabilities    15,043.02                 100.09                               -                     15,143.11 
Lease liabilities         535.92               1,474.80                               -                       2,010.72 

As at March 31, 2023 <1 year 1-5 years >5 years Total
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings*    38,286.67               6,074.86                               -                     44,361.53 
Trade payables**    42,303.08                         -                                 -                     42,303.08 
Other financial liabilities    16,438.25                 103.37                               -                     16,541.62 
Lease liabilities         701.16               1,622.42                               -                       2,323.58 

* Borrowings are shown without Ind AS adjustment.

** Trade payables are repayable on demand

C. Credit risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations towards settlement of financial liabilities. Financial
liabilities are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through use of bank overdrafts, bank loans and other similar credit facilities. 
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted
payments.

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract. The Company is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments. The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty.

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact
on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s policy is to maintain most of its borrowings at fixed rate. The Company’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore
not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in
market interest rates.

Note: If the rate is decreased by 500 bps, profit will increase by an equal amount for March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities which is moderated by optimising the procurement under fuel supply agreement. Its
operating activities require the on-going purchase or continuous supply of coal. Therefore the Company monitors its purchases closely to optimise the price.
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40. Capital management

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings                   45,099.76                   42,785.16 

                  (1,825.84)                   (4,009.53)
Net debt (A)                   43,273.92                   38,775.63 

(B)                 147,540.41                 152,529.75 
(C)=(A)+(B)                 190,814.33                 191,305.38 
(D)= (A)/(C) 22.68% 20.27%

41. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

S.N March 31, 2024

(i)

                       333.05                        424.69 
                              -                                 -   

(ii)                               -                                 -   

(iii)                               -                                 -   

(iv)                               -                                 -   

(v)                               -                                 -   

42. Segment reporting

43. Transfer pricing

Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made with approved counterparties. Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalent, deposits with the banks/financial institutions is
generally low as the said deposits have been made with the banks/financial institutions who have been assigned high credit rating by international and domestic
rating agencies.

The Company is predominantly engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of cement, which constitutes a single business segment and is governed by
similar set of risks and returns. The operations of the Company primarily cater to the market in India, which the management views as a single segment. The
management monitors the operating results of its single segment for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.

The Company is domiciled in India. The Company’s revenue from operations from external customers primarily relate to operations in India and all the non-
current assets of the Company are located in India.

-Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises (Not overdue)
-Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amounts of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

The Company maintains the information and documents as required under the transfer pricing regulations under Section 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
The management is in the process of updating the transfer pricing documentation for the financial year 2023 - 2024 and is of the view that its transactions are
at arm’s length and the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of
provision for taxation.

Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed in line with the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit
quality of a customer is assessed through internal evaluation which takes into account the financial parameters, past experience with the counterparty and
current economic/market trends. Individual credit limits are thus defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly
monitored and any shipments to major customers are generally covered by advances, security deposits, bank guarantees etc. Trade receivables are consisting
of a large number of customers. The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer.

Particulars March 31, 2023

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the
end of each accounting year

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest
bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents.

Equity attributable to equity share holder

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached
to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current
period.

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Capital and debt
Gearing ratio
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44 Leases

Right-of-use assets

Particulars  Land & Buildings Furniture & Fixture  Vehicles  Total 
At 1 April 2022 7,570.26                   186.29                      703.29                     8,459.84              
Additions for the year 335.67                      -                           216.22                     551.89                 
Disposals (275.39)                    -                           -                           (275.39)                

At 31 March 2023 7,630.54                   186.29                      919.51                     8,736.34              

Additions for the year 486.15                      -                           -                           486.15                 

Disposals -                           -                           -                           -                       

At 31 March 2024 8,116.69                   186.29                      919.51                     9,222.49              

Depreciation/ Amortization

At 1 April 2022 1,756.87                   80.36                        629.11                     2,466.34              

Depreciation Expenses 605.41                      38.52                        134.13                     778.06                 

Prepaid rent amortisation 167.00                      -                           -                           167.00                 

Disposals (146.66)                    -                           -                           (146.66)                

At 31 March 2023 2,382.62                   118.88                      763.24                     3,264.74              

Depreciation Expenses 679.70                      38.52                        123.24                     841.47                 

Prepaid rent amortisation 167.00                      -                           -                           167.00                 

Disposals for the year -                           -                           -                           -                       

At 31 March 2024 3,229.32                   157.40                      886.48                     4,273.21              

Net book value

At 31 March 2023 5,247.92                   67.41                        156.27                     5,471.60              

At 31 March 2024 4,887.37                   28.89                        33.03                       4,949.28              

Lease Liability
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

At 1 April                    2,323.58                2,650.22 
Additions for the year 486.15                     551.89                 
Deletion for the year -                           (128.72)                
Accretion of interest 183.22                     189.46                 
Payment of principal (982.23)                    (939.27)                
At 31 March 2,010.72                  2,323.58              
Current                       535.92                   701.16 

Non-Current                     1,474.80                1,622.42 

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 39B.

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is in the range of 5.20% to 9.15%, with maturity between 2024-2044.

.

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 841.47                     778.06                 

Interest expense on lease liabilities 183.22                     189.46                 

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 534.96                     468.27                 

Total amount recognised in statement of profit or loss 1,559.65                  1,435.79              

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the movements during the year:

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:
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Particulars  Opening 
Balance as at 

01.4.2023 

 Additions during 
the year 

 Capitalised 
during the 

Year 

 Closing Balance 
as at 31.03.2024 

Salary, Wages, Bonus and Allowances                23.51 20.25                                      43.76                           -   
Workmen & Staff Welfare Expenses                  3.17 1.36                                          4.53                           -   
Stores and Spares Parts                  8.25 7.70                                        15.95                           -   
Rent                  5.73 0.63                                          6.36                           -   
Rates and Taxes                  7.54 -                                           7.54                           -   
Insurance                  8.01 -                                           8.01                           -   
Legal & Professional expenses (including Retainers fees)                38.86 -                                         38.86                           -   
Interest on loan (net of interest income)              208.16 -                                       208.16                           -   
Miscellaneous Expenses                42.31 6.04                                        48.35                           -   
Other expenses                  6.08 0.36                                          6.44                           -   
Total              351.62                       36.34               387.96                           -   

 46.  Standards notified but not yet effective

There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective, upto the date of issuance of the Company's financial statements. 

47.  Additional Statutory Information

(v)  The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with
the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or

(viii)  Ratio Analysis and its elements :- 

The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(vii) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

45. Capital work in progress includes Nil (previous year: INR 2,859.45 Lakhs) towards setting up of Waste Heat Recovery (WHR) Power Plant at its
clinkerisation unit at Yeraguntla plant, Andhra Pradesh, adjacent to the Kilns to generate power from waste heat. During the year, the Company has
capitalized following expenses of revenue nature to the cost of fixed assets/Capital work in progress which are incurred during construction period on
substantial expansion of existing units/new projects/intangible assets of the Company. Consequently, expenses disclosed under the respective notes are
net of amount capitalised by the company. 

(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property.

(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
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Zuari Cement Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)

Ratio Analysis:

S.
N

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 % change

1 Current ratio (in times) Current Assets Current Liabilities             0.51             0.46 10.9%

2 Debt- Equity Ratio (in times) Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity             0.31             0.28 10.7%

3 Debt Service Coverage ratio (in times) Earnings before Depreciation, 
Finance cost and Tax

Interest on long term debt + 
Principal repayment within next 
12 months

            0.40             0.16 150.0%

4 Return on Equity ratio (%) Net Profits after taxes Average Shareholder’s Equity -3.3% -3.6% 0.3%

5 Inventory Turnover ratio (in days) Cost of goods sold Average Inventory             6.70             6.20 8.1%

6 Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (in days) Revenue from operation (incl. 
GST)

Average Trade Receivable           12.13           11.09 9.4%

7 Trade Payable Turnover Ratio (in days) Total Operating Cost (incl. 
GST)

Average Trade Payables           56.15           58.87 -4.6%

8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio (in times) Net sales = Total sales - sales 
return

Working capital = Current assets 
– Current liabilities

          (4.36)            (4.00) 9.0%

9 Net Profit ratio (%) Net Profit Net sales = Total sales - sales 
return

-2.1% -2.5% 0.4%

10 Return on Capital Employed (%) Earnings before interest and 
taxes

Capital Employed = Tangible Net 
Worth + Total Debt + Deferred 
Tax Liability

-2.6% -2.8% 0.2%

11 Return on Investment (%) Interest (Finance Income) Investment 7.1% 5.0% 2.1%

Notes:- The Company’s Debt-Service Coverage ratio improved mainly due to increase in EBIDTA.

<< This space is intentionally left blank >>
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Zuari Cement Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)

48. Previous year figures

As per our report of even date

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Zuari Cement Limited
Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045 CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

Rajeev Kumar Saxena Joydeep Mukherjee Vimal Kumar Jain
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 077974 DIN: 06648469 DIN: 09561918

Place: Gurugram
Date:  July 31, 2024 Vimal Kumar Choudhary Arjun Dutta

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year’s classification. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the Members of Zuari Cement Limited 
 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Zuari Cement Limited (“the Holding 
Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), which 
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated  financial 
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies (“the consolidated  financial statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed 
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of 
the Group as at 31 March 2024, of consolidated loss, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated 
changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”) 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon 
 
The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the board report but does not include the consolidated 
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.  
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements  
 
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these 
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act, that give a true and fair view of the 
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, 
consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of 
preparation of the consolidated  financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included 
in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 
do so. 
 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the 
financial reporting process of the Group. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated 
financial statements.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.   
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system with reference to 
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.   
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.   
 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are 
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such 
entities or business activities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the 
independent auditors. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, to the extent applicable, we report that: 
 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements.  

 
(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 

consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books and the reports of the other auditors.  

 
(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 

Comprehensive Income, and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement 
of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.  

 
(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.   
 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 
31 March 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Group, none of the directors of the 
Group companies is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act.  

 
(f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the 

Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure A.   
 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Holding Company to its 
directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 
 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us:   

 
i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated 

financial position of the Group– Refer Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. 
 

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts. 
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary incorporated in India. 

 
iv. (a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which are companies 

incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented 
to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding 
Company or subsidiary to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Holding Company or subsidiary (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 
(b). The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which are companies 
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented 
to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Holding 
Company or subsidiary from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or subsidiary 
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 
(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our or other auditors’ notice that has caused us or other auditors 
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material 
misstatement. 

 
v. There is no dividend paid or declared by the Group during the year.  
 
vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Group has used an accounting software for 

maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 31 March 2024, which has a feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across 
any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.  

 
     As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended is applicable for the 

Group only with effect from 01 April 2023, therefore, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements 
for record retention is not applicable for financial year ended 31 March 2024. 

                                                                      
 
For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 000050N/N500045  
 
 
 
Rajeev Kumar Saxena 
Partner  
Membership No.: 077974 
UDIN: 24077974BKEZVY1051 
 
Place: Gurugram 
Date: 31 July 2024 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report   
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of the 
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Zuari Cement Limited on the consolidated 
financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 2024) 
 
Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 
under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the company as of and for the year 
ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
of Zuari Cement Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding 
Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”) which are companies incorporated in India, 
as of that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group which are companies incorporated 
in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ the 
ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, 
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit 
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements of the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 
 
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the Group have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system with 
reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on internal control 
with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 
 
For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 000050N/N500045  
 
 
 
Rajeev Kumar Saxena 
Partner  
Membership No.: 077974 
UDIN: 24077974BKEZVY1051 
 
Place: Gurugram 
Date: 31 July 2024 
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Zuari Cement Limited
Consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)

Particulars Notes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 165,880.95                     175,937.31                 
Capital work-in-progress 3 47,534.83                       51,856.56                   
Right-of-use-asset 43 4,949.28                         5,471.60                     
Goodwill 4 1,916.28                         4,216.28                     
Intangible assets 4 320.29                            324.12                        
Financial assets

Investments 5 23.62                              23.62                          
Other financial assets 6 13,084.90                       9,510.00                     

Other non-current assets 7 15,301.08                       14,296.96                   
249,011.23                     261,636.45                 

Current assets
Inventories 8 30,459.17                       26,421.15                   
Financial assets

Trade receivables 9 11,833.27                       8,180.48                     
Cash and cash equivalents 10 1,857.84                         4,042.79                     
Other financial assets 6 664.28                            632.05                        

Other current assets 7 12,544.59                       9,549.20                     
57,359.15                       48,825.67                   

Total assets 306,370.38                     310,462.12                 

Equity and liabilities
Equity 
Equity share capital 11 27,496.14                       27,496.14                   
Other equity

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 12 119,519.44                     124,833.37                 
Non-controlling interests 12 22,093.13                       23,281.75                   

169,108.71                     175,611.26                 
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 13 3,104.51                         4,498.49                     
Lease liabilities 43 1,474.80                         1,622.42                     
Other financial liabilities 14 100.09                            103.37                        

Provisions 15 9,172.00                         8,436.16                     
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16 11,443.16                       13,942.97                   
Other non-current liabilities 17 487.15                            520.18                        

25,781.71                       29,123.59                   
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 13 41,995.25                       38,286.67                   
Lease liabilities 43 535.92                            701.16                        
Trade payables 18
-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises                              333.05                         424.69 

                        46,204.19                    42,219.67 

Other financial liabilities 19 15,162.68                       16,557.91                   
Provisions 15 481.23                            530.90                        
Other liabilities 20 6,767.64                         7,006.27                     

111,479.96                     105,727.27                 
Total liabilities 137,261.67                     134,850.86                 
Total equity and liabilities 306,370.38                     310,462.12                 

Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Zuari Cement Limited
Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045 CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

Rajeev Kumar Saxena Joydeep Mukherjee Vimal Kumar Jain
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 077974 DIN: 06648469

Place: Gurugram
Date:  July 31, 2024 Vimal Kumar Choudhary Arjun Dutta

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

DIN: 09561918
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Zuari Cement Limited
Consolidated Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)

Particulars Notes For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Income
Revenue from operations 21 239,100.04                   229,626.30                   
Other income 22 868.43                          1,939.90                       
Total Income (I) 239,968.47                   231,566.20                   

Expenses
Cost of raw material and packing material consumed 23 38,078.73                     36,473.01                     
Change in inventories of  finished goods and work-in-progress 24 382.11                          (788.02)                         
Employee benefits expense 25 9,803.91                       8,691.45                       
Finance costs 26 4,164.69                       2,607.98                       
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 23,590.94                     12,315.85                     
Other expenses 28 175,020.71                   181,750.74                   
Total Expense (II) 251,041.09                   241,051.01                   

Loss before tax (I) - (II) (11,072.62)                    (9,484.81)                      
Tax expense
   Current tax -                               -                               

Income tax expense/(income) relating to earlier years (2,036.40)                      -                               
   Deferred tax charge/(credit) (2,511.64)                      (2,833.69)                      
Total tax expense 16 (4,548.04)                      (2,833.69)                      
Loss after tax for the year (6,524.58)                      (6,651.12)                      

Loss attributable to non controlling interest (NCI) (1,188.62)                      (826.29)                         
Loss attributable to owners of the parent (III) (5,335.96)                      (5,824.83)                      

Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or 
loss in subsequent periods:

Remeasurement gain/(losses) of net defined benefit plans 33.86                            56.65                            
Income tax effect (11.83)                          (19.79)                          

22.03                            36.86                            

(5,313.93)                      (5,787.97)                      

29
Basic (2.37)                            (2.42)                            
Diluted (2.37)                            (2.42)                            

Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Zuari Cement Limited
Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045 CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

Rajeev Kumar Saxena Joydeep Mukherjee Vimal Kumar Jain
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 077974 DIN: 06648469 DIN: 09561918

Place: Gurugram
Date:  July 31, 2024 Vimal Kumar Choudhary Arjun Dutta

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Earnings per share [nominal value of share INR 10 (March 31, 2023: INR 10)]

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (III) + (IV)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (IV)

98



Zuari Cement Limited
Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)

a. Equity Share Capital:

Number Amount

At April 1, 2022 274,961,400            27,496.14 
Increase/(decrease) during the year -                      -                     
At March 31, 2023 274,961,400            27,496.14 
Increase/(decrease) during the year -                      -                     
At March 31, 2024 274,961,400            27,496.14 

b. Other equity:
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Securities premium 
account

Retained earnings Items of OCI Total

At April 1, 2023 37,201.93                       87,651.52                  (20.08)                 23,281.75           148,115.12        
Loss for the year -                                 (5,335.96)                   -                      (1,188.62)            (6,524.58)           
Other comprehensive income (refer note 12) -                                 -                             22.03                  -                      22.03                 
At March 31, 2024 37,201.93                       82,315.56                  1.95                    22,093.13           141,612.57        

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Securities premium 
account

Retained earnings Items of OCI Total

At April 1, 2022 37,201.93                       93,476.35                  (56.94)                 24,108.04           154,729.38        
Loss for the year -                                 (5,824.83)                   -                      (826.29)               (6,651.12)           
Other comprehensive income (refer note 12) -                                 -                             36.86                  -                      36.86                 
At March 31, 2023 37,201.93                       87,651.52                  (20.08)                 23,281.75           148,115.12        

Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Zuari Cement Limited
Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045 CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

Rajeev Kumar Saxena Joydeep Mukherjee Vimal Kumar Jain
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 077974 DIN: 06648469 DIN: 09561918

Place: Gurugram
Date:  July 31, 2024 Vimal Kumar Choudhary Arjun Dutta

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Attributable
to NCI

Attributable to the equity holders

Attributable
to NCI

Attributable to the equity holders
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Zuari Cement Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)

Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax (11,072.62)                 (9,484.81)                      
Adjustment to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23,590.94                   12,315.85                     
Interest income (266.41)                      (1,613.70)                      
Interest expense 4,096.39                     2,532.94                       
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment net (146.70)                      16.47                            
Provision for bad and doubtful debts and advances, net 28.34                          -                                
Sundry balances written off -                              12.72                            
Unrealised foreign exchange differences (gain)/loss 132.43                        250.77                          
Provision no longer required written back (235.80)                      (129.79)                         
Operating profit before working capital changes 16,126.57                   3,900.45                       
Movements in working capital:
   Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 3,992.97                     (9,335.42)                      
   Increase / (decrease) in long-term provisions 769.70                        133.64                          
   Increase / (decrease) in short-term provisions (49.67)                        (6.23)                             
   Increase / (decrease) in other long-term liabilities (33.03)                        (33.03)                           
   Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities (1,195.49)                   (568.11)                         
   Increase / (decrease) in other short term liabilities (238.63)                      (1,559.97)                      
   Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables (3,681.13)                   1,270.51                       
   Decrease / (increase) in inventories (4,038.02)                   6,779.39                       
   Decrease / (increase) in other financial assets (3,560.17)                   (1,351.71)                      
   Decrease / (increase) in other non-current assets (132.54)                      (113.68)                         
   Decrease / (increase) in other current assets (2,995.39)                   2,271.07                       
Cash generated from operations 4,965.17                     1,386.91                       
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) 1,994.03                     (418.35)                         
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 6,959.20                     968.56                          

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment including capital work-in-progress and capital advances (6,798.24)                   (9,873.87)                      
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment 340.93                        -                                
Redemption/ maturity of bank deposits -                              217.38                          
Interest received (114.14)                      105.43                          
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (6,571.45)                   (9,551.06)                      

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long-term borrowings (16,286.67)                 (16,980.77)                    
Proceeds from short-term borrowings (net) 18,035.59                   31,720.31                     

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (refer note 43) (982.23)                      (939.27)                         
Interest paid (3,339.39)                   (1,653.99)                      
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities (C) (2,572.70)                   12,146.28                     

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (2,184.95)                   3,563.78                       
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,042.79                     479.01                          
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,857.84                     4,042.79                       

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

<< This space is intentionally left blank >>
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Zuari Cement Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS) For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cheque on hand 1,608.82                     1,654.02                       
Balance with banks:
   - On current accounts 249.02                        2,388.77                       
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 10) 1,857.84                     4,042.79                       

Explanatory notes to statement of cash flows
1. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

As at 1 April 2023 2,323.58                     42,785.16                     
Additions 486.15                        18,035.59                     
Deletion for the year -                              -                                
Accretion of interest 183.22                        565.68                          
Payments (982.23)                      (16,286.67)                    
At 31 March 2024 2,010.72                     45,099.76                     

As at 1 April 2022 2,650.22                     27,356.13                     
Additions 551.89                        31,720.31                     
Deletion for the year (128.72)                      -                                
Accretion of interest 189.46                        689.49                          
Payments (939.27)                      (16,980.77)                    
At 31 March 2023 2,323.58                     42,785.16                     

Summary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Zuari Cement Limited
Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045 CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

Rajeev Kumar Saxena Joydeep Mukherjee Vimal Kumar Jain
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 077974 DIN: 06648469 DIN: 09561918

Place: Gurugram
Date:  July 31, 2024 Vimal Kumar Choudhary Arjun Dutta

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Non-Current Borrowing 
(including current 

maturities)

Liability arising from financing activities

Lease Liabilities 
(refer note 43)
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS) 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
1. Corporate Information 

 
Zuari Cement Limited (hereinafter referred to as “ZCL” or “the Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter 
collectively referred to as “the Group”) are engaged in the manufacturing of Portland cement, generation and sale 
of electricity. The Company was a joint venture between Zuari Global Limited (‘ZGL’) and Ciments Français 
S.A. (‘CF’, part of the Italcementi Group) up to May 31, 2006. Pursuant to CF’s acquisition of 50% stake held by 
ZGL, the Company became a wholly owned subsidiary of CF (‘the Holding Company’), effective May 31, 2006. 
The Ultimate Holding Company upto June 30, 2016 was Heidelberg Materials Italia Cementi S.P.A (erstwhile 
Italcementi S.p.A) the ultimate holding company. 
 
Heidelberg Materials AG (Erstwhile HeidelbergCement AG) has completed the acquisition of Italcementi S.p.A 
from Italmobiliare and become the ultimate holding Company w.e.f. July 1, 2016. 
 
Ciments Français S.A which was 100% subsidiary of HM Italia cementi S.P.A, merged with HM Italia cementi 
S.P.A w.e.f  30th November 2022 as per Merger plan approved by merger resolution. Subsequent to Merger, HM 
Italia cementi pursaunt to law and by way of universal succession acquired all the assets and liabilities of 
Ciments Français S.A. 
 

The Consolidated financial statements were authorized by the Board of Directors for issue in accordance with 
resolution passed on July 31, 2024. 
 
1.1. Investment in subsidiaries 
 
Following table indicates the list of subsidiary, country of incorporation and proportion of shareholding: 

 
Name of the entity Country of 

incorporation 
Percentage of ownership interest 

Subsidiary March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Gulbarga Cement Limited (GCL)* India 21.45% 21.45% 

 
*The Company controls the composition of the Board of Directors of this subsidiary. The Company vide letter 
dated March 23, 2015 received from Ciments Français S.A. and as per the Article of Association has right to 
appoint all Directors on the Board of the Company. Hence on account of control over composition of the Board, 
the Company is the holding company of Gulbarga Cement Limited under Section 2(87) of the Companies Act 
2013 and Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 110 - "Consolidated financial statements". 
 

2. Material accounting policies 
 

The material accounting policies applied by the Group in preparation of its consolidated financial statements are 
listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these 
consolidated financial statements unless otherwise indicated. 
 

2.1 Basis of preparation 
 

These Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’’), read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as 
amended. 
 

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except certain items which 
need to be stated at fair value as per Ind AS. The Consolidated financial statements are presented in Rupees 
Lakhs, except when otherwise indicated. 
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2.2 Basis of consolidation 

 
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 
December 31, 2019. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its 
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. 
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has: 
 Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the 

investee) 
 Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and 
 The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns 

 
Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption 
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all 
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including: 
 The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee 
 Rights arising from other contractual arrangements  
 The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights 
 The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other 

voting rights holders 
 

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are 
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group 
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated 
financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the 
subsidiary.  
 
Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other 
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the 
consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate 
adjustments are made to that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial 
statements to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies. 
 
The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date 
as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on December 31. When the end of the reporting period of the 
parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional 
financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to 
consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so. 
 
Consolidation procedure: 
 
(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of 

its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the 
assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date. 

 
(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion 

of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill. 
 
(c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to 

transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are 
recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate 
an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS12 Income Taxes 
applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup 
transactions. 
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Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of 
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests 
having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to 
bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and 
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are 
eliminated in full on consolidation. 
 
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity 
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it: 
(a) Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary 
(b) Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests  
(c) Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity 
(d) Recognises the fair value of the consideration received  
(e) Recognises the fair value of any investment retained  
(f) Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss  
(g) Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained 

earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or 
liabilities. 
 

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies  
 
a. Business combinations and goodwill 
 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as 
the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the 
non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable 
net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. 
 
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their 
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing 
present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in 
a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:  

(a) Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are 
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits 
respectively. 

(b) Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share – based 
payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the 
acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date. 

(c) Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current 
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.  

(d) Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the 
related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired right. 

 
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate 
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent 
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the 
acquiree. 
 
If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its 
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.  
 
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. 
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of 
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Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or 
loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the 
appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent 
reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity. 

 
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the 
amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate 
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and 
all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the 
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the 
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital 
reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in 
equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI. 
 
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of 
the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other 
assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. 
 
A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more 
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash 
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying 
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying 
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment 
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods. 
 
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed 
of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when 
determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the 
relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained. 
 
If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the 
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. 
Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or 
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the 
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are 
called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the 
acquisition date. 

 
 Business combination of entities under common control  

 
Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the Company or ultimately controlled by the 
same party or parties both before and after the business combination, and that control is not transitory, are 
accounted for using the pooling of interests method as follows:  
 
The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.  
No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. Adjustments are only 
made to harmonise accounting policies.  
The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if the business 
combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of 
the actual date of the combination, however, where the business combination had occurred after that date, the 
prior period information is restated only from that date. 
The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is aggregated with 
the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the transferee or is adjusted against general 
reserve.  
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The identity of the reserves is preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of the transferee. 
The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in 
the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to goodwill in 
accordance with Ind AS Transition Facilitation Group (ITFG) clarification Bulletin 9. 
 
As provided in the Scheme, the assets and liabilities including reserves of Transferor Companies as on the 
Appointed Date were recorded by the Company at their existing carrying values and the amalgamation was 
accounted for in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard ( Ind AS) 103, 'Business Combinations of entities 
under Common Control - Appendix C' under Pooling of Interest method for the year 2019 as notified under 
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per ITFG-9. 
 

b. Current versus non-current classification 
 
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An 
asset is treated as current when it is: 
 
 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
 Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period  
 
All other assets are classified as non-current.  
 
A liability is current when: 
 
 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or  
 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 

reporting period 
 

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 
 
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and 
cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 
 

c. Foreign currencies 
 
The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the parent company’s 
functional currency.  
 
Transaction and balances 
 
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at their respective functional currency spot rates at the 
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. 
 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot 
rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary 
items are recognised in profit or loss. 

 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
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currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss 
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the 
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or 
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively). 
 

d. Fair Value Measurement 
 
The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. 
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
 
 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 
 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. 
 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 
 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
 
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. 
 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Consolidated financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant 
to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
 
 Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities  

 
 Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
 

 Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable 

 
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the 
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period. 
 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of 
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained 
above. 
 

e. Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognised on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services to a customer 
for an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods 
or services.  
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Sale of goods  
 
Revenue from the sale of the Company’s core products Cement is recognized when delivery has taken place and 
control of the goods has been transferred to the customer, and when there are no longer any unfulfilled 
obligations.  
 
The customer obtains control of the goods when the significant risks and rewards of products sold are transferred 
to the customer, being at the point the goods are delivered to and accepted by the customer, according to the 
specific delivery terms that have been agreed with the customer.  
 
Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any discounts, 
price concessions, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government such as goods 
and services tax, etc. Accumulated experience is used to estimate the provision for such discounts, price 
concessions and rebates. Revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable a significant reversal 
will not occur.  
 
No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with credit terms largely ranging between 30 
days and 60 days depending on the specific terms agreed to with the customer concerned, which is consistent with 
market practice.  
 
Contract Balances  
 
Trade receivables  

       A trade receivable is recognized when the products are delivered to a customer as this is the point in time that the     
       consideration becomes unconditional because only a passage of time is required before the payment is due.  

 
Contract assets, which is a company’s right to consideration that is conditional on something other than the 
passage of time. Currently there are no contract assets.  

 
Contract liabilities  
Contract liabilities, which is a company’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the 
entity has already received consideration, relate mainly to advance payments from customers which are     
disclosed in Note no.20. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the company performs under the  
contract.  
 
Rendering of services Income from services rendered is recognized based on agreements/arrangements with the 
customers as the service is performed and there are no unfulfilled obligations. 
 

f. Taxes 
 
Current income tax 

       Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the   
       taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or  
       substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable  
       income. 

 
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in 
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax 
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes 
provisions where appropriate. 
 
Deferred tax 

       Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and    
       liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.  
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits 
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits 
and unused tax losses can be utilised. 
 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent 
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the 
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date. 
 
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other 
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction 
either in OCI or directly in equity. 
 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority. 
 
Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which 
is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. 
Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured 
reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.  
 

g. Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’) 
 
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for 
long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment 
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. 
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and 
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are 
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

 
The Group identifies and determines cost of each component/part of the asset separately, if the component/part 
has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is materially different from that 
of the remaining asset. These identified components are depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining asset is 
depreciated over the life of the principal asset.  
 
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the asset as follows: 
 

Asset category Useful lives estimated by the management (years) 
Buildings  10-60 
Plant and machinery 3-25 
Railway sidings 15 
Furniture and fittings 5-20 
Motor vehicles 8 
Office equipment 3 – 25 
Computer hardware 3 – 6 
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Further, the management has estimated the useful lives of asset individually costing INR 5,000 or less to be less 
than one year, which is lower than those indicated in schedule II. The management believes that these estimated 
useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the asset are likely to be used. 

 
Cost of mineral reserve embedded in the cost of freehold mining land is depreciated in proportion of actual 
quantity of minerals extracted to the estimated quantity of extractable mineral reserves. Freehold non mining land 
is not depreciated. 
 
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised. 
 
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at 
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
 
Cost of assets not ready for their intended use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work-in-
progress. 
 

h. Intangible Assets 
 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.  
 
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. 
 
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment 
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the 
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each 
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic 
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are 
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another 
asset. 
 
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when 
the asset is derecognized. 
 
Costs incurred on acquisition of intangible assets are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over useful 
lives, as mentioned below: 
 
Asset category Useful lives estimated by the management (years) 
Computer Software  5 

 
Mining license is amortized over the period of lease. 
 

i. Borrowing Cost 
 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the 
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of 
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also 
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 
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j. Government grants and subsidies 

 
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all 
attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income 
on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. 
When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the 
related asset. 
 
When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts 
and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the 
underlying asset i.e. by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments 
or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable 
interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value 
and the government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the 
proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial 
liabilities. 

 
Government grants in the nature of sale tax incentive are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the 
year in which they become receivable. 

 
k. Inventories 

 
Raw materials, packing materials, coal and fuel, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable 
value. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down 
below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. 
Cost of raw materials, packing materials, coal and fuel, stores and spares is determined on a weighted average 
basis and includes cost incurred in bringing the material to its present location and condition. Stores and spares 
which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are accounted as inventories. 
 
Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct 
materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost of 
finished goods includes excise duty. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis. 
 
Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a weighted 
average basis. 
 
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

 
l. Leases 

 
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement 
at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent 
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that 
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. 
 
Company as a lessee 
 
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases 
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use 
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 
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i) Right-of-use assets 

 
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying 
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes 
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis 
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:  
 

Asset Category Useful lives estimated by the management (years) 
Land & Building                                 0-24 
Furniture and Fixtures                                 1 -4 
Motor vehicles and other equipment                                            2 

 
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the 
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. 
 
The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (m) 
Impairment of non-financial assets.  
 

ii)    Lease Liabilities 
 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value 
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including 
insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an 
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also 
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments 
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. 
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are 
incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. 
 
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease 
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the 
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced 
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a 
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments 
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment 
of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 
 
The Company’s lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (refer note 43). 
 

iii)      Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 
 
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and 
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not 
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office 
equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value 
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 
Company as a lessor 
 
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of 
an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the 
lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying 
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amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent 
rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. 
 

m. Impairment of non-financial assets 
 
The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s 
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) 
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, 
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of 
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 
 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such 
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by 
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 
 
Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss. 
 
For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an 
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication 
exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is 
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount 
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does 
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in 
the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated 
as a revaluation increase. 
 
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be 
impaired. 
 

n. Provisions 
 
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of the past 
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  
 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.  
 
Provision for mine reclamation expenses 
 
The Group provides for the estimated expenses to reclaim the quarries used for mining. The total estimate of 
restoration expenses is apportioned over the estimate of mineral reserves and a provision is made based on the 
minerals extracted during the year. 
 
Site restoration expenses are incurred on an ongoing basis and until the closure of the mine. The actual expenses 
may vary based on the nature of reclamation and the estimate of reclamation expenses. 
 
 
 

113



Zuari Cement Limited 
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS) 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
o. Retirement and other employee benefits 

 
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. If the contribution payable to 
the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit 
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution 
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is 
recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment 
or a cash refund. 
 
Superannuation Fund (being administered by Trusts) and Employees’ State Insurance Corporation (ESIC) are 
defined contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period 
when the contributions to the respective funds are due. 
 
The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a 
separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the 
projected unit credit method. 
 
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a 
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.  
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 
 
Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of: 
 The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and  
 The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs 
 
Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group 
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and 
loss: 
 Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-

routine settlements; and  
 Net interest expense or income 

 
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee 
benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as 
a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Group treats accumulated leave 
expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. 
Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit 
credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and 
are not deferred. The Group presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not 
have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. 
 

p. Financial instruments 
 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity. 
 
Financial Assets 
 
Initial recognition and measurement 
 
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation 
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or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the 
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. 
 
Subsequent measurement 
 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 
 
 Debt instruments at amortised cost 
 Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
 Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
 Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
 
Debt instruments at amortised cost 
 
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 
 

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash 
flows, and 

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

 
This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking 
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The 
EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are 
recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables. 
 
Debt instrument at FVTOCI 
 
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the 
financial assets, and 

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 
 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at 
fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group 
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On 
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to 
P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR 
method. 
 
Debt instrument at FVTPL 
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for 
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 
 
In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or 
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a 
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Group has not designated 
any debt instrument as at FVTPL. 
 
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in 
the P&L. 
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Equity investments 
 
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for 
trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 
applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election 
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election 
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 
 
If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, 
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on 
sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 
 
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in 
the P&L.  
 
Derecognition 
 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when: 
 
 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

 The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay 
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and 
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control 
of the asset. 

 
 
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the 
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. 
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are 
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained. 
 
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of 
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be 
required to repay. 
 
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 
 
a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, 
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance  
The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on: 
 
 Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and 

The application of simplified approach does not require the group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it 
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial 
recognition. 
 
For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that 
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not 
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has 
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increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves 
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to 
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. 
 
Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a 
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that 
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 
 
ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the contract 
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. 
When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider: 
 
 All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) 
over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial 
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the 
financial instrument 
 Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual 
terms 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the 
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The 
balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below: 
 
 Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is 
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The 
allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce 
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 
 Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as 
a liability. Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVOCI, the expected credit 
losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount 
equal to the allowance that would arise if the asset was measured at amortised cost is recognised in other 
comprehensive income as the ‘accumulated impairment amount”  

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis 
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable 
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis. 
 
The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial 
assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.               

 
Financial Liabilities 
 
Initial recognition and measurement 
 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, 
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as 
appropriate. 
 
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, 
net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
 
The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings. 
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Subsequent measurement 
 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 
 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are 
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.  
 
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. 
 
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such 
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as 
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ 
loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss 
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 
The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss. 
 
Loans and borrowings 
 
This is the category most relevant to the group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or 
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.  
 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and 
loss. 
 
This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 13. 
 
Derecognition 
 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the 
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 
 
Offsetting of financial instruments 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a 
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
 

q. Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with 
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 
For the purpose of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined 
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash 
management. Deposits with initial maturity greater than 3 months are considered as cash and cash equivalents if 
the deposits can be converted to cash without significant penalty on principle. 
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r. Segment reporting 

 
The Group is primarily engaged in the manufacturing of cement and hence entire operation represents a single 
primary segment. The Group operates within India only and hence geographical segment is not applicable to the 
Group. 
 

s. Contingent liabilities 
 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a 
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot 
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but 
discloses its existence in the Consolidated financial statements. 

 
t. Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the parent   

 
The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when 
the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the 
corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding 
amount is recognised directly in equity. 
 
Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-
measurement recognised directly in equity. 
 
Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying 
amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
 

u. Earnings per share 
 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net 
profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
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3. Property, plant and equipment
Freehold

non-mining
land**

Freehold
mining
land#

Buildings
Plant and 
machinery

Railway 
sidings##

Furniture 
and fittings

Motor vehicles
Office 

equipment
Computer 
hardware

Total
Capital work in 

progress***

Cost or valuation
At April 1, 2022 7,548.86         6,773.25         58,987.77    136,897.97     23,654.58     660.93         412.61            628.42        461.28      236,025.67       67,245.81           
Additions for the year -                  -                  156.09         25,791.21       236.74          40.72           264.00            69.87          -            26,558.63         11,169.39           
Disposals -                  -                  (0.07)            (9.39)               -                (3.92)            (4.27)               (69.67)        (21.10)       (108.42)             (26,558.64)          
At March 31, 2023 7,548.86         6,773.25         59,143.79    162,679.79     23,891.32     697.73         672.34            628.62        440.18      262,475.88       51,856.56           
Additions -                  -                  1,523.29      8,681.24         -                77.68           -                  -              227.11      10,509.32         6,187.59             
Disposals -                  (175.47)           -               (32.64)             -                -               -                  -              -            (208.11)             (10,509.32)          
At March 31, 2024 7,548.86         6,597.78         60,667.08    171,328.39     23,891.32     775.41         672.34            628.62        667.29      272,777.09       47,534.83           

Depreciation and Impairment
At April 1, 2022 -                  292.96            14,696.77    48,247.78       10,262.70     533.90         310.16            380.62        430.51      75,155.40         -                      
Charge for the year -                  22.37              2,222.23      7,351.76         1,731.97       33.74           32.64              79.92          0.50          11,475.13         -                      
Disposals -                  -                  -               (7.32)               -                (3.61)            (3.94)               (58.02)        (19.07)       (91.96)               -                      
At March 31, 2023 -                  315.33            16,919.00    55,592.22       11,994.67     564.03         338.86            402.52        411.94      86,538.57         -                      
Charge for the year -                  20.98              2,217.35      8,459.74         1,727.41       25.51           33.53              83.57          0.02          12,568.11         -                      
Impairment during the year@ -                  -                  1,634.14      6,169.19         -                -               -                  -              -            7,803.33           
Disposals -                  -                  -               (13.87)             -                -               -                  -              -            (13.87)               -                      
At March 31, 2024 -                  336.31            20,770.49    70,207.28       13,722.08     589.54         372.39            486.09        411.96      106,896.14       -                      

Net Block
At March 31, 2023 7,548.86         6,457.92         42,224.79    107,087.57     11,896.65     133.70         333.48            226.10        28.24        175,937.31       51,856.56           
At March 31, 2024 7,548.86         6,261.47         39,896.59    101,121.11     10,169.24     185.87         299.95            142.53        255.33      165,880.95       47,534.83           

@ During the year ended on 31 March 2024, the impairment loss of INR 7,803.33 lakhs represented the write-down value of certain property, plant and equipment in Sitapuram Power Limited to the recoverable amount as a result of
technological obsolescence. This was recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The recoverable amount of INR 899.05 lakhs as at 31 March 2024 was based on fair value less cost of disposal.

## The Company has leased out railway sidings under non-cancellable lease. Refer note 32(b).

# Cost of mineral reserve embedded in the cost of freehold mining land has been depreciated in proportion of actual quantity of minerals extracted to the estimated quantity of mineral reserve.

** Awarded land admeasuring Acres 1284.31 situated in Yerraguntla Mandal includes value of INR 516.21 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 516.21 lakhs) forming part of conveyance deed dated 23 March 1998 that was presented to the
jurisdictional Registering Authority for registration. The registering authorities have kept the conveyance deed pending for want of payment of the additional stamp duty levied by them. Since then the matter was under litigation. The
additional stamp duty was paid by the Company and the document was registered vide Registration No. 7927/2021 by District Registrar, Kadapa covering Ac.1278.75 and leaving aside Acres 5.56 vide refusal order No.1/2021, dated 20 Oct
2021.This order was appealed before District Registrar, Kadapa, being the Appellate Authority. The appeal is pending before the Appellate Authority. Pursuant to the scheme of arrangement between Zuari Industries Limited and the
Company (ZCL), sanctioned by the Honorable High Court of Bombay having bench at Panaji, Goa, on January 12, 2001, the cement undertaking of Zuari Industries Limited stood vested in the Company with effect from April 1, 2000.

*** Capital work-in-progress includes amount paid for the purchase of land at Chennai of INR 671.43 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 671.43 Lakhs). The application for land swapping was submitted on 29/11/2019 as per the Government
order vide no. 5349/LD3(1)/2011-27 dated 04/01/2018 which states that the value of the land proposed to be swapped with leaseland should be of equivalent market value. Accordingly, the land was identified, registered in the name of
Company and the land swapping proposal was submitted to the Government of Tamil Nādu (GoTN). Meanwhile, GoTN changed the regulations for land swapping and the land swapping application was sent to Tahsildar, Ponneri. While
sending the recommendation to the land swapping, the revenue authorities have stipulated to (i) pay differential value of land (ii) payment of lease rent arrears and (iii) obtaining the NOC from the Athipattu village Panchayath. While, the
Company has paid the lease rent arrears, represented that NOC is not required as per the new regulations. The matter is now in the office of District Collector, Thiruvallur for necessary action at his end.
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4. Intangible assets
Goodwill* Computer 

software
Mining 

license**
Total Capital work 

in progress
Cost or valuation
At April 1, 2022 4,216.28         517.31            608.68            5,342.27         -                 
Additions for the year -                 108.13            -                 108.13            108.13           
Disposals -                 -                 -                 -                 (108.13)          
At March 31, 2023 4,216.28         625.44            608.68            5,450.40         -                 
Additions for the year -                  74.20              -                 74.20              74.20             
Disposals -                  -                 -                 -                 (74.20)            
At March 31, 2024 4,216.28         699.64            608.68            5,524.60         -                 

Amortisation/ Impairment
At April 1, 2022 -                 497.40            349.94            847.34            -                 
Charge for the year -                  13.97              48.69              62.66              -                 
Disposals -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
At March 31, 2023 -                  511.37            398.63            910.00            -                 
Charge for the year -                  29.34              48.69              78.03              -                 
Impairment* 2,300.00         -                 -                 2,300.00         
Disposals -                  -                 -                 -                  -                 
At March 31, 2024 2,300.00         540.71            447.32            3,288.03         -                 

Net Block
At March 31, 2023 4,216.28         114.07            210.05            4,540.40         -                 
At March 31, 2024 1,916.28         158.93            161.36            2,236.57         -                 

INR in Lakhs

Projects in progress Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

As at 31 March 2024 3,095.98         1,682.68         695.11            42,061.06      47,534.83        
As at 31 March 2023 7,158.19         1,006.07         25,535.70       18,156.60      51,856.56        

Project execution plans are modulated as per requirement on  annual basis and all the projects are executed as per rolling annual plan

** The Company had purchased mining license from Chambal Fertilisers and Chemicals Limited and the same is valid till 4 October 2027. Hence, the
Company is depreciating the same over the period of license.

Capital work in progress ('CWIP') Ageing Schedule

Amount of CWIP for a period of

<< This space is intentionally left blank >>

*Consequent to the merger of Sitapuram Power Limited (SPL) with the Company in the earlier year, the assets, liabilities and reserves pertaining to SPL, as
appearing in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, immediately before the merger, are recognized at their carrying values. Accordingly,
Goodwill of INR 2,300 Lakhs appearing in the consolidated financial statement of the Company is recognized at it’s carrying value. During the current year
ended March 31, 2024, the Company has carried out the Impairment testing of Goodwill allocated to SPL. Based on the impairment testing, the recoverable
amount of the SPL doesn't exceeds its carrying amount including goodwill. Therefore, impairment loss of INR 2300 lakhs was recognized against goodwill
in the statement of profit and loss during the year ended March 31, 2024.
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5. Non-current investments 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Investments in Equity Instruments (fully paid)
Unquoted equity instruments

                              2.32                            2.32 

                              6.42                            6.42 

                              8.74                            8.74 

Unquoted preference shares 

                            14.88                          14.88 

                            14.88                          14.88 
                            23.62                          23.62 

(i). Investments in Vena Energy Power Resources Private Limited (formerly known as Energon Power Resources Private Limited)

(ii). Investment in Echanda Urja Private Limited

6. Other financial assets

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest accrued on other deposits                                  -                                 -   177.15                                                 130.19 
Security deposit (unsecured, considered good) 4,248.45                                           3,128.69                           452.33                        501.86 
VAT/GST Incentive receivables                        8,836.45                     6,381.31                                  -                                 -   
Derivative assets                                  -                                 -                               34.80                               -   

13,084.90                     9,510.00                    664.28                          632.05                       

7. Other assets
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Capital advances 
Unsecured, considered good                           500.31                        171.68 -                               -                            

                          500.31                        171.68 -                               -                            

Other- unsecured, considered good

   Advance income tax, net of provision for tax 2,553.48                                           2,177.52                                  -                                 -   
   Balance with government authorities                        1,085.04                     1,023.94                        3,201.22                     1,243.95 
   Amount paid under protest 10,310.50                                         9,941.69                                  -                                 -   
   Employee advances                                  -                                 -                               34.16                          28.42 
   Advance to suppliers

- Considered good                                  -                                 -                          7,179.03                     6,377.31 
- Doubtful                                  -                                 -                             118.85                        118.85 

   Prepaid expenses                           526.83                        657.21                        2,128.03                     1,897.37 
Other receivables                           654.25                        654.25                               2.15                            2.15 
Less: Provision for doubtful receivable                          (329.33)                       (329.33)                                  -                                 -   

                     14,800.77                   14,125.28                      12,663.44                     9,668.05 
Allowances for doubtful advance and deposits                                  -                                 -                            (118.85)                       (118.85)

                     15,301.08                   14,296.96                      12,544.59                     9,549.20 

8. Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Raw materials (includes in transit INR 145.70 lakhs) (March 31, 2023: INR 69.15 lakhs) 2,333.21                       2,426.81                    
Work-in-progress 5,341.34                       5,363.02                    
Finished goods 2,983.32                       3,343.75                    
Consumable stores and spares (includes in transit INR 54.83 lakhs) (March 31, 2023: INR 28.79 lakhs) 19,801.30                     15,287.57                  

30,459.17                     26,421.15                  

The Company during the year ended March 31, 2017 had executed a Shareholders Agreement (SHA) dated April 26, 2016 with Echanda Urja Private Limited (“EUPL”) and
NuPower Renewables Private Limited for the procurement of wind energy upto 10 MKWh. The Company made a further investment of INR 1.10 lakhs during the year ended
March 31, 2018 and INR 1.92 lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2022 in EUPL for the supply of wind energy upto 18.4 MKWh.

The Company during the year ended March 31, 2015 had executed a Share Subscription and Shareholders Agreement (SSHA) dated June 2, 2014 with Energon Power
Resources Private Limited (“EPRPL”) and Energon Renewables Private Limited. Pursuant to the terms of SSHA, the Company has invested a sum of INR 2.32 Lakhs to
acquire 2.89% equity stake and INR 14.88 Lakhs to acquire 2.89% cumulative compulsorily convertible non-participative preference shares in ERPL in the year 2014. This
provide an entitlement of 6 MW dedicated wind energy capacity in EPRPL for the Company.

Current

Non-current Current

Current

A. 22,460 (March 31, 2023: 22,460) equity shares of INR. 10/- each fully paid up of Vena Energy Power
Resources Private Limited [refer note (i)]

B. 64,182 (March 31, 2023: 64,182) equity shares of INR. 10/- each fully paid up of Echanda Urja Private
Limited. [refer note (ii)]

A. 14,419 (March 31, 2023: 14,419) Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Non-Participative Preference shares of
INR. 100/- each fully paid up in Vena Energy Power Resources Private Limited [refer note (i)]

Non-current
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9. Trade receivables

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade receivables             11,799.51               8,136.19 

Receivables from other related parties*                    33.76                    44.29 

            11,833.27               8,180.48 

Break-up for trade receivable:

   Secured, considered good               3,385.71               3,306.05 

   Unsecured, considered good               8,447.56               4,874.43 

   Trade receivables - credit impaired                  544.09                  544.64 

            12,377.36               8,725.12 

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)

   Trade receivables - credit impaired                (544.09)                (544.64)

            11,833.27               8,180.48 

Trade receivables ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2024 INR in Lakhs

 Current but 
not due 

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 
1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables – considered good        8,801.80        2,864.89           47.00          119.58                 -                           -               11,833.27 

Disputed Trade receivables – credit impaired                   -                    -                   -                    -           105.88                  438.21                  544.09 

       8,801.80        2,864.89           47.00          119.58         105.88                  438.21             12,377.36 

As at 31 March 2023  INR in Lakhs 

 Current but 
not due 

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 
1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables – considered good        6,699.22        1,427.45           50.69              3.12                 -                           -                 8,180.48 

Disputed Trade receivables – credit impaired                   -                    -                   -            106.43         178.86                  259.35                  544.64 

       6,699.22        1,427.45           50.69          109.55         178.86                  259.35               8,725.12 

*Includes dues from companies where directors are interested (refer note 31).

10. Cash and cash equivalents

########## ########## March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cheque on hand 1,608.82             1,654.02             

Balance with banks:

   - On current accounts -              -             249.02                2,388.77             

                 -                   -                 1,857.84               4,042.79 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cheque on hand 1,608.82             1,654.02             

Balance with banks:

 - On current accounts 249.02                2,388.77             
              1,857.84               4,042.79 

Current

More than 3 years

More than 3 years

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Non-current Current

Current

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term deposits made for varying periods of upto 3 months, depending on the
immediate cash requirement of the Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.
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11. Share capital 
Number Amount Number Amount

Authorized share capital
At April 1, 2022 348,000,000 34,800.00        140,000,000        14,000.00                      
Increase/(decrease) during the year -                      -                   -                      -                                
At March 31, 2023 348,000,000 34,800.00        140,000,000        14,000.00                      
Increase/(decrease) during the year -                      -                   -                      -                                
At March 31, 2024 348,000,000 34,800.00        140,000,000        14,000.00                      

Issued equity capital

Number Amount
At April 1, 2022          274,961,400 27,496.14                      
Increase/(decrease) during the year -                      -                                
At March 31, 2023          274,961,400 27,496.14                      
Increase/(decrease) during the year -                      -                                
At March 31, 2024          274,961,400 27,496.14                      

(a) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding Company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates is given below

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Heidelberg Materials Italia Cementi S.P.A (formerly 
Italcementi S.P.A) ,the Holding Company

266,461,350        266,461,350                  

Compagine Pour I'Investment Financier En Inde 8,500,000            8,500,000                      
Investcim S.A.S 10                        10                                  
Sax S.A.S 10                        10                                  
Cafipar S.A.S 10                        10                                  
Tercim S.A.S 10                        10                                  
Menaf S.A.S 10                        10                                  

(b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Equity shares of INR 10/- each fully paid

Number Amount Number Amount
Name of the shareholder
Heidelberg Materials Italia Cementi S.P.A          266,461,350 96.91% 266,461,350        96.91%

(c) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares

Heidelberg Materials Italia Cementi S.P.A              266,461,350 96.91%      266,461,350 96.91% -                                

Total 266,461,350             96.91% 266,461,350    96.91% -                                

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2023 is as follows:

No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares

Ciments Français S.A (merged with Italcementi S.P.A*) 266,461,350             96.91% 266,461,350    96.91% -                                

Total 266,461,350             96.91% 266,461,350    96.91% -                                

* Ciments Français S.A which was 100% subsidiary of Heidelberg Materials Italia Cementi S.P.A (formerly Italcementi S.P.A), merged with Heidelberg Materials Italia
Cementi S.P.A w.e.f 30th November 2022 as per Merger plan approved by merger resolution. Subsequent to Merger, Heidelberg Materials Italia Cementi S.P.A pursaunt to
law and by way of universal succession acquired all the assets and liabilities of Ciments Français S.A.

 In the period of five years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date, the Company has not issued any bonus shares or has bought back any shares.

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2024 is as follows:

Promoter name As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 % Change during the 
Year

As at 31 March 2024

Equity Shares Preference Shares

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Out of the equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding Company, ultimate holding Company and their subsidiaries/ associates are as below:

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

As at 31 March 2023 % Change during the 
Year

The Company has not reserved any shares for issue under options and contracts/commitments for sale of shares/disinvestment.

Promoter name
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12. Other equity
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

A) Retained earnings
At the commencement of the year 87,651.52                  93,476.35                  
Add: Profit/(loss) for the year (5,335.96)                   (5,824.83)                   

Closing balance (A) 82,315.56                  87,651.52                  

B) Remeasurement gain/ (losses) of net defined benefit plans, net of tax
At the commencement of the year (20.08)                        (56.94)                        
Additions during the year 22.03                         36.86                         
Closing balance (B) 1.95                           (20.08)                        

Securities premium account 37,201.93                  37,201.93                  
Closing balance (C) 37,201.93                  37,201.93                  

Equity attributable to owners of the Company (A+B+C) 119,519.44                124,833.37                

Non Controlling Interest (D) 22,093.13                  23,281.75                  

Total  (A+B+C+D) 141,612.57                148,115.12                

Nature and purpose of reserves:

a) Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited 
purposes in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013. No movement during the 
year.
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13. Borrowings

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

 - BNP Paribas Bank -                                               -   26,800.00           27,300.00           
 - Standard Chartered Bank -                                               -   10,000.00           9,700.00             

-                      -                      36,800.00           37,000.00           
Other loans and advances
Loan repayable on demand (from bank)

-Bank overdraft (unsecured) (refer note (ii))                          -                            -   3,237.87             -                      
Deferred payment liability

              3,104.51               4,498.49 1,957.38             1,286.67             
3,104.51             4,498.49             5,195.25             1,286.67             

The above amount includes
Secured borrowings               3,104.51               4,498.49               1,957.38               1,286.67 
Unsecured borrowings                          -                            -               40,037.87             37,000.00 

              3,104.51               4,498.49             41,995.25             38,286.67 

14. Other financial liabilities March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade Payables                  100.09                  103.37 
100.09                103.37                

15. Provisions

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 33) 559.78                486.91                -                      -                      
Compensated absences -                      -                      481.23                530.90                

559.78                486.91                481.23                530.90                
Others
Provision for litigation (refer note 32(d)) 7,520.84             6,857.87             -                      -                      

1,091.38             1,091.38             -                      -                      
8,612.22             7,949.25             -                      -                      
9,172.00             8,436.16             481.23                530.90                

(iii) To promote the industries in backward area (i.e. at Yerraguntla, Andhra Pradesh), Government of Andhra Pradesh, announced an interest free sales tax
loan facility. To avail the facility, the Company has entered into an agreement with the Government of Andhra Pradesh for deferring payment of sales tax
collected during the period February 15, 1999, to February 14, 2013 (fourteen (14) years). The deferred amount will be repaid by the year ended March 31,
2027. The amount repayable within a period of one year from the reporting date, i.e. INR 1,957.38 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 1,286.67 Lakhs) is included
in current maturities of long-term borrowings. It is secured by way of movable and immovable properties of the Company.

As per Ind AS 109, Sales Tax Deferment loan results into an interest-free loan from the government. Accordingly, the Company has retrospectively
measured the sales tax deferral loan as on transition date by arriving at the present value, which is the discounted amount of the loan computed using the
market rate of interest for a similar loan for the period for which the entity is not required to deposit the sales tax amount with the government.

Non-current

Non-current Current

Provision for site restoration expense (refer note 32(e))

Details of repayment terms, interest and maturity

CurrentNon-current

- Sales tax deferral loan (secured) (refer note (iii))

(ii) The Company has availed unsecured overdraft facilities from Bank, repayable on demand to meet short term working capital requirement. 

Indian rupee short term loan from banks (unsecured) (refer note (i))

(i) The Company has availed unsecured short term loan from Banks to meet working capital requirement at the interest rate in the range of 7.90% to 8.10%.
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16. Income tax & deferred tax liability

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are:

Statement of Profit or loss : March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge                          -                            -   
Income tax expense/(income) relating to earlier years             (2,036.40)                          -   
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences             (2,511.64)             (2,833.69)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss (4,548.04)            (2,833.69)            

Other comprehensive income:
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the period:
Net (gains)/losses on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 11.83                  19.79                  
Income tax charged to OCI 11.83                  19.79                  

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Accounting profit/(Loss) before income tax (11,072.62)          (9,484.81)            

Total tax charge/(Income) computed on the basis of the applicable rates (3,340.44)            (2,946.79)            

Income tax expense/(income) relating to earlier years (refer note iii below) (2,036.40)            -                      

Deductible expenses for tax purposes (57.82)                 -                      

Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes 812.41                7.81                    

Corporate social responsibility expenditure 74.21                  105.29                

At the effective income tax rate of 41.07% (March 31, 2023: 29.88%) (4,548.04)            (2,833.69)            

Income tax expense/(income) reported in the statement of profit and loss (4,548.04)            (2,833.69)            

Deferred tax liabilities (net)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Deferred tax liability
22,445.15           18,749.69           

Gross deferred tax liability 22,445.15           18,749.69           

Deferred tax asset
Unused tax credits (MAT credit entitlement) - (refer note (i) below) 599.77                599.77                
Unutilised carried forward loss 3,286.94             2,404.42             

6,446.55             1,038.76             

Provision for doubtful debts and advances 284.74                180.33                
Provision for employee related liabilities 383.99                583.44                
Gross deferred tax asset 11,001.99           4,806.72             
Net deferred tax liability 11,443.16           13,942.97           

17. Other non-current liabilities

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income received in advance 487.15                520.18                

487.15                520.18                

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year but allowed for tax purposes
on payment basis

Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization charged for the
financial reporting 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate for March 31, 2024 
and March 31, 2023:

(i) The Company is entitled to avail exemption under section 80IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 from income tax on profits of business.

(i) MAT credits are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of MAT credit to be
utilised during this specified period, i.e. the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward.

The Company reviews MAT credit entitlement at each reporting date and in the current year the Company based on future profit and tax projections believes
that sufficient taxable profits will be generated to utilize the full MAT credit.

(ii) The Government of India on 20 September, 2019 vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019, inserted a new Section 115BAA in the Income
Tax Act, 1961, which provides an option to the Company for paying Income Tax at reduced rates as per the provisions/conditions defined in the said section.
The Company is continuing to provide for income tax at the old rates, based on the available outstanding MAT credit entitlement and various exemptions
and deductions available to the Company under the Income Tax Act, 1961. However, the Company has applied the lower income tax rates on the deferred
tax assets / liabilities to the extent these are expected to be realised or settled in the future period when the Company may be subjected to lower tax rate and
accordingly reversed the net deferred tax liability aggregating INR 4,543.00 lakhs up to 31 March 2023 including INR 1,675.00 lakhs reversed during the
year ended 31 March 2022. 

(iii) During the current year ,the Company has accrued and received pending tax claim of INR 2,036.40 lakhs related to Financial year 2006-07 and 2007-08
as per final assessment order passed by assessing officer post order of Income tax Appeallate tribunal ('ITAT').
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18. Trade payables
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 40) 333.05              424.69              
Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 46,204.19         42,219.67         

46,537.24         42,644.36         
Trade Payables
 - To related parties (refer note 31) 14,397.03         11,765.38         
 - To others 32,140.21         30,878.98         

46,537.24         42,644.36         
Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2024 Rs in Lakhs

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 333.05               -                       -          -                   333.05              
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises

38,303.91          3,664.80              1,366.33 2,869.16           46,204.20         

38,636.96          3,664.80              1,366.33 2,869.16           46,537.25         

As at 31 March 2023 Rs in Lakhs

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 424.69               -                       -          -                   424.69              
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises

38,021.70          2,221.13              680.22    1,296.62           42,219.67         

38,446.39          2,221.13              680.22    1,296.62           42,644.36         

19. Other financial liabilities
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

8.10                  -                   
Trade and other deposits 12,858.16         14,046.89         
Payable against purchase of property, plant and equipment 2,296.42           2,504.26           

Derivative liability -                   6.76                  
15,162.68         16,557.91         

20. Other liabilities
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Contract liabilities
Advance from customers 2,213.18           2,091.12           

Income received in advance 33.03                33.03                
Statutory liabilities 4,521.43           4,882.12           

6,767.64           7,006.27           

<< This space is intentionally left blank >>

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

More than 3 years
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
More than 3 years
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21. Revenue from operations
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Sale of products
   Cement 217,517.13             210,805.70                        
   Clinker 17,461.01               15,440.36                          

234,978.14             226,246.06                        

Sales of Services 45.33                      41.81                                 

Other operating revenue
   Scrap sales 363.72                    441.64                               
   Revenue from disposal of hazardous waste 119.52                    131.69                               
   Government grant- SGST incentive (refer note 34) 3,593.33                 2,765.10                            

4,076.57                 3,338.43                            
239,100.04             229,626.30                        

21.1 Disaggregated Revenue Information

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

India 239,054.71             229,584.49                        
Outside India 45.33                      41.81                                 
Total Revenue from contract with customers 239,100.04             229,626.30                        

21.2 Contract Balances
Trade receivables (refer note 9) 11,833.27               8,180.48                            
Contract liabilities (refer note 20) 2,213.18                 2,091.12                            

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 60 days

22. Other income
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Interest income
   On bank deposits 61.54                      2.50                                   
   On income tax refund -                          1,469.79                            

   Others 204.87                    141.41                               
Provision no longer required written back 235.80                    129.79                               
Rental income 45.92                      45.92                                 
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment net 165.47                    -                                    
Miscellaneous income 154.83                    150.49                               

868.43                    1,939.90                            

<< This space is intentionally left blank >>

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contract with 
customers:

21.3 The performance obligation is satisfied upon supply of goods as and when delivered and accordingly, there is no outstanding
performance obligation as on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

21.4 Sales of product is net of INR 21,345.84 Lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 19,901.66 Lakhs) on account of cash discount, rebates and
incentives given to customers.
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23. Cost of raw material and packing material consumed
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year 2,426.81                 2,306.15                            
Add: Purchases during the year 37,985.13               36,593.67                          
Less: Inventory of materials at the end of the year 2,333.21                 2,426.81                            

38,078.73               36,473.01                          

24. Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Opening stock
   Finished goods 3,343.75                 2,666.51                            
   Work-in-progress 5,363.02                 5,252.24                            

8,706.77                 7,918.75                            
Less: closing stock
   Finished goods 2,983.32                 3,343.75                            
   Work-in-progress 5,341.34                 5,363.02                            

8,324.66                 8,706.77                            
382.11                    (788.02)                             

25. Employee benefits expense*
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023

Salaries, wages and bonus 8,979.90                 7,868.80                            
Gratuity expense (refer note 33) 161.62                    156.01                               
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 502.75                    475.17                               
Staff welfare expenses 159.64                    191.47                               

9,803.91                 8,691.45                            

26. Finance costs*
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023

Interest expense
On term loans and cash credit from banks 3,022.93                 1,209.51                            
On long term borrowings from related party (refer note 31) -                          124.75                               
On lease liabilities (refer note 43) 183.22                    189.46                               
On others# 890.24                    1,009.22                            

Bank charges 68.30                      75.04                                 
4,164.69                 2,607.98                            

27. Depreciation and amortisation
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 20,371.44               11,475.13                          
Depreciation on Right-of-use-asset (refer note 43) 841.47                    778.06                               
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4) 2,378.03                 62.66                                 

23,590.94               12,315.85                          

*Directly attributable expenses in relation to project under construction have been transferred to capital work in progress. (refer note 44

(# Interest on others for the year ended March 31, 2024 include INR 565.68 lakhs (March 31 2023: INR 689.49 Lakhs) represents interest
expenses on sales tax deferral loan as per Ind AS 109)
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28. Other expenses*
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Power and fuel 92,227.38                        101,209.79                      

45,362.57                        43,318.29                        
Consumption of stores, loose tools and spare parts 7,865.32                          9,371.96                          
Rent 538.15                             471.53                             
Rates and taxes 6,745.78                          5,522.04                          
Legal and professional 481.92                             618.04                             
Payment to auditor [Refer note (i) below] 58.88                               59.60                               
Repairs and maintenance:
 - plant and machinery 5,582.53                          4,953.89                          
 - buildings 164.03                             435.76                             
 - others 117.53                             142.71                             
License fee (refer note 31) 2,744.39                          2,590.19                          
Provision for bad and doubtful debts and advances, net 28.34                               -                                  
Sundry balances written off (gross) -                                  12.72                               
Selling and distribution expenses 3,543.90                          3,622.50                          
Sales commission 1,200.31                          1,063.96                          
Advertisement and sales promotion 1,821.92                          1,575.45                          
Corporate social responsibility (refer note 35) 212.36                             301.30                             
Property, plant and equipment written off 18.77                               16.47                               
Insurance 1,064.44                          1,025.67                          
Traveling and conveyance 669.60                             752.30                             
IT and business support charges 1,474.71                          1,250.95                          
Communication 113.05                             107.91                             
Foreign exchange loss, net 239.01                             623.46                             
Miscellaneous expenses 2,745.82                          2,704.25                          

175,020.71                      181,750.74                      

(i) Payment to auditor For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

As statutory auditor (excluding goods and services tax) 58.00                               58.00                               
Reimbursement of expenses (excluding goods and services tax 0.88                                 1.60                                 

58.88                               59.60                               

*Directly attributable expenses in relation to project under construction have been transferred to capital work in progress. (refer note 44

29. Earnings per share (EPS)

The following reflects the loss and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Loss after tax available to equity shareholders (6,524.58)                        (6,651.12)                        

Net loss for calculation of basic/Diluted EPS (6,524.58)                        (6,651.12)                        

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Basic/Diluted EPS (in lakhs) 2,749.61                          2,749.61                          

Basic and diluted EPS (in INR) (2.37)                               (2.42)                               

Freight outward
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30. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Judgements 

Contingent liabilities 

Estimates and assumptions

(i) Useful lives of property, plant & equipment:

(ii)  Defined benefit plans 

(iii) Fair value measurement of financial instrument

(iv) Mines reclamation expenses:

(v) Taxes

(vi) Impairment of Financial assets

(vii) Provision for inventories

(viii) Leases - estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal, land access and other
claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates regarding the
outcome of future events.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimating uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company has based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market change or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the economic life of an asset/component of an asset.
The useful lives are reviewed by management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged
over the remaining useful life of the assets.

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment defined benefits are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 33.

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments. Refer note 36 of the financials.

In determining the fair value of the Mines Restoration Obligation, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount rates, the expected cost of 
mines restoration and the expected timing of those costs. 

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income.
Given the nature of business, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could
necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The
amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the
taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions
prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Management reviews the aged inventory on a periodic basis. This review involves comparison of the carrying value of the aged inventory item with the
respective net realisable value. The purpose is to ascertain whether an allowance is required to be made in the financial statements for any obsolete and
slow-moving items. Management believes that adequate allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories has been made in the financial statements.

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease
liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
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31. Related party disclosures

a. Names of related parties and related party relationship
Names of related parties where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have occurred or not:
Ultimate holding Company Heidelberg Materials AG (erstwhile HeidelbergCement AG)

Holding Company Heidelberg Materials Italia Cementi S.P.A (erstwhile Italcementi S.P.A)

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
Entities under common control HeidelbergCement India Limited ("HCIL")

HC Trading Asia and Pacific Pte Ltd.
Heidelberg Materials Asia Pte. Ltd. (erstwhile HC Asia Pte Ltd)

Additional related parties as per the Companies Act, 2013:

Chief Financial Officer Mr. Vimal Kumar Choudhary

Company Secretary Mr. Arjun Dutta w.e.f July 20, 2022 
Mr. Shrinivas Harapanahalli w.e.f April 01, 2021 (till April 04, 2022)

Key Management Personnel Mr. Joydeep Mukherjee, Managing Director  w.e.f  April 01, 2023
Mr. Joydeep Mukherjee, Chief Executive Officer (from November 01, 2022 to March 31, 2023)
Mr. Jamshed Naval Cooper, Managing Director (till March 31, 2023)
Mr. Roberto Callieri, Non-Executive Director (w.e.f 14 March 2024)
Mr. Kevin Gluskie, Non-Executive Director (till March 13, 2024)
Mr. Juan-Francisco Defalque, Non-Executive Director
Ms. Soek Peng Sim, Non-Executive Director
Mr. Sushil Kumar Tiwari, Non-Executive Director (till June 09, 2022)
Mr. Vimal Kumar Jain, Non-Executive Director (w.e.f June 10, 2022)

b. Related party transactions
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered in to with related parties for the relevant years

i. Transactions during the year#:
Name of related party For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023

HC Trading Asia and Pacific Pte Ltd. Purchase of Consumables (Petcoke) 25,964.21                17,163.46                     

HeidelbergCement AG IT and other Business support charges* 1,474.71                  1,273.45                       
Licence fee (refer note 29) 2,744.39                  2,590.19                       
Service income 45.33                       41.81                            

HeidelbergCement India Limited Sale of Clinker 1,789.56                  2,102.01                       
Purchase of Scrap 19.40                       -                                
Loan repaid to HCIL -                           15,000.00                     
Interest expenses on Loan@ -                           1,073.60                       
Business support charges** 940.97                     935.73                          

Heidelberg Materials Asia Pte. Ltd. Reimbursement of Expense -                           68.00                            

* Out of total amount of INR 1273.45 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2023, an amount of INR 22.50 Lakhs capitalised in the books.
@ Out of total amount of INR 1073.60 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2023, an amount of INR 948.85 Lakhs capitalised in the books.

ii. Balance outstanding at the year end

Nature of transaction March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade receivables HeidelbergCement India Limited 33.76                       44.29                            

Trade payables HC Trading Asia and Pacific Pte Ltd. 10,385.05                7,958.05                       
HeidelbergCement India Limited 235.60                     211.09                          
Heidelberg Materials Asia Pte. Ltd. -                           67.83                            
Heidelberg Materials AG 3,776.38                  3,528.41                       

iii. Transactions with key management personnel^
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Short-term employee benefits                       625.90                            259.07 
Post-employment benefits                         22.14                              12.19 
Total compensation paid to key management personnel                       648.04 271.26                          

# All the transactions are inclusive of  tax and duty, wherever applicable.

Nature of transaction

Name of related party

^As the liabilities for gratuity and leave encashment are provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amounts pertaining to the key management
personnel are not included above.

** Out of total amount of INR 940.97 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 935.73 lakhs), an amount (excluding GST) of INR 13.82 Lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 52.05 
Lakhs) capitalised in the books.
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32. Commitments and Contingencies

a) Capital Commitments

b) Other commitments (Leases)

Operating lease: Company as lessor

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Not later than one year 12.89                          12.89                           
Later than one year but not later than five years 51.57                          51.57                           
Later than five years 138.59                        151.48                         

c) Contingent Liability
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Sales Tax/Trade Tax/Entry Tax 8,770.82                     8,770.82                      
Excise Duty/Service Tax/CENVAT Credit 5,430.05                     5,901.99                      
Customs duty 942.07                        942.07                         
Income tax matters 15,478.55                   15,478.55                    
Electricity charges 744.29                        1,407.29                      
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt 4,580.15                     4,580.14                      

35,945.93                   37,080.86                    

d) Provision for litigations
Balance as at
Apr 1, 2023

Additions during the 
year charged to 

respective expenses 
head

Amounts 
reversed/utilised 
during the year

Balance as at
Mar 31, 2024

Electricity duty and Charges 899.86                        662.97                      -                              1,562.83                      
(899.86)                      -                           -                             (899.86)                       

Sales tax matters 1,942.77                     -                            -                              1,942.77                      
(1,942.77)                   -                           -                             (1,942.77)                    

Custom duty 1,377.89                     -                            -                              1,377.89                      
(1,377.89)                   -                           -                             (1,377.89)                    

Road Tax 94.86                          -                            -                              94.86                           
(94.86)                        -                           -                             (94.86)                         

Income tax matters 2,542.49                     -                            -                              2,542.49                      
(2,542.49)                   -                           -                             (2,542.49)                    

Total 6,857.87                     662.97                      -                              7,520.84                      
(6,857.87)                   -                            -                              (6,857.87)                     

Note: Figures in brackets are for the previous year

The Company has leased out railway sidings under non-cancellable lease. Total rental income under such leases during the year amounted to INR 12.89 lakhs
(March 31, 2023: INR 12.89 lakhs). Future minimum lease payments expected to receive under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Above provisions have been made against demands raised by various authorities. All these cases are under litigation and are pending with various
authorities; expected timing of resulting outflow of economic benefits cannot be specified. Amount deposited under protest against these provisions are
shown under other assets (refer note 7)

i. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) INR 4,273.78 lakhs (March 31, 2023:
INR 2,307.26 lakhs).
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e) Movement of provision for site restoration expenses during the year as required by Ind AS 37

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening provision (refer note 15) 1,091.38                           1,091.38                            
Add: Provision made during the year -                                   -                                    
Less: Provision utilised during the year -                                   -                                    
Closing provision 1,091.38                           1,091.38                            

33. A) Gratuity

The Company has two post-employment funded plans, namely Gratuity and Superannuation.

Statement of profit and loss
(i) Net employee benefit expense (recognized in employee cost)

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Current service cost 139.67                              140.14                               
Interest cost on benefit obligation 132.76                              122.56                               
Expected return on plan assets (110.81)                            (106.69)                             
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit & Loss 161.62                              156.01                               

Remeasurement  recognised in other comprehensive income
- changes in demographic assumptions -                                   -                                    
- changes in financial assumptions 8.35                                  (72.74)                               
- change in experience adjustments (50.44)                              16.53                                 
- return on plan asset (excluding interest income) 8.23                                  (0.44)                                 
Amount recognised in OCI (33.86)                              (56.65)                               

Balance Sheet

(ii) Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset)/ liability

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation                       
Particulars
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,007.26                           2,051.24                            
Current service cost 139.67                              140.14                               
Interest cost on benefit obligation 132.76                              122.56                               
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in other comprehensive income
- changes in demographic assumptions -                                   -                                    
- changes in financial assumptions 8.35                                  (72.74)                               
- experience adjustments (50.44)                              16.53                                 
Benefit paid (321.21)                            (250.47)                             
Balance at the end of the year 1,916.39                           2,007.26                            

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,520.35                           1,641.35                            
Interest income 110.81                              106.69                               
Contribution by employer 54.90                                22.35                                 
Return on plan assets recognised in other comprehensive income (8.24)                                0.43                                   
Benefits paid (321.21)                            (250.47)                             
Balance at the end of the year 1,356.61                           1,520.35                            

Details of provision for gratuity
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation                       1,916.39                           2,007.26                            
Present value of plan assets (1,356.61)                         (1,520.35)                          
Net defined benefit liability/(assets) 559.78                              486.91                               

Site restoration expense is incurred on an ongoing basis and until the closure of mines. The actual expenses may vary based on the nature of restoration and the estimate
of restoration expenses.

Reconciliation of the present value of plan assets

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet
for the Gratuity:

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (Act). Under the Act, an employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific
benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. Gratuity being administered by a Trust is computed as 15
days salary, for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of 6 months and is payable on retirement/termination/resignation. The Gratuity plan for the
Company is a defined benefit scheme where annual contributions as demanded by the insurer are deposited to a Gratuity Trust Fund established to provide gratuity
benefits. The Trust Fund has taken a Scheme of Insurance, whereby these contributions are transferred to the insurer. The Company makes provision of such gratuity
asset/liability in the books of accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation as per the projected unit credit method.

The following table shows reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components.

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023
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(iii)  Defined benefit obligation
- Actuarial assumptions
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown below:

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Discount rate 7.20% 7.30%
Salary increase rate 7.50% 7.50%
Mortality table Indian Assured Lives 

Mortality (IALM) (2006-
2008) (modified) Ult.

Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (IALM) (2006-

2008) (modified) Ult.
Withdrawal 8.00% 8.00%
Retirement age Up to DGM- 58 years 

GM and above 60 years
Up to DGM- 58 years 

GM and above 60 years
Note

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables.

- Sensitivity analysis

Gratuity Plan For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Assumptions
Discount rate -0.50% -0.50% 35.63                                37.77                                 

0.50% 0.50% (48.25)                              (49.94)                               
Salary increase rate -0.50% -0.50% (43.97)                              (45.49)                               

0.50% 0.50% 30.78                                32.73                                 

  (iv) Plan assets

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 309.47                              363.04                               
Between 2 and 5 years 1,361.09                           1,372.00                            
Beyond 5 years 1,166.94                           1,178.35                            

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

                                92.91                                  89.84 
                              409.84                                385.33 
                              502.75                                475.17 

34. Sales tax incentive

35. Corporate social responsibility (CSR):
Details of CSR spent during the financial year:   

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year                               164.44                                296.87 

(b) Amount spent during the year ended March 31, 2024 In cash Yet to be paid Total 
(i) Construction/ acquisition of any assets                             -   -                                   -                                    
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above                       212.36 -                                   212.36                               
Total 212.36                    -                                   212.36                               

(c) Amount spent during the year ended March 31, 2023 In cash Yet to be paid Total 
(i) Construction/ acquisition of any assets                             -   -                                   -                                    
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above                       301.30 -                                   301.30                               
Total 301.30                    -                                   301.30                               

The Company is entitled to benefits under Package Scheme of Incentives - 2007 as notified by Government of Maharashtra for the Manufacturing set up for cement
production facility at Solapur, Maharashtra w.e.f. September 1, 2015. Under the said policy, the Company is entitled for refund of Value Added Tax ( which is now
subsumed on GST), exemption from electricity duty and waiver of stamp duty for a period of seven (7) years which was further extended for two (2) years. Accordingly,
for the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has recognised INR 3,593.33 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 2,765.10 lakhs) as income and disclosed under "Other
operating revenue". 

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5 years (March 31, 2023: 5 years).

The principal plan assets consists of a scheme of insurance taken by the Trust, which is a qualifying insurance policy. As at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, 100%
of the plan assets were vested in investment with insurance company.

Particulars

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumptions shown. 

Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund (being administered by Trust) and Provident fund (contribution to government administered fund) are funded
defined contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due.
There are no other obligations other than the contribution made. The amount recognized as an expense for the Defined Contribution Plans are as under:

B). Superannuation and Provident Fund

Superannuation Fund
Provident Fund

Impact on DBOSensitivity level

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and
demand in the employment market.

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined 
benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:
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36. Fair Value

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Financial assets
Investment 23.62                       23.62                                           23.62                          23.62 
Trade receivables 11,833.27                8,180.48                               11,833.27                     8,180.48 
Cash and cash equivalents 1,857.84                  4,042.79                                 1,857.84                     4,042.79 
Other financial assets 13,749.18                10,142.05                             13,749.18                   10,142.05 

Financial liabilities
Borrowings 45,099.76                42,785.16                             45,099.76                   42,785.16 
Trade payables 46,537.24                42,644.36                             46,537.24                   42,644.36 
Other financial liability 15,262.77                16,661.28                             15,262.77                   16,661.28 
Lease liabilities 2,010.72                  2,323.58                                 2,010.72                     2,323.58 

37. Fair Value Hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023:

Assets measured at fair value:

FVTPL financial investments

Unquoted instruments March 31, 2024 23.62         -                     -                            23.62                        
March 31, 2023 23.62         -                     -                            23.62                        

38. Financial risk management objectives and policies

A. Market risk

Foreign currency risk

Derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure
a. Derivatives outstanding as at the reporting date

Currency in foreign 
currency 
(in lakhs)

Amount in INR 
(in lakhs)

in foreign currency 
(in lakhs)

Amount in INR (in 
lakhs)

USD 124.68       10,384.60           165.00                      13,620.27                 

124.68       10,384.60           165.00                      13,620.27                 

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts
that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Fair Value

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivable, trade and other payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the
short-term maturities of these instruments.
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Fair value measurement using

Date of Valuation Total
Significant 

observable inputs 
(Level 2)

Significant
unobservable inputs

(Level 3)

Quoted prices in 
active markets 

(Level 1)

Carrying value

The fair value of unquoted instruments is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities.

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise of trade payables, other payables and borrowings. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include security deposits, receivables and cash and cash
equivalents which are part of the Company's operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, liquidity risk, and credit risk. The policies and procedures considered by Company’s senior management to oversee
the management of these risks has been summarised below.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The Company is
exposed to three types of market risk: foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and and other price risk, such as commodity risk.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is
denominated in a foreign currency). As on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, the Company has following  foreign currency exposures:

Forward exchanged contracts (to hedge trade 
payables)
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b. Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date

Currency in foreign 
currency 
(in lakhs)

Amount in INR 
(in lakhs)

in foreign currency 
(in lakhs)

Amount in INR (in 
lakhs)

Trade payables EUR 0.04           3.48                    1.16                          103.52                      
CHF 0.12           10.99                  -                            -                            

14.47                  103.52                      

Advance to supplier EUR 0.03           2.89                    0.15                          13.58                        
2.89                    13.58                        

Due to related parties EUR 35.16         3,159.57             32.05                        2,867.87                   
USD 0.01           0.75                    0.82                          67.83                        

3,160.32             2,935.70                   
*USD – US Dollar, EUR – Euro, CHF - Swiss Franc

Foreign currency sensitivity

5% increase in foreign exchange rates will have the following impact on profit before tax: 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
EUR                      (158.60)                      (147.96)

USD                          (0.12)                          (3.25)

CHF                          (0.65)                               -   

Interest rate risk

Commodity price risk

B. Liquidity risk

As at March 31, 2024 <1 year 1-5 years >5 years Total
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings*    41,995.25               4,117.48                               -                     46,112.73 
Trade payables**    46,537.24                         -                                 -                     46,537.24 
Other financial liabilities    15,162.68                 100.09                               -                     15,262.77 
Lease liabilities         535.92               1,474.80                               -                       2,010.72 

As at March 31, 2023 <1 year 1-5 years >5 years Total
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings*    38,286.67               6,074.86                               -                     44,361.53 
Trade payables**    42,644.36                         -                                 -                     42,644.36 
Other financial liabilities    16,557.91                 103.37                               -                     16,661.28 
Lease liabilities         701.16               1,622.42                               -                       2,323.58 

* Borrowings are shown without Ind AS adjustment.

** Trade payables are repayable on demand

C. Credit risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations towards settlement of financial liabilities. Financial
liabilities are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through use of bank overdrafts, bank loans and other similar credit facilities. 
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted
payments.

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract. The Company is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments. The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty.

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact
on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s policy is to maintain most of its borrowings at fixed rate. The Company’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore
not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in
market interest rates.

Note: If the rate is decreased by 500 bps, profit will increase by an equal amount for March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities which is moderated by optimising the procurement under fuel supply agreement. Its
operating activities require the on-going purchase or continuous supply of coal. Therefore the Company monitors its purchases closely to optimise the price.
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39. Capital management

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings                   45,099.76                   42,785.16 

                  (1,857.84)                   (4,042.79)
Net debt (A)                   43,241.92                   38,742.37 

(B)                 169,108.71                 175,611.26 
(C)=(A)+(B)                 212,350.63                 214,353.63 
(D)= (A)/(C) 20.36% 18.07%

40. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

S.N March 31, 2024

(i)

                       333.05                        424.69 
                              -                                 -   

(ii)                               -                                 -   

(iii)                               -                                 -   

(iv)                               -                                 -   

(v)                               -                                 -   

41. Segment reporting

42. Transfer pricing

Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made with approved counterparties. Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalent, deposits with the banks/financial institutions is
generally low as the said deposits have been made with the banks/financial institutions who have been assigned high credit rating by international and domestic
rating agencies.

The Company is predominantly engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of cement, which constitutes a single business segment and is governed by
similar set of risks and returns. The operations of the Company primarily cater to the market in India, which the management views as a single segment. The
management monitors the operating results of its single segment for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.

The Company is domiciled in India. The Company’s revenue from operations from external customers primarily relate to operations in India and all the non-
current assets of the Company are located in India.

-Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises (Not overdue)
-Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amounts of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

The Company maintains the information and documents as required under the transfer pricing regulations under Section 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
The management is in the process of updating the transfer pricing documentation for the financial year 2023 - 2024 and is of the view that its transactions are
at arm’s length and the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of
provision for taxation.

Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed in line with the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit
quality of a customer is assessed through internal evaluation which takes into account the financial parameters, past experience with the counterparty and
current economic/market trends. Individual credit limits are thus defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly
monitored and any shipments to major customers are generally covered by advances, security deposits, bank guarantees etc. Trade receivables are consisting
of a large number of customers. The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer.

Particulars March 31, 2023

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the
end of each accounting year

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest
bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents.

Equity attributable to equity share holder

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached
to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current
period.

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Capital and debt
Gearing ratio
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43 Leases

Right-of-use assets

Particulars  Land & Buildings Furniture & Fixture  Vehicles  Total 
At 1 April 2022 7,577.03                   186.29                      714.57                     8,477.89              
Additions for the year 335.67                      -                           216.22                     551.89                 
Disposals (275.39)                    -                           -                           (275.39)                

At 31 March 2023 7,637.31                   186.29                      930.79                     8,754.39              

Additions for the year 486.15                      -                           -                           486.15                 

Disposals -                           -                           -                           -                       

At 31 March 2024 8,123.46                   186.29                      930.79                     9,240.54              

Depreciation/ Amortization

At 1 April 2022 1,763.64                   80.36                        640.39                     2,484.39              

Depreciation Expenses 605.41                      38.52                        134.13                     778.06                 

Prepaid rent amortisation 167.00                      -                           -                           167.00                 

Disposals (146.66)                    -                           -                           (146.66)                

At 31 March 2023 2,389.39                   118.88                      774.52                     3,282.79              

Depreciation Expenses 679.70                      38.52                        123.24                     841.47                 

Prepaid rent amortisation 167.00                      -                           -                           167.00                 

Disposals for the year -                           -                           -                           -                       

At 31 March 2024 3,236.09                   157.40                      897.76                     4,291.26              

Net book value

At 31 March 2023 5,247.92                   67.41                        156.27                     5,471.60              

At 31 March 2024 4,887.37                   28.89                        33.03                       4,949.28              

Lease Liability
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

At 1 April                    2,323.58                2,650.22 
Additions for the year 486.15                     551.89                 
Deletion for the year -                           (128.72)                
Accretion of interest 183.22                     189.46                 
Payment of principal (982.23)                    (939.27)                
At 31 March 2,010.72                  2,323.58              
Current                       535.92                   701.16 

Non-Current                     1,474.80                1,622.42 

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 38B.

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is in the range of 5.20% to 9.15%, with maturity between 2024-2044.

.

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 841.47                     778.06                 

Interest expense on lease liabilities 183.22                     189.46                 

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 538.15                     471.53                 

Total amount recognised in statement of profit or loss 1,562.84                  1,439.05              

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the movements during the year:

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:
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Particulars  Opening 
balance as at 

01.4.2023 

 Additions during 
the year 

 Capitalised 
during the 

Year 

 Closing balance 
as at 31.03.2024 

Salary, Wages, Bonus and Allowances                23.51 20.25                                      43.76                           -   
Workmen & Staff Welfare Expenses                  3.17 1.36                                          4.53                           -   
Stores and Spares Parts                  8.25 7.70                                        15.95                           -   
Rent                  5.73 0.63                                          6.36                           -   
Rates and Taxes                  7.54 -                                           7.54                           -   
Insurance                  8.01 -                                           8.01                           -   
Legal & Professional expenses (including Retainers fees)                38.86 -                                         38.86                           -   
Interest on loan (net of interest income)              208.16 -                                       208.16                           -   
Miscellaneous Expenses                42.31 6.04                                        48.35                           -   
Other expenses                  6.08 0.36                                          6.44                           -   
Total              351.62                       36.34               387.96                           -   

 45.  Standards notified but not yet effective

There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective, upto the date of issuance of the Company's financial statements. 

46.  Additional Statutory Information

(v)  The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with
the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or

(viii)  Ratio Analysis and its elements :- 

The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(vii) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

44. Capital work in progress includes Nil (previous year INR 2,859.45 Lakhs) towards setting up of Waste Heat Recovery (WHR) Power Plant at its
clinkerisation unit at Yeraguntla plant, Andhra Pradesh, adjacent to the Kilns to generate power from waste heat. During the year, the Company has
capitalized following expenses of revenue nature to the cost of fixed assets/Capital work in progress which are incurred during construction period on
substantial expansion of existing units/new projects/intangible assets of the Company. Consequently, expenses disclosed under the respective notes are
net of amount capitalised by the company. 

(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property.

(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
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Ratio Analysis:

S.
N

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 % change

1 Current ratio (in times) Current Assets Current Liabilities             0.51             0.46 10.9%

2 Debt- Equity Ratio (in times) Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity             0.27             0.24 12.5%

3 Debt Service Coverage ratio (in times) Earnings before Depreciation,
Finance cost and Tax

Interest on long term debt + 
Principal repayment within next 
12 months

            0.37             0.13 184.6%

4 Return on Equity ratio (%) Net Profits after taxes Average Shareholder’s Equity -3.8% -3.7% -0.1%

5 Inventory Turnover ratio (in days) Cost of goods sold Average Inventory             6.70             6.20 8.1%

6 Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (in days) Revenue from operation (incl.
GST)

Average Trade Receivable           12.13           11.09 9.4%

7 Trade Payable Turnover Ratio (in days) Total Operating Cost (incl. 
GST)

Average Trade Payables           56.15           59.84 -6.2%

8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio (in times) Net sales = Total sales - sales 
return

Working capital = Current assets 
– Current liabilities

          (4.34)            (3.98) 9.0%

9 Net Profit ratio (%) Net Profit Net sales = Total sales - sales 
return

-2.8% -2.9% 0.1%

10 Return on Capital Employed (%) Earnings before interest and 
taxes

Capital Employed = Tangible 
Net Worth + Total Debt + 
Deferred Tax Liability

-3.0% -2.9% -0.1%

11 Return on Investment (%) Interest (Finance Income) Investment 6.3% 5.3% 1.0%

Notes:- The Company’s Debt-Service Coverage ratio improved mainly due to increase in EBIDTA.
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Name of the entity in the Group

As % of consolidated net 
assets

Amount in lakhs As % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

Amount in 
lakhs

Amount in 
lakhs

Amount in 
lakhs

Consolidated 100.00% 169,108.71                                     100.00% (5,335.96)     22.03         (5,313.93)     
Parent
Zuari Cement Limited 87.25% 147,540.41                                     93.92% (5,011.36)     22.03         (4,989.33)     

Adjustment due to consolidation (elimination) -5.10% (8,625.65)                                        -22.28% 1,188.61       -             1,188.61      

Subsidiaries Indian
Gulbarga Cement Limited 17.85% 30,193.95                                       28.36% (1,513.21)     -             (1,513.21)     

<< This space is intentionally left blank >>

Share in total comprehensive 
income

As % of consolidated 
other comprehensive 

income

As % of total 
comprehensive 

income

100.00% 100.00%

93.89%

- -22.37%

- 28.48%

Additional information, as required under Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013, of enterprises consolidated as Subsidiaries

Net Assets, i.e., total assets minus total liabilities Share in profit or loss Share in other comprehensive 
income

100.00%
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Zuari Cement Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)

48. Previous year figures

As per our report of even date

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Zuari Cement Limited
Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045 CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

Rajeev Kumar Saxena Joydeep Mukherjee Vimal Kumar Jain
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 077974 DIN: 06648469 DIN: 09561918

Place: Gurugram
Date:  July 31, 2024 Vimal Kumar Choudhary Arjun Dutta

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year’s classification. 
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INR Lakhs

S.No. Particulars Company Company

1 Name of the Subsidiary Company Gulbarga Cement Limited Gulbarga Cement Limited

2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

3 Reporting currency INR INR

4 Share Capital 10,488.05 10,488.05

5 Reserves & surplus 19,705.91 21,219.12

6 Total Assets 46,140.92 45,409.80

7 Total Liabilities 15,946.96 13,702.63

8 Investments -                                        -                                        

9 Turnover* -                                        -                                        

10 Profit/(Loss) before taxation (1,513.21) (1,051.91)

11 Provision for taxation -                                        -                                        

12 Profit after taxation (1,513.21) (1,051.91)

13 Other Comprehensive Income -                                        -                                        

14 Total Comprehensive Income (1,513.21) (1,051.91)

15 Proposed Dividend - -

16 % of shareholding 21.45% 21.45%

*Gulbarga Cement Limited is yet to commence operations.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Zuari Cement Limited
CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

                                                      
                                          

Joydeep Mukherjee Vimal Kumar Jain
Director
DIN: 09561918

Vimal Kumar Choudhary Arjun Dutta
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Gurugram
Date:  July 31, 2024

ZUARI CEMENT LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

FORM AOC-1

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO FIRST PROVISO TO SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 129 READ WITH RULE 5 OF 
COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

Managing Director
DIN: 06648469

144


	8. ZCL_SFS_March 24.pdf
	2. ZCL audit report March 24 with Annexures.pdf
	2. Main audit report March 24 (EQCR Reviewed).pdf
	2.1 CARO 2020 M 24 (EQCR Reviewed).pdf
	2.2 ICOFR report M 24 (EQCR Reviewed).pdf

	2. ZCL_Ind AS_SFS_Mar 24_v4.pdf
	2_ZCL_Significant Accounting Policies_Mar 24.pdf

	9. ZCL_CFS_March 24.pdf
	0. ZCL+GCL audit report March 24 with Annexures.pdf
	1. Consolidated audit report Zuari Cement Mar 24 (EQCR Reviewed).pdf
	1.1 IFC report CFS Mar 24 (EQCR Reviewed).pdf

	0. ZCL+GCL_Ind AS_CFS_Mar 24_v4.pdf
	0_ZCL+GCL_Significant Accounting Policies_Mar 24.pdf




